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July 23, 2015 | | -

NOTICE TO STOCKHOLDERS:™ = & /mwmmer e
Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr. ‘
Felipe L. Gozon
Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez
Jaime C, Laya
Artemio V. Panganiban -
Manuel P. Quiogue
Felipe S. Yalong

Dear Stockholder:

Please be informed that the Annual Meeting of the Stdckholders of GMA Holdings, Inc.
has been reset to August 13, 2015 (Thursday) at 10:00 a.m. at Balducci, G/F.
Serendra, Bonifacio Global City, Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City to consider, discuss or

vote on the following

Call to order

Certification and Notice of Quorum

Approval of the Minutes of the Stockholders Meeting held on May 30, 2014.
Report of the President '

Ratification of Acts of the Board of Directors for the previous year

Election of Directors, including the Independent Directors

Election of the External Auditor _

Consideration of such other busingss as may properly come before the

meeting
9. Adjournment

XN~ S

Any stockholder may vote by proxy provided that such authorization remains unrevoked
and on file with, or is submitted to, the undersigned at the 15/F Sagittarius Building, H.V.

De la Costa Street, Salcedo Village, Makati City.

For purposes of the meeting, only stockholders of record as of April 29, 2015 shall be
entitled to vote. _ '

The Orgénizationai Meeting of the Board of Directors shall be held immediately after the
Annual Stockholders’ Meeting. Thank you.

For the Board of Directors:
ANNA-TERESA M. GOZO ABROGAR

Corporate Secretary



We are not soliciting your proxy. Howsever, if you are unabie to attend the meeting but would
like to be represented thereat, you may accomplish the proxy form herein provided below and
- submit the same to the Office of the Corporate Secretary on or before May 27, 2015. You may
deliver the proxy or send it iIn advance through fax no. (632) 812-0008. Validation of proxies

shall be held on August 12, 2015 at 10:00 a.m. at the GMA Network Center.

PROXY

I/We hereby name and appoint _or in his/her absence, the Chairman
of the mesting, as my/our proxy at the Annual Stockhoiders’ Meeting of GMA Holdings, Inc. to
be held at Balducci, G/F Serendra, Bonifacio Globat City, Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City on
Friday, August 13, 2015 at 10:00 a.m. and at any postponement or adjournment thereof.

Name

Signature

Date

No. of Shares Held



. SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION -

SEC FORM 20-15

INFORMATION STATEMENT PURSUANT TO S‘:CTION
OF THE SECURITIES REGU LATEOI} CDDE

GMA HOLDINGS, INC. i
1. Check the appropriate box:

[ ] Preliminary tnformation Statement |

[ ¥ Definitive Information Statement

20

2, Name of Registrant as specified in its charter: GMA HGLDINGS, INC.

3. Province, country or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization: PHILIPPINES

4, SEC |dentification Number CS200602355

B, BIR Tax ldentification Code 244-658-896-000

8. Address of principal office

Postal Code -

UNIT 5D TOWER ONE, ONE MCKINLEY PLACE, NEW BONIFACIO GLOBAL CIT

FORT BONIFACIO, TAGUIG CITY

7. Registrant’s telephone number, including area code (632) 9827777

8. Date, time and place of the meeting of security holders
DATE : August 13, 2015
TIME . 10:00 a.m.
PLACE: Balducci, G/F Serendra, Bonifacio Global City, Fort Bonifacio,
Taguig City ‘
. Approximate date on which the information Statement is first to be sent or given to

security holders
July 23, 2015

70, in case of Proxy Solicitations.

Name of Person Filing the Statement/Solicitor: NOT APPLICABLE
Address and Telephone No.: NOT APPLICABLE
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10.  Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the Code or Sections 4 and 8 of
the RSA (information on number of shares and amount of debt is applicable only to
corporate registrants): | '

Title of Each Class Number of Shareé of Commion Stock

~QOutstanding and Amount of Debt
Qutstanding
Philippine Depositary Receipts (“PDRs"} 846,831,300

12. Are any or all of registrant's securities listed in a Stock Exchange?

PDRs/PHILIPPINE STOCK EXCHANGE.

GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

This Information Statement dated July 23, 2015, is being' furnished to the stockholders of
record of GMA Holdings, Inc. as of April 29, 2015 in connection with the Annual Stockholders’
Meeting. ‘ _

WE ARE NOT ASKING YOU FOR A PROXY AND YOU ARE
REQUESTED NOT TO SEND US A PROXY.

4. GENERAL INFORMATION

ltlem 1. Date, time and place of meeting of security holders.

(a) State the date, time and place of the meeting

Date August 13, 2015

Time 10:00 a.m. _

Place: Balducci, G/F Serendra, Benifacio Global City, Fort Bonifacio.
Taguig City : '

(b) Approximate date on which copies of the information statement are first to be sent to the
security holders: o

July 23, 2015 -



ltem 2. Dissenters' Right of Appraisal

Title X of the Corporation Code of the Philippines grants fo a shareholder the right to dissent
and demand payment of the fair value of his share in certain instances, 10 wit: (1) in case any
amendment to the corporation’s articles of incorporation has the effect of changing and
restricting the rights of any shareholder or class of shares, or of authorizing preferences in any .

- respect supetior to those of outstanding shares of any class; (2) in case of any sale, leass,
exchange, transfer, mortgage or other disposition of all or substantially ali of the corporate
property or assets; (3) in case of merger of consolidation; (4) in case the corporation decides to
invest its funds in another corporation or business of for any purpose other than the primary
purpese; and (5) extension of shortening of the tarm of corporaie existence.

Under Section 42 of the Corporation Code, a stockholder is likewise given.an appraisal right in
cases where a corporation decides 10 invest its funds in another corporation or business. The
appraisal right may be exercised by a stockholder who shall have voted against any of the
foregoing corporate aclions proposed in a meeting by making written demand on the
corporation for the payment of the fair value of hisfits shares within 30 days after the date on
which the vote is taken. Failure to make written demand within such period shalt be deemed &
waiver of such right. If the proposed action is implemented, the corporation shali pay toa
stockholder surrendering hisfits stock ceriificates the fair value of such shares as of the day
prior to the date on which the vote was taken; however, no payment shall be made to any
stockholder unless the corporation has unrestricted retained earnings in its books to cover such
payment. Within ten days after demanding payment for his shares, a dissenting stockhoider
shall submit his stock certificates for notation thereon that such shares are dissenting shares,
falling which, his/its appraisal right shali, at the option of the corporation, terminate. Upon
payment of the purchase price for the shares, the stockholder must transfer his shares o the

corporation.

Erom the time a demand for payment of fair value until either the abandonment of the corporate

action involved or the purchase of said shares by the corporation, all rights accruing fo such
shares, inciuding voting and dividend rights, shall be suspended. If the dissenting stockholder is
not paid the vaiue of the shares within 30 days after the award, his voting and dividend rights

shall be restored.

None of the proposed corporate actions qualifies as an instance for a possible exercise by
security holders of their appraisal rights under Title X of the Corporation Code of the-

. Philippines.
ltam 3. Interest of Certain Persons in or Opposition to Matters to be Acted Upon

(a) There is no matter to be acted upon in which any Director or Exescutive Officer is
involved or had a direct, indirect or substantial interest.

(b) No Director has informed the Company of his A{'}pposition to any matter fo be acted upon.



B. CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION

tem 4. Voting Securities and Principal Holders Thereof

(a) GMA Holdings, Inc. (“the -Company”) has 10,000 common shares subscribed and
outstanding as of June 30, 2015. Every stockhoider shall be entitied to one vote for

sach common share held as of the established record date.

(b) All stockholders of record as of the closing of business on April 29, 2015 are entitled to

notice of.and to vote at the Company’s Annual Stockholders’ Meeting.

(c) With respect to the elaction of directors, a stockholder may vote such number of shares
d or he may accumulate said

for as many persons as there are directors to be electe
shares and give one candidate as many votes as the num

ber of directors to be eiected

or he may distribute them on theé same principle among as many candidates as he shall

see fit; provided, that the total number of votes cast b

y him shall not exceed the total

number of shares owned by him mu!ttplied by the whole number of directors to be

elected.

(d) The following are the information on security ownership of certain record and beneficial
owners and management.

Security Ownership of Certain Record and Beneficial Owners as of June 30, 2015

As of June 30, 2015, the following persons owned at least 5% of the Company's outstanding
common shares: '

Title of Name, Address of Name of Beneficial | Citizenship Mo. of Percent-
class Record Owner and Owner and ‘ Shares | age of
Relationship with Relationship with Held Class
Company Record Owner
Common | Felipe L, Gozon The Record owner is Filipino 3,330 33.30
Unit 5 5D Tower One, One | the Beneficial Owner
McKinley Place, New '
Bonifacio City,
Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City
Common | Gilberio R. Duavit, Jr. The Record owner is Filipinc 3,330 33.30
Unit 5 5D Tower One, One the Beneficial Owner :
McKinley Place, New
Bonifacio City,
Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City
Common | Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez The Record owner is, Filipino 3,330 33.30
- Unit 5 50 Tower One, One | the Beneficial Qwner
McKinley Place, New
Bonifacio City,
| Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City
Total 9,990 98.90




Felpe L. Gozon, Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr. and Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez are significant
stockholders of the Company. : : :

Security Ownership of‘Nianagement as of June 30, 2015:

As of June 30, 2015, the Company’s directors and senior' officers owned an aggregate of
96,996 common shares of the Company, equivaient to 00.96% of the Company’s issued and

outstanding common capital stock.

Title of Name of Amount and Cifizenship | Percentage
Class Beneficial Owner Nature of of Class
Beneficial
‘ Ownership
Common Felipe L. Gozon Direct -Filipino 33.30
| . . 3,330
Common Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr. Direct Filipino - 33.30
: L 3,330 _
Common Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez Direct Filipino 33.30
3,330 '
Common Artemio V. Panganiban Direct Filipino 04
4 .
Common Jaime C. Laya Direct Filipino .01
_ 1 ‘
Common Felipe S. Yalong : Direct Filipino 01
4 -
Totat 95,096 ‘ 99.96

'Voting Trust Holders of more than 5%

The Company is hot aware of any person holding more than 5% of shares under a voting trust

or similar arrangement.

Changes in Control

The Company is not aware df any arrangement which may have resulted in a change in control
" of the Company during the period covered by this report. :

Foreign Equity

consisting of common shares) are wholly-owned by Filipinos. While the
wned by any. person regardless of citizenship or
, t to the nationality restriction under the Philippine
Constitution prohibiting foreign ownership in mass media companies. As a result, the
Underlying Shares (GMA Network, Inc. common shares) resuling from an exercise of the

PDRs may only be issued {0 Philippine citizens or corporations, cooperatives or associations
wholly owned and managed by Philippine citizens. Although holders of PDRs will enjoy

7
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economic rights upon occurrence of certain events in respect of the Underlying Shares, they
will not have any voting rights in respect of the Underlying Shares. Such voting rights will, until
exercise of the PDR, be retained and exercised by GH! or the Company. Pending exercise of
the PDRs, the Shares dsliverable on exercise of the PDRs shall be owned by and registered in-
the name of the lssuer. The Shares underlying the PDRs have been delivered and pledged by
the Issuer to the Pledge Trustee, and held to the order and for the benefit of the Holders as
security for the delivery of the Shares upon exercise of the PDRs pursuant to the Pledge. Until
an exercise of a PDR, the Issuer, as owner of Shares underlying the relevant PDR, wili retain

and exe_rcise such voting rights relating to such Shares.
ltem 5. Di'rectors and Executive Officers

Nominees for Election as Members of the Board of Directors

The following were nominated as membars of the Board of Directors for the ensuing year

(2015-2016):

Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr.

Felipe L. Gozon

Joel Marcelo G. Jimensz

Jaime C. Laya (Independent Director)

Artemio V. Panganiban (Independent Director)

All the nominees are incumbent directors. The nominees were formally nominated by Gilberto
_ R. Duavit, Jr. Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr. has no relationship with the nominated independent

directors, Jaime C. Laya and Artemio V. Panganiban.

The Company's By-laws provide that all nominations to the Board of Directors shall ‘be
submitted in writing to the Nomination Committee before the date of the regular annual mesting
of the stockhoiders. The Nomination Commitiee has reviewed the qualifications of the

nominees and approved the final list of candidates.

The members of the Nomination Committee are as follows:

Felipe L. Gozon (Chairman)
Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr.

Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez
Jaime C. Laya

Board of Directors, Officers and Senior Management

Under the Articles of incorporation of the Company, the Board of Directors of the Company
comprises five directors, two of whom are independent. The directors have a tarm of cne year
and are elected annually at the Company’s stockholders meeting. A director who is glected to
fill a vacancy holds the office only for the unexpired term of his predecessor. As of June 36,

2015, the Company's Board of Directors and Senior Management were composed of the

following:



Board of Directors Senior Management
Year Year
irectors and Senio . e - Position o it
Directors a enior | yationality Position sitio Position Position Age |
Managesment was was
: . Assumed Assumed
' . Chairman/
Felipe L. Gozon Filipino Director - 2007 N{A MN/A 75
Gilberto R, Duavit, Jr. Filipino Direttor 2007 Brasicent/Chief Executive Officer 2007 51
i Joel Marcele G. Jimenez Filiping Director 2007 N/A NiA 51
Chief Financial Officer/Chief
Felipe S. Yalong Fiipino Corporate Treasurar 2007 Operating Officer 2012 58
Artemio V. Panganiban Fillpino Independerii Director 200% NIA NI 75
Jaime C. Laya Filipine tndependentbirector 2008 NIA NIA 76
Ronaldo P. Mastril Fiipino | N/A wa | Compiroller/Chisf Accounting 2007 49
‘ Officer .
Roberto O. Pars! Filipino WN/A NFA vice-President! Compliance Officer 201.3 59
Anna Teresa M. Gczon-_Abrogaf Filipine . | Corporaie Secretary 2007 NA NIA 43

Felipe L. Gozon, Filipino, 75 years old, is the Chairman of the Board of Direciors and Chief
Executive Officer of the Network. _ .

Atty Gozon is a Senior Partner at the Law Firm of Belo Gozon Elma Parel Asuncion & Lucila.
Aside from GMA Network, Inc., he is also Chairman and CEQ of GMA Marketing and
Productions, Inc. and GMA New Media, Inc.; Chairman and President of FLG Management and
Development Corp., and Mont-Aire Realty and Development Corp.; Chairman of Alta .
Productions . Group, Inc., Citynet Network Marketing and Productions, inc., Philippine
Entertainment Portal, Inc., Justitia Realty and Management Corp., Palawan Power Generation,
inc., Catanduanes Power Generation, Inc., Sycamore Giobal Shipping Corporation, Sycamore
International Shipping Corporation, Cardinal Agri Products, Inc.,and RGMA Network, inc.; Vice
Chairman of Malayan Savings and Morigage Rank: President of, among other companies, .
Gozon Development Corp., Gozon Realty Corp., Antipolo Agri-Business and Land Development
Corp., Capitalex Holdings, inc., BGE Holdings, Inc., Philippine Chamber of Commerce and -
industry, Chamber of Commerce of the Philippine Islands and President.of Lex Realty, inc. He
serves as Chairman of the Board of Trustees of GMA Kapuso Foundation, inc., Kapwa Ko
Mahal Ko Foundation, Inc., and The Potter and Clay Christian School Foundation, Inc.;
Chairman and President of Gozon Foundation; and Trustee of Bantayog ng mga Bayani’
Foundation. Gozon s alsc an Advisory Board Member of the Asian Television Awards. :

Atty. Gozon is a recipient of several awards for his achievement in law, media, public service,
and business, including the prestigious Chief Justice Special Award given by the Chief Justice
of the Philippines (1991), presidential Award of Merit given by the Philippine Bar Association
(1990 & 1883), CEO of the Year given by Uno Magazine (2004), Master Entrepreneur —
Philippines (2004) by Ernst and Young, Outstanding Citizen of Malabon Award for Legal and
Business Management by the Kalipunan ng Samahan sa Malabon (KASAMAY) (2005), People of
the Year by People Asia Magazine (2005}, Outstanding Manitan Award in the field of Social
Responsibility and Broadcasting given by the City Government of Manila (2011), Quezon City
Gawad Parangal Most Outstanding Citizen for 2011 given by the City Government of Quezon
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(2011), Tycoon of the Decade Award given by BizNews Asia (2011), Lifetime Achievement
Award given by the UP Alumni Association (2012), Certificate of Recognition given by the Civil
Aeronautics Board {2012), Personality of the . Year for Broadcast Media given by SKAL
international Makati (2013), Qutstanding Member-Achiever given by Phi Kappa Phi UP Chapier
(Infernational Honor Society) (2013), Visionary Management CEO Award given by BizNews
Asia (2013), Lifetime Achievement Award given by UP Preparatory High School Alumni (2014},
Entrepreneurship Excelience Award and Best Broadcast CEO Award given by BizNews Asia
(2014), The Rotary Golden Whee! Award for Corporate Media Management given by Rotary
International District 3780 and Quezon City Government (2014), and Global Leadership Award
for Excellence in Media Sector (first Filipino to win the award) given by The Leaders
international together with the American | eadership Development Association in Kuala Lumpur,
Malaysia (2015). He is also listed among Biz News Asia’s Power 100 {2003 to 2010).

Atty. Gozon earned his Bachelor of Laws degree from the University of the Philippines (ambng
the first 10 of his class) and his Master of Laws degree from Yale University Law School. He
was admit’{ed to the Bar in 1962, placing 13th in the Bar examinations.

Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr., Filipino, 51 years old, is the President and Chief Operating Officer of
the Network. . He has been a Director of the Company since 1899 and is currently the Chairman
of the Network’s Executive Committee. Aside from GMA Network, inc., he is the Chairman of
the Board of GMA Nefwork Films, Inc. and GMA Worldwide, Inc. and Vice Chairman of the
Board of GMA Marketing and Productions, Inc. He also serves as President and CEO of GMA
Holdings, Inc., Scenarios, inc., RGMA Marketing and Productions, Inc., Film Experts, Inc., and
Dual Management and Investments, Inc. He is the President and a Director of Group
Management and Development, Inc.; President and Director of MediaMerge Corp., Citynat
Network Marketing and Productions, Inc.; Director of RGMA Network, Inc., GMA New Media,
inc., Alta Productions Group, inc., Optima Digital, Inc., and Moni-Aire Realty and Development |
Corp. He also serves as the President and a Trustee of GMA Kapuso Foundation, Inc., Trustee
of Guronasyon Foundation, Inc. (formerly LEAF) and is a Trustee of the HERO Foundation.

Mr. Duavit holds a Bachelor's Degreé in Philosophy from the University of the Philltp'pineé.. '

Joel Marceio G. Jimenez, Filipino, 51 years. old, has been a Diractor of the Company since
2002. He is currently the President and CEO of Menarco Holdings and the Chief Executive
Officer of Alta Productions, Inc. He is a Director of RGMA Network, Inc., GMA New Media, Inc., '
Scenarios, Inc., and GMA Woridwide, Inc., besides also being a member of the Board of
Dirsctors of Malayan Savings and Mortgage Bank, and Unicapital Securities, inc. He is also a
Director of Nuvoland Philippines, a real-estate development company. He is & Trustee of GMA

Kapuso Foundation, inc.

He was educated in Los, Angeles, California where he obtained a Bacheiot’s Degrée in
Business Administration from Loyola Marymount University. He also obtained a Masier's
Degree in Management from the Asian Institute of Management.

Felipe S. Yalong, Filipino, 58 years old, is the Executive Vice President and Chief Financial

Officer of GMA Network, Inc. He ie also the Head of the Corporate Services Group of ths
tor of the Company since 2002. Aside from GMA Natwork, Inc.,

Network. He has been a Direc )
he also serves as Director and Corporate Treasurer of GMA Holdings, Inc., Scenarios, Inc., and
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GMA Network Films, Inc.; Director of Unicapital, Inc., Majalco Finance and Investments, inc., |
and GMA Marketing and Productions, Inc.; Corporate Treasurer of RGMA Network, Inc.,
MediaMerge Corp., Executive Vice President of RGMA Marketing and Productions, inc.; and

Corporate Treasurer of the Board of Trustees of GMA Kapuso Foundation, inc.

Yalong.was named CFO of the Year by ING FINEX in 2013. ‘
He obtained a Bachelor of Science degree in Business Administration Major in Actounting from

the Philippine School of Business Administration and completed the Management Development - |
Program at the Asian Institute of Management. He is a Certified Public Accountant.

Dr. Jaime C. Laya, Filipino, 76 years old, has been an independent Director of GMA Network,
inc. since 2007. He is the Chairman and President of Philippine” Trust Company {Philtrust
Bank), Director of Ayala Land, inc., Manila Water Company, Inc., and Philippine AXA Life
Insurance Company, Inc. *He also serves as Chairman of Don Norberto Ty Foundation, Inc. -
and Escuela Taller de Filipinas Foundation, Inc.; Trustee of St. Paul University - Quezon City,
Cultural Center of the Philippines, Metropolitan Museum of Manila, Yuchengco Museum, -
Eundacion Santiago, Inc., Ayala Foundation, inc., and other foundations. He writes a weekly

column for the Manila Bulletin.

He was Minister of Budget, 18975-1981%; Minister of Education, Culture and Sports, 1984-86;
Chairman of the Monetary Board and Governor, Central Bank of the Philippines, 1981-1984;
Chairman, Nationai Commission for Culiure and the Arts, 1996-2001. He was faculty member-
of the University of the Philippines, 1957-1978 and Dean of the College of Business
Administration, 1969-1974. In 1986, he founded J.C. Laya & Co., Ltd. (Certified Public
Accountants and Management Consultants) later the Philippine member firm of KPMG
infermnational: he served as the firm's Chairman until his retirement in 2004,

He earned his BSBA, magna cum Jaude, University of the Philippines, 1957; M.S. in industrial
Management, Georgia Institute of Technology, 1960; Ph.D. in Financial Management, Stanford
University, 1966. He is a Certified Public Accountant. : .

Chief Justice Artemio V. Panganiban, Filipino, 78 years old, has been an Independent
Director of the Company since 2007, in 1995, he was named a Justice of the Supreme Court
and in 2005, he was appointed Chief Justice of the Philippines — & position he held ‘until
December 2006. At present, he is also an Independent Director of these listed firms: First
Philippine Holdings Corp., Metro Pacific Investments Corp., Manila Electric Company,
Robinsons Land Corp., GMA Holdings, Inc., Philippine Long Distance Teiephone Co., Petron
Corporation, Bank of the Philippine Istands, Asian Terminals, and a regular Director of Joliibee
Foods Corporation. He is also a Senior Adviser of Metropolitan Bank, Chairman, Board of
Advisers of Metrobank Foundation, Adviser of Double Dragon Properties, Chairman of the
Board of the Foundation for Liberty and Prosperity, President of the Manila Cathedral Basilica
Eoundation, Chairman Emeritus of Philippine Dispute Resolution Center, Inc., and Member,
Advisory Board of the World Bank (Philippines) and of the Asian Institute of Management
Corporate Governance Coungcil. He also is & column writer of The Philippine Daily Inguirer.

Upon his retirement, he was unanimously conferred a Plaque of Acclamation by the Associats

Justices of the Supreme Court as the “Renaissance Jurist of the 21st Century;” and an Awgrd
of Honor by the Philippine Bar Association. In recognition of his role as a jurist, lawysr, CiVIC

il



leader, Catholic lay worker, business entrepreneur and youth leader, he had been the recipient
of over 250 other awards from various governments, civic clubs, consumer associations, bar
groups, religious movements and other _non-government organizations, both local and

international.

He obtained his Associate in Arts, “With Highest Honors™ and later his Bachelor of Laws, with
cum laude and “Most Outstanding student” honors from the Far Eastern University. He placed
sixth among more than 4,200 candidates who took the 1960 Bar examinatiors. He is likewise
the recipient of several honorary doctoral degrees from various universities.

Atty. Roberto O. Parel, Filipino, 59 years old, has been the Corporate Secretary of the-
Company since 1993. He is a Partner at the Law Firm of Bslo Gozon Elma Parel Asuncion &
Lucila. His practice areas include labor relations, natural resources anc intellectual property. He
is a Director of Time-Life International Philippines, Berong Nickel Corporation, Ulugan Nickel
Corporation, Ulugan Resources Holdings, inc., Nickeline Resources Holdings, inc., TMM
Management inc. and Assetlex Development Company, Inc. Corporate Secretary of Alta
Productions Group, Inc., Scenarios, Inc., Citynet Network Marketing and Productions, Inc. and

GMA Kapuso Foundation, inc.

He graduated from the University of the Philippines with a Bachelor of Arts degree in
Philosophy and a Bachelor of Laws degree. He was admitted o the Philippine Bar in 1881. Atty.
Parel further pursued lsgal studies through short programs at the Center of American and,
International Law and the Southwestern Legal Foundation in Dallas, Texas. Later, he attended
a training program on industrial Property Rights held by the Japan Institute of invention and
Innovation and the Association for Overseas Technical Scholarship in Tokyo, Japan.

Atty. Anna Teresa G. Abrogar, Filipinc, 43 years old, has been a Director of the Company
“since 2000. Atty. Anna Teresa G. Abrogar graduated valedictorian from grade school and high
school at Colegio San Agustin. She graduated cum laude, BS Management Engineering from
- Ateneo de Manila University and obtained her Bachelor of Laws degree from the University of
the Philippines where she graduated valedictorian, cum laude. She later obtained her Master of

L aws from Harvard University.

She is a junior pariner in.Belo Gozon Elma Parel Asuncion & Lucila and was an Associate
Professor in the University of the Philippines, Coliege of Law where she taught taxation.

She is currently Programming Consultant to the Chairman/CEQ of GMA Network, Inc. and the -
president of GMA Films, Inc. and GMA Worldwide, inc. She is a frustee of GMA Kapuso

Foundation.

49 years old, is the Senior Vice President of GMA’s Finance and
d his Bachelor of Science in Business and Economics degres,
major in Accounting from De La Salle University. He attended the Master in Business
Administration Program from the same university and completed the Executive Development
Program of the Asian Institute of Management. He is 2 Certified Public Accountant with
expertise in the fields of accounting, auditing, finance, taxation and general management. He
was formerly the Assistant Vice President of Controllership of ABS-CBN and aiso served as its

Ronaido P. Mastriii, Filipino,
ICT Departments. He obtaine

12



Group Internal Auditor before joining GMA Network in March 2001. He also worked with SGV
and Co. in the early part of his career. Mr. Mastrili concurrently holds key positions in GMA
Subsidiaries namely: Comptroller/Chief Accounting Officer of GMA Holdings, Treasurer of Alta
Productions, Director of Script2010, and Comptroller of GMA Films, GMA Kapuso Foundation

and GMA Worldwide.

Significant Employees

Although the Company will continue to rely on the individual and collective contributions of their”
executive officers, the Company is not dependent on the services of any particular empioyee.

Family Relationships

Anna Teresa M. Gozon-Abrogar is the daughter of Felipe L. Gozon. Felipe L. Gozon's sister,
Carolina L. Gozon Jimenez, is the mother of Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez. : : .

involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings

To the best of the Company’s knowiedge, during the past five years and up fo the date of this
information Statement, there has been no occurrence of any of the following events which are
material to an evaluation of the ability or integrity of any director, person nominated to become
a director, executive officer, or control person of the Company.

e Any filing of an insolvency of bankruptcy petition by or against any business of which
such person was & general partner or executive officer, either at the fime of the

insolvency or within two years prior to that fime;

« Any conviction by final judgment in a criminal proceedihg, domestic or foreign, or any
pending criminal proceeding, domestic or foreign, of any such person, excluding traffic
violations and other minor offenses; - '

« Any final and executory order, judgment, or decree of any court of competent
jurisdiction, domestic or foreign, against any such person, permanently or temporarily
enjoining, barring, suspending, or otherwise limiting involvement in any typs of business,

securities, commodities, of banking activities, and

+ Any final and executory judgment of any such person by a domestic or foreign court of
competent jurisdiction (in a civil action), the SEC, or comparable foreign body, or a
domestic or foreign exchange or electronic marketplace or self-regulatory organization,

for violation of a securifies or commodities law.
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Resignation of Directors

No director has resigned or declined to stand for re-election 1o the Board of Directors since the
date of the initial organization of the Company because of a disagreement with the Company on

matters relating to the Company’s operations, policies and practices.

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

On May 30, 2008, the Company engaged as its legal counse! Belo Gozon Elma Parel Asuncion
- & Lucila. (“BGEPAL") where Atty. Felipe L. Gozon is a Senior Partner. Atty. Gozon is the
Chairman and one of the major stockholders of the Company. The Company-and BGEPAL are
currently negotiating the fees in relation to the services provided, ensuring that the same is

done on an arm’s length basis.

On July 30, 2007, the Company issued PDRs relating to GMA Network, inc. Common Shares.
The proceeds owing to the selling shareholders of GMA Network, Inc. (“Selling Shareholders”)
whose Common Shares formed the underlying shares of the PDRs in the Company's Initial
Public Offering were initially held by the Company then remitted to these Selling Shareholders.

Please see Note 10 of the Company’s Financial Statements.

Other than the foregoing, the Company has had no material transactions during the past two
years, nor is any material transaction presently proposed between the Company and parties
that fall outside the definition of “related parties” under SFAS/IAS Nao. 24, but with whom the

registrants or its related parties have a relationship that enables the parties to negotiate terms
of material transactions that may not be availed from other, more clearly independent parties on

an arm’s length basis.

ltem 6. Compensatioh of Directors and Executive Officers

Compensation of Directors and Exscutive Officers

The following sets forth the summary of the Company's compensation to its executive officers:

Name and Position

Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr. President and Chief Execufive Officer
Felipe S. Yalong Chief Financial Officer/ Chief Operating Officer
 Ronaldo P. Mastrili Chief Accounting Officer/ Comptrolier
Year Salaries Bonuses Other . Total
(in (in income. {in
thousands) thousands) . thousands)
CEO and the highest :

compensated officers named 2012
above |
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2013 , - - - -
2014 - ‘ - - -
2015 - - - -
(estimate) ‘ :
Aggregate compensation paid
to all officers and directors as 2012 - - -
a group unnamed _ ,
2013 - - - ' -
2014 - oo- - -
2015 )
{estimate) ,_ )

No director or officer receives. or has received compensation for their services. The By-Laws of

the Company however, provides - that each director -is entitled to a reasonable per diem
allowance for attendance at each meeling of the Board of Directors. The By-Laws further
provide that the Board may receive and allocate an amount of not more-than 10% of the net
income before income tax of the corporation during the preceding year. Such compensation
shall be determined and apportioned among the directors in such manner as the Board may
deem proper, subject to the approval of the stockholders representing at least a majority of the

stockholders.

The Company has no other arrangement with regard to the remuneration of its existing
directors and officers aside from the compensation received as herein stated. '

Employment Contracts. Termination of Employment, Chanqe-in-cdntrol Arrangements

The directors and executive officers do not have any employment contracts, and are elected to
their respective positions on 2 yearly basis. The Company has no compensatory plans or
arrangements with respect to any executive officer that would result from the resignation, .
retirement or any other termination of such executive officer's employment. ~

ltem 7. independent Public Accountants

{a) SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co. ("SGV & Co.") has acted as the Company’s external
auditors since 2007. SGV & Co. is being recommended for re-alection at the scheduled

Annual Stockholders’ Meeting on August 13, 2013.

for the current year and for the most recently compieted
e Annual Stockholders’ Mesfing. They will
hey desire to do 80 and are expected to be

(b) Representatives of SGV & Co.
fiscal year are éxpected o be present at th
have the opportunity to make a statement if t
available to respond to appropriate questions.

Thé Company hecame publicly listed with the Philippine Stock Exchange on July 30,
2007. Pursuant to Ruie 68 paragraph 3 (b) {iv}, the Company has engaged Ms.
Marydith C. Miguel, partner of SGV & Ca., fo sign the Company's 2014audited financial

statements.
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(c) Changes in and disagreements with accountants on accounting and financial disciosure.

The Company has not had any disagreements on accounting and financial disclosures
with its current external auditors during the two most recent fiscal years or any

subsaquent interim period.

(d) SGV & Co. professional fees billed for its year-end financial audit of the Company
covering the years 2013, 2012 and 2011 amounted to P75 thousand per year. These
included the fees related to financial audit and services for general tax compliance. No

other fees of any nature were paid.

(d) The Company’s Audit Committee was formed in 2008. The Audit Committee reviews the
fee arrangements with the external auditor and recommends the same to the Board of’

Directors.

The members of the Audit Committee are as foliows:
Dr. Jaime C. Laya (Chairman)

Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr.

Chief Justice Artemio’V. Panganiban

Felipe S. Yalong (Corporate Treasurer)

ltem 8. Compensation Pians

No action shall be taken with respect to any plan pursuant to which cash or non-cash

compensation may be paid or distributed,

C. 1ISSUANCE AND EXCHANGE OF SECURITIES
item 9. Authorization or Issuance of Securities Other than for Exchange

No action shall be taken with respect to the ‘authorization or issuance of any 8
otherwise than for exchange for outstanding securities of the Company.

ltem 10. Modification or Exchange of Securities

ecurities

No action shall be taken with respect to the modification of any class of securities of the

Company, or the issuance Of authorization for issuance of one giass ©
Company in exchange for outstanding securities of another class.
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Item 11. Financial and Other Informafion

" In connection with ltem 11 hereof, the Company has incorporated by reference the following‘as
contained in the Management Report prepared in accordance with Rule 68 of the Securities

and Regulation Code:
a. Audited Financial Stétemen.ts for December 31, 2013 and 2014;
b. Management's Discussion and Analysis or plan of operation; and

o. Information on business overview, properties, legal proceedings, market price of
securities and dividends paid out, and corporate governance :

ltem 12. Mergers, Consofidations, Acquisitions and Similar Matters

‘No action is to be taken with respect to-the mergers, consolidations, acquisitions ‘and similar
matters. L '

ltem 13. Acquisition or Disposition of Property

No action is to be taken with respect to the acquisition or disposition of any property.

ltem 14. Restatement of Accounts

No action is to be taken with respect to the restatement of any asset, capital or surplus account
of the Company. . ' : -

D. OTHER MATTERS

[tem 15. Action with Respect to Reports

a. Approval of the Anhual Report of Management and the Audited Financial
Statements for the year ending December 31, 2014.

b. Approval of the Minutes of the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting held on May 31, 2013:
The salient matters are summarized as follows:

(1) Approval of the Minutes of the Stockholders’ Meeting hetd on May 25, 2012

(2) Report of the President ‘
(3) Ratification of Acts of the Board of Directors for the Previous Year

(4) Amendment of the Articles of incorporation to state the specific address of
the Corporation’s principal office pursuant to SEC MC No. 8, Series of 2014

(5) Election of Directors, including the independent Directors
(8) Election of the External Auditor -
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c. Ratification of Acts of the Bg

ltem 16. Matters Not Required to be i

All actions or matters to be submitted in

> Approval of bot
> Appointment of
> Approval of the
> Approval of the

> Approval of the

All acts and resq
the period covel
ordinary course

2014

Meeting

ard of Directors for the previous year

slutions of the Board of Directors and Management for
ing May 31, 2014 to August.13, 2015 adopted in the

Hf business involving _
rowings, opening of accounts and bank transactions;

signatories;
minutes of the organizational meeting last May 30,

record daté aﬁd_ venue of the Annual Stockhoiders’

Financial Statements

Submitted

the meeting will require the vote of the security holders.

kem 17. Amendment of Charter, Bylaws or Other Documents

Upon approval of the stockholders, the
amended to state the specific address
No. 6, Series of 2014.

ltem 18. Other Proposed Action

(a) Ratification of the Acts of th

()

> Approval of th

Declaration of

on April 2, 2014 to PDR Holders. The record d
who were entitled to receive the cash amounts was on April 2

(Thursday) [the

and the cash amounts were distributed to the
2014 (Tuesday).

All acts and resolutions of the Board
the period covering May 31, 2013

ordinary course

> Approval of borrowings, opening of accounts an
> Appointment of signatories;
> Approval of th

2014

Meeting

Articles of Incorporation of the Company will be further
of the Company’s principal office pursuant to SEC MC

= RBoard of Directors/Corporate Officers:

sash Dividends of P0.27 per share by GMA Network: Inc.

ate for the PDR holders
4, 2014

same record date for GMA Network, Inc. stockholders]
PDR hoiders on May 20,

of Directors and Managerﬁent for
to May 30, 2014 adopted in the

of business invoiving
d bank transactions;

& minutes of the organizational meeting last Méy 30,

& record date and venue of the Annual Stockholders’

> Approvatl of the Financial Statements
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(b) Election of the Members of the Board of Directors, including two independent
directors for the ensuing calendar year

(c) Election of the External Auditor

Item 19. Voting Procedures

(a) Vote Required: Motions, in general, require the affirmative vote of a majority of the shares
of the Company’s common stock present and/or represented and entitied to vote. However,
under Philippine law, certain proposed actions may require the vote of at least two thirds
(2/3) of the outstanding capital stock of the Company. The manner of voting is non-
cumulative, except as to the election of directors. ' :

(b) Method: Straight and cumulative voting. In the election of directors, the five (5) nominees
garnering the highest number of votes shall be elected directors. The stockholder may vote
such number of shares for as many person as there are directors to be elected, or he may
cumulate said shares and give one candidate as many votes as the number of directors to
be elected, or he may distribute them on the same principie among as many candidates as
he shall see fit; provided, the total number of votes cast by him shall not exceed the number .
of shares owned by him multiplied by the number. of directors to be elected.

If there are more than five nominees, voting shall be done by secret ballot. If there are only'
five nominees, voting shall be done by a show of hands.

The Corporate Secretary or the Secretary of the meeting shall be responsible for validating
the votes if the voting is done by sacret baliot, The Corporate Secretary or the Secretary of
the meeting shalt likewise be responsible if the voting is done by a show of hands.

Other than the nominees’ election as directors, no director, executive officer, nominge or
associate of the nominees has any substantial interest, direct or indirect by security holdings or
otherwise in any way of the matters to be taken upon during the meeting. The Company has not
received any information that an officer, director or stockholder intends to oppose any action to

be taken at the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting.

Upon written request of the stockholders, the Company undertakes to furnish said
stockholder with a copy of the SEC Form 17-A free of charge. Any written request for a
copy of the SEC Form {'7-A shall be addressed to the following:

GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

9/F GMA NETWORK CENTER
EDSA corner Timog Avenue
Diliman, Quezon City

Attention: Ronaldo P. Mastriii
Chief Accounting Officer
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The Company’s first quarter interim financial report is attached herewith and is aiso
available in the Company’s website.

SIGNATURE PAGE

After reasonable inquiry and to the best of my knowledge and belief, | certify that the

information set forth in this report is true, cbmplete and correct. This report is signed. in the City of

Makati on ﬁmlg 23,2015

GMA HOLDINGS, INC.
By:

e w,ZM%// |

 ANNA-TERESA M. GOZON At ROGAR
Corporate Secrefary
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MANAGEMENT’S REPORT

i, Business

GMA Holdings, Inc., (the “Company” or “GHI") was incorporated on February 15, 2006. As a -
holding Company, its primary purpose is to invest in, purchasg, or otherwise acquire own, hold,
use. sell, assign, transfer, morigage, pledge, exchange, or otherwise dispose of real and
personal property, including, but not limited fo stocks, bonds and debentures. The Company

has no subsidiaries.

The Philippine Deposit Receipts (“PDRs") issued by the Company were listed with ‘the
Philippine Stock Exchange (“PSE™) on July 30, 2007. :

GHI does nat engage in any other business or purpose except in relation to the issuance of the
PDRs reiating to the GMA Network, inc. common shares (“Common Shares”) for as long as the
PDRs are outstanding. GHI has undertaken to perform the obligations under the PDRs and the
acguisition and holding of the Common Shares underlying the PDRs, which includes
maintaining the listing with the PSE, and maintaining its status as a Philippine person for as
long as Philippine law prohibits ownership of Common Shares by non-Philippine persons.

The registered office address of the Company is Unit 5D Tower One, One McKinley Place, New
Bonifacio Global City, Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City. o

Transactions with/and or dependence on related parties:

Not applicable.

Employees

rch 31, 2013 and does not anticipate in

The Company had no full-time employess as of Ma
No labor unions are present within the

hiting any employees within the next 12 months.
Company.

i Properties

The Company does not own any real property. The Company does not lease any real property

and does not intend to acquire any within the next 12 months.

i Legal Proceedings

The Company is not, and has not been, a party to any legal proceeding.
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IV. Market for Issuer's Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters

Market Information

The Company first offered PDRs relating' to GMA Network, Inc. Common Shares on July 30,
2007. These PDRs were listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange on the same date. _

2014 Stock Prices (GMAP)
Period.in 2014 Highest Closing ‘Lowest Closing
Q0 9.00 7 7.78
2Q 8.00 7.30
3Q 7.45 6.82
4Q 6.95 5.99

The Company's Philippine Deposit Receipts have been listed with the Philippine Stock -
Exchange since 2007. The price information as of the close of the latest practicable trading

date, July 21, 2015, is P6.35 for GMAP (PDRs).

Holders

The total number of shareholders as of June 30, 2015 was seven. The number of shares
subscribed as of June 30, 2015 was 10,000 or P100,000.00. All the common sharehoiders of

are listed hereunder:

Name of Shareholder No. of Shares Subscribed Percentage of Ownership
Felipe L. Gozon o 3,330 : 33.30
Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr. . 3,330 ' 33.30
Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez : 3,330 33.30
Artemio V. Panganiban : 4 04
Manugl P. Quiogue 4 ‘ .04
Jaime C. Laya 1 .01
Felipe S. Yalong 1 ' .01

Total 10,000 - 100.00

Dividend Information

Dividends shall be declared only from the surplus profits of the corporation and shall be payable
at such times and in such amounis as the Board of Directors shail determine, either in cash,
shares or property of the Company, or & combination of the three, as said Board of Directors
shall determine. The declaration of stock dividends, however, is subject to the approval of at
least two-thirds of the outstanding capital stock. No dividend which will impair the capital of the

Company shali be declared.

The company has no dividend declaration in 2013.
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in 2012, the Company declared P259 per share cash dividends amounting to P2.59 h‘;iilion to all
stockholders of record as at May 25, 2012. This was paid on June 8, 2012.

The company has no dividend declaration in 2011.

The Company has not and will not engage in any other business or purpose except in relation
to the issuance of the PDRs relating {0 the underlying Common Shares for as long as the PDRs

are outstanding.

Any cash dividends distributed in respect of Common Shares underlying the PDRs received by
the Company shall be applied towards its operating expenses then due for the preceding and
current year. A further amount equal to the operating expenses in the preceding year shall be
set aside to meet operating or other expenses for the succeeding year. Amounts remaining.in
excess of such requirements shall be distributed pro rata amongst the outstanding PDRs.

Whenever the Company shail receive or become entitled to receive from the GMA Network, nc.
any distribution in respect of the Common Shares which consists of a free distribution of
Common Shares, the Company shall grant additional PDRs to holders in respect of such

distributions.

Whenever the Company shall receive or become entitled to receive from the GMA Network, Inc.
any distribution in securities (other than Common Shares) or in other property (other than cash)
in respect of the Common Shares subject to the PDRs, the Company shall forthwith procure
delivery of such securities or other property pro rata to PDR holders or otherwise to the order.of
the PDR holder, subject to compliance with applicable laws and regulations in the Philippines.

There are no restrictions on the Company’s ability to pay dividends on common equity.-

Recent Sales of Unregistered or Exempt Securities

No sale of unregistered or exempt securities of the Company has occurred within the past three |

years.

V. Management's Discussion and Analysis or Plan of Operation.

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the Financial Statements of the
Company that are incorporated into this information Statement by reference. Such Financial
1atements have been prepared in accordance with Philippine GAAP. ‘

As discussed in the previous section, the Company has not and will not engage in any other
business or purpose except in relation to the issuance of the PDRs relating to the underlying

GMA Network, tnc. Common Shares for as long as the PDRs are outstanding.

Any cash dividends or other cash distributions distributed in respect of Common Shares
raceived by the Company {or the Pledge Trusiee on its behalf) shall be applied toward the
operating expenses then due {including but not limited to applicable taxes, fees and
maintenance costs charged by the Philippine Stock Exchange) of the Company (the “Operating
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Expenses”) for the current .and preceding year (as certified by an independent auditor). A
~ further amount equal fo the operating expenses in the preceding year (as certified by an
independent auditor) (the “Operating Fund”) shall be set aside to meet operating or other
expenses for the succeeding year. Any amount in excess of the aggregate of the Operating
Expenses paid and the Operating Fund for such period (as certified by the independent auditor
of the PDR Issuer) shall be distributed to Holders pro rata on the first Business Day after such

cash dividends are received by the Company.

On April 2, 2014, the Company approved a cash distribution to PDR holders of P0.27 per share,
in relation to dividends declared by GMA, totaling to P231.53 million to all shareholders of
record as at April 24, 2014. These were remitted to PDR holders on May 20, 2014.

On April 24, 2013, the Company approved a cash distribution to PDR holders of P0.25 per’
share, in relation to dividends dectared by GMA, to all stockholders of record as of April 17,

2013. These were remitted to PDR holders on May 15, 2013.

On August 1, 2012, the Company approved a cash distribution to PDR holders of PC.26 per
share, in relation to dividends declared by GMA, totaling t© P223.87 miliion to all shareholders
of record as at August 22, 2012. These were remitted to PDR holders on September 14, 2012.

On March 28, 2012, the Company approved a cash distribution to PDR holders of P0.40 per
share, in relation to dividends declared by GMA, totaling to P344.62 million to all shareholders
of record as at April 16, 2012. These were remitted to PDR holders on May €, 2012.

On March 11, 2011, the Company approved cash distribution to PDR holders of P0.45 per
share, in relation to dividends declared by GMA, totaling to P387.88 million to all sharehoiders
of racord as at April 8, 2011, These were remitted.to PDR holders on May 8, 2011. '

. KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The Company's key performance indicators are focused on the dividends it receives to meet
PDR holders’ expectations and monitor cash and cash equivalents levels to mest its obligations

with respect to the Company’s current and preceding year's operation..

" Results of Operations of GMA Hoidings inc. for the years ended December 31, 2014 and

2013
r with a pre-tax income of P607 thousand, a turnaround from

last year's losses of P139 thousand as a resdult of higher revenues coupled with lower operating
expenses. Likewise, net income after tax amounted to P350 thousand, an increase of P730
thousand from P380 thousand loss in 2013. This year's revenues reached P1.65 million, an
improvement of 37% or P446 thousand from last year's level of P1.21 million mainly brought
about by the conversion of 9.16 million PDR shares o common shares versus none in

comparative period.

GMA Holdings Inc. ended the yea

On the other hand, operating expenses of P1.05M decreased by 22% or P299 thousand from
P1.34 million in 2013 on account of lower professional fees and listing fees. Listing fees of
PEY0 thousand deciined by 14% of P109 thousand as an offshoot of lower market cap.
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Professional fees for the services of law firm, trust fees and audit fees went down by 42% to
only P280K as a result of the reduced billing for legal and other corporate housekeeping

services.

On March 30, 2615, the management approved cash dividend declaration of P500 thousand to
stockholders of record as at December 31, 2014, ‘

Einancial Condition. Total assets totaled P48.91 million, a tad higher than last year's P48.28
million due to purchase of TIER Il note, transferring P21.00M cash equivalents to AFS

investment measured at fair value of P21.80 million.

KEY VARIABLE AND OTHER QUALITATIVE OR QUANTITATIVE FACTORS

i Trends, demands, commitments, events or uncertainties that will have a material
impact on the issuer’s figuidity.

As of December 31, 2014, there were no known trends, demands, commitments, -
events or uncertainties that will have a material impact on.the issuer’s liquidity. ‘

i. Events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligation that is material to the
company, including any default or acceleration or an obligation.

As of December 31, 2014, there were no events which may trigger a direct or
contingent financial obligation that is matertal to the Company.

iii. Material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (including
contingent obligations), and other relations of the company with unconsolidated

entities or other persons created during the reporting period.

There were no off-balance sheet transactions, érrangemants, obligations (including
contingent obligations), and other relations of the company with unconsolidated
entities or other persons created during the reporting period.

iv. Material commitments for capital éxpenditures, the general purpose -of such
commitments and the expected sources of funds for such expenditures.

For 2014, there were no material commitments for capital expenditures.

V. Any known trends, events of uncertainties that have had.or that are reasonably
expected to have 2 material favorable or unfavorable impact on net

sales/revenues/income from continuing operations.
The. Company’s results of dperations depend largely on its ability to meet PDR

holders’ expectations from the dividends it receives an
equivalents levels 10 meet its obligations with respect to the Company’s current and

preceding year’s operation. There are no known frends, avents or uncertainties that
are reasonably expected to have a material favorable or unfavorable impact on net

sales/revenues/income from continuing operations.
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vi. Significant elements of income or loss that did not arise from the Company’'s
continuing operations. '

As of December 31, 2014, there were no significant elements of income or loss that
did not arise from the issuer’s continuing operations.

vil. Causes for Material Changes in the Financial Statementsl

Balance Sheet (December 31, 2014 vs. December 31, 2013)

« Cash and cash equivalent decreased byP21 million to only P26.67 million as a
result of the purchase of Tier il note, transferring the .cash equivalents 1o
investments. ' _

« Accounts payable and accrued expenses declined by 61% to P286 thousand,
due to lower billing for legal fees and other services. :

viil. Seasonal aspects that had a material effect on the financial condition or results of
operations. ‘

There are no -seasonal aspects that nad a materiai effect on the financial condition
or results of operations. '

INTERIM PERIODS

The Company’s first quarter interim financial report is attached herewith and is alsc
available in the Company’s website. . '

Vi Corporate Governance

The Board of Directors has established a set of policies and initiatives to ensure that GMA
Holding's business practices are compliant with the best practices in corporate governance.
On March 31, 2011, a Manual on Corporate Governance was submitted to the Securities and
Exchange Commission in compiiance with SEC Memorandum Circular 6, Series of 2009.

The Manual sets out the principles of . good management and defines the specific
responsibilities of the Board, the Board Committees, and Management within the over-all

governance framework.

The Manual conforms to the raquirements of the Philippine Securities and Exchange

Commission and covers policies, among others:

{a) independent directors, (b) key board commitiees (e.g. Executive Committee, Nomination

Committee, Audit Commitiee, Compensation and Remuneration Commitiee); (c) independent
auditors, (d) internal audit, (e) disclosure system of company's governance policies, (f)
stockholder rights, (g) monitoring and assessment, and (h) penalties for non-compliance.
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On November 6, 2012, the Board designated a Compliance Officer, Atty. Roberto O. Parel, who
at the same time holds the designation of Vice-President. The Compliance Officer is
responsible for monitoring compliance by the Company with the provisions and requirements of

good corporate governance.

Based on the 2014 Updates of the Annuél-Corporate vaernance' Manual which the Company
filed on Company’s Manual filed with the Commission, there have been no deviations from the

Company’s Manual as of date.

Vil. Financial Statements
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‘ . SEC FORM 17-Q . ,
QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TQ SECTION 17 OF THE SECURITIES
BEGULATION CODE AND SRC RULE 17(2)(i) THEREUNDIR

1. For the quartsrly period ended March 3L, 2015

5 SEC identification Number (8200602356
5. BIR Tax ldentification ™o, 2 44-658-896-000
4. Exact name of igsuer a3 specified in its charter GIVLA Holdings, Ing.

5 Philinpiugs

Province, coumiry of other jurisdiction of incorporation

6. (SEC Use Only)
Tndusiry Classification Code

7. Unit 5D Tower One, One McKiniey Placs |
New Bonifacio Global ity Fort HBenifacio. Tagy
Address of principal pifice '

lssuer's ielephone number, including arga cods

g, Not applieaBle cosennareepearsss st .

Eormer name of former address, if changed since

af the SRT and Gections 4 and & of the RSA

10, Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12

Number of Shares of Common Stoclk

Title of Bagh Class
. Outgtanding and Amourit af Debt
Qutsmnding..,,..g.....,....‘

philippine Depositary Receipts (PDRs} 846,380,000 shares
11. Are any or all of the securities fisted on a Stock Exchange?
Yes [v] No ]

12, Indicate by oheck mark whether the registrant:

fled by Section 17 of the Code and SRC Ruls 17
thereunder or Gections 11 of the RSA and RSA Ruje 11{e)-1 thereunder, and Sections 26 andk
‘141 of the Corpdration’ Code of the Philippings, during the nreceding swelve (12) months (or
ooy such shorter period the registrant was required 1o file such reports)

ves [¥1 No N

(a) has filed all rapérts required fo be

{ty) has besn subject to such filing réquirements for the, past ninety (90) days.

ves [v] No []
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- improvement from last ye

MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIE OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FOR THE THEREE VIONTEHS ENDED MARCH 31,2015

aMA Holdings, Ine. ended the first quarter‘ of 2015 with 8 pre-tax incorme of 8255 thousand, an
ar's pre-tax income of 14 thousand 25 & resuit of igher revenues coupled with

lower operating BXpenacs. Likewise, net income after tax amounted 1o 27310 thousand, & reversal from last

year’s 105528 of 243 thousand.
d, an improvement of 79% or PL27 thousand from last year's F286

thougand brought about by higher interest income earned from its ten-year UnionBank of the Philippines
(UBP) Tier 11 Note purchesed last Novembper 2014, and dus 10 the conversion of 1.47 million PDR shares
{0 common shares generating exerciss fees of P48 thousand versus none in campm*ative period, ‘

Revenues reached P313 thousan

xpenses went down by 5% to 255 tlmusaﬁd from B272 thousand in 2014 mainly dug to lower

fees. Listing fees of P14 thousand dropped by. 17% from B173 {housand last year as ail
gxpired portion. of listing fee amounting to B432 thousand was

nt assets” in the statements of financial position.

Operating &
PSE listing
offshoot of lower market cap. The un
ghown under “Prepaid sXpenses and pther cutre

professional fess settled at R106 thousand, 33% moTs than the P79 thousand posted 8 year, ngo which
inciuded services of & taw firm, trust fees and audit fees, TExes and ljcenses rep;esanﬁug amuytizatign of
Jocal husiness tex for the quarter amounted to B2 thousand versus 11 thousand in 2014 dus to lower 1ax

basge.

Financial Condition : ‘ ,
Totel assets amounted to 248.81 million a tad lower versus end-2014"5 243,91 miliion primarily due to
for-sale investment which was estimaied using the

the decrease in fair market veiue of available
discounted cash flow method, ‘

KLY PERF ORMANCE INDICATORS
The Company’s key performange indicators are foeused oo fhe dividends it reesives to mest PDR
holders® expectations and monitor cash and cash equivalents levels to meet its chiigations Witls respect to

the Company's current and preceding year's gperation,

KEY VARIABLE AKD OTERER QUALITATIVE Of{ Q‘UMTYP ATTVE FACTORE

a) Trends, demands, commitments, events of uneertainties that will have & muterial impact 00 the
isauer's Houidity.
1 trends, demands, commitments, svents oF uricartainties

As of March 31, 2015 fhere were no know
that will have 8 material impact on the issuar’s Houldity.
b) Events that will trigger divect or contingetil Finencial obligation ¢nat is material to the company,

-ineluding any. default or aceeleration or an obligation



c)

d)

&)

3]

" pxpected SQUICES of funds for such expendiures.

- gyenfs or uncertainties that are red

As of March 31, 2015, there were no events which may trigger a direct Of contingent financial

abligation that is material to the Compeny.
abligations (including contingsnt obligations);

Matarial off-balance sheet transgetions; arrangements,
ities or other persons created during

and other relationships of e company with unconsolidated. ent
the reporting period.

off-balance sheet transacticns, arrangements, obiigations (including gontingent

There were 6
y with unconsolidated entities oF other persons

oliligatipns), and other relationships of the compan
craated during the reporting period. -

Maferial commitments for capite] expendiburss, the generel purpase of such commitments and the

For the period January 1, 2015 to March 31, 2015, thers were 1o commitments for cepital

gxpenditures.
a

eyents or uneertainties that have had or that are reasonably sxpected Lo have 2

Any known trends,
les/revenuss/income from continuing operations.

material favarable or unfavarable impact on et 52
on fis ability to mest PDR hotders’ expetations
sivalents levels to meet its obligations -
peration. There are no knowr trends,

material favorable or unfavorable -

The Company’s results of pperations depend largely
from the dividends it receives and to manitor cash and cash &g

with respect to the Company’s curreit and preceding year's 0
songbly expected fo have 2

{mpact on nét splesfrevenues/income from continuing pperations.

Aty significant elements of income of loss that did arise from the issuer’s continuing operations.

A5 of Merch 31, 7015, there were no gignificant sjements of income of lgss that did arise from the

1zsuer’s continiing pperations.

Causes for material changes in the Financial Statements,

Satements of ipaneiat Position Marg
¢ Cash and cash gguivalents decreased by R378 ihousand to £26.29 million as & result of the’
transfer of cash piacament with UBP'S available-for-sale Tier 11 Note,
jes, oﬁ the other harnd increased by 8399 thousend to P4&.11 million due to the

e Cuirent Liabilit i
{abilitize to governmeil agencies.

cash dividend payabie and unpaid |

ngasanal aspects that had o material effect o the financial condition or resulis of operations.

There arg 1o geasonal t on the finaneial candition ar results of

aspects tial had & material effec
operations. ‘



GMA HOLDINGS, INC.
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

V
' ' March 31, 2015

R —
December 31, 2014

| ' Unaudited : Audited
ARSETE ' ‘
Current Assets , ‘ - - |
Cash and cash equlvatents (MNotes & and 13} $726,287,206 £26,663,221
Accounts receivable (Mote 13} 308,834 183,387
865,260 304,000

Prepaid expenses and other current asgals

Total Current Assets 27,461,300 $727,152,608

. Noncurrent Asset ‘ ]
Avaitable-for-sale tvesgment (Notss 7 and 14) $21,348,503 $21,759,216
— 48,500,893 P4R,011,824

1 IABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current Liabilities '

Accounis payable and other current liabilities (Notes g and 13) 7339,878 #741,194
Dividends payable (Note 9) . 800,000 ‘ -
Due to shargholders otzs 12 and 13) 417,271,600 47,271,600
\ Total Current T labilities 748,111,478 . #47,512,794
Noneurrent Liability , '
Deferred 1A% Rability (Nois 11 »104,578 $227.765

Total Liabiiities

Equity (Note 9y _ : : ,
Capilal ptonk o : F100,000 £100,000
Retnined earnings R _ 245,822 539,814
Unreglized gain on available-for-saie investment - netof X '

{Note 7 X 244,015 . 531,451
Total Equit PY,171,265

48,809,893 p4g 911,824

mancial Staienehts.

Tua aecompaiing Nates te T



GViA HOLDINGS, INC. :
UNAUDITED STATEMENTS OF COMPREBENSIVE INCOME

For Three Monlths Tnded Marchi 31

‘ . 2018 2614
REVENUES | | o |
Interest income (Notes & and 7) ' 447,899 286,113
Exercise fees (Note 5) ‘ 65,402 -
o - . 513,301 #286,113
OPER&TING IXPENSES (Mote 1] P258,527 ) 271,639
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX ‘ p254,774 | - pi447s
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX (Note 11) . : o
Current . - -
44,760 57,223

Final

OTHER COM?REHENSWE LSS
Jtew to be reclassified to profit of Joss fir yubsequent periods-

Unrealized loss on availeble-for-sake investment - net of tax oo .

(Note 7}
£OTAL COMPREBENSIVELOSS (P77,428) (Pa2,749)_
Busie/Diluted Tarnings (Loss) Per Share (Mote 15) 771.00 (Pd.27)

Tag aceohpanying Nates o Fligzznctc:f SieHements.

~3



GMA HOLDINGS, INC.
HANGES IN EQUITY

STATEMENTS OF ¢
Dnreslized Gain on

Retnined Availnble-for-sale

Capital
Earnings Investment - Net of

Balances gs at fanury

Net ineome
Otlrer con rehensive loss

~ 210,008 ‘

- ote 9) Tax (Note 7
1, 2018 s ?53?,814 . P531,451 P1,17 1,265
- 116,008

losg) . )  (P287,436) (F77,428)
] : = 500,000}

Tetal comp rehensive income {

Cash dividends -
Balonces as ot Warch 31, 2018 100,000 249,812 £144,015 w543, 837
180,628 P280,628
(p42,745)

"Balances &s 4l January i, 2014 #100,000 P -
RECYPRTE) , .

Nat loss
Other comprehensive income {loss)

e 4
Total comprehensive lpss

- [
(P42,748

P246,.879_ .

iyt

_Iialances as at Mareh 31, 2014

M -
Sye queonlpaniing Nofex lg Fiamnelal Shatenents.



 GMA HOLDING INC.
‘ STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Thres Months Ended March 31

o 2015 2014
FASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES ‘
Income hefore income 83 ‘ _ F254,774 P14,474
Non-cash adjustiments to reconcile income Lefore income tax 10 net
cash flows- : ‘ :
interest inGotne : ‘ (447,829} . [2B6,113)
Wworking capital adjustments:
o Increases in ' ‘
Avcounts receivabie o : {73,251) ‘ -
Prepaid expenses and other current assets - (561,260} (697,448)
Decrease) iNgraase in accounts payable and eccrued SXpENSEs. . 98,684 (513,934}
Met cash usec in operating activities | (F728,952) (Pl 483,021)
Iterest recetved : 305,703 327,897
44,766) (57,220

Final taxes aid
{P1 ,312,347)

Net casl used in O erafirl

g activities

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASE AND CASH EQUIV. ALENTS AT BEGINNING OF THE

PERIOD
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE g
» | \ F26287,206  PA6SI764L

___PERIOD \

W :
Sae gecampanying Nptes to F inanelal Statenents.

{1’373,,915) (P1,312,347)

726,665,221  pa7,920,588




GMA BOLDINGS, INC.
NOTES TO UNAUDITED

TR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

. Corporate {nformation

GMA Hoidings, Inc. (the Company) 18 incorporated iy the Philippines 10 invest in, purcliase ot
otherwise acquire and own, hold, 1sg, sell, assign, yransfer, MOrtgags, pledge, exchange or otherwise

dispose real and personal properiy of every kind and. description. The registered office addreas of the
Company is Unit 57y Tower Ong, One MeKinley Flace, New Honifacio Gioba! City, Fort Bonifacio,
Taguig City. The Company was registared with the Securities and Bxchange Commission (SEC)on

o February 15,-2006.
The aceounting and adiministrative funstions of the Compeny 8 undertaken by GMA Network, In¢.
(GMA), an effHiate. '
|n 2007, the Company tgsued Phitippine Deposit Recelpts {PDRs), which were liéted and traded in the
philippine Stock Exchange (PSE) (sze Note 3). ‘

not engage in any business or puUrposé pther than in c;mnaction with the issuance
biigat'mns ander the PDRS and the Aoguisition and halding of

PDRs issued, This includes meintaining the
person for #8 long as the

The Company will
of the PDRs, the performance ofthe 0
the underlylng shares of GMA in respect of the
Company’s listing with the PSE and maintaining its status 85 8 Philippine
Philippine law prohibits ownership of GMA's shares by ron-Philippine person.
ation is presented as the Compariy's Himited operations ars adequately

No reportable segment inform
sive income.

presented in the statements of gomprehen

ccounting Policies and

P

4. Basisof Preparation Statement of Compliance and Changes in A
Disclosures L

Basig of Prepargtion .
The financial statements of the Compeny pave beer prepared on 2 historicn} cost basis, gxcept for
avallable-for-sale (AFS) ‘vestment which 15 measured ot fair vaiue. The financizl statemenis are
presenied in Philippine peso; whigh s the Company’s functional and presentation curreney, Amounts

are rounded off 10 the nearest peso: except when otherwise indicated. ‘ -

giatement of Complisnge
The Company's Financial statements have been prepared |

Reporting grandards (FFRS).

n compliance with Philippine Financial

se af the previous financial year, except far
ting Standards (PAS) and
sties (IFRIC)

Chanees in Accountin Policies and Disclosures

The accounting policies adopied are consistent with the
the following new, amended and improvements 1o PFRS, Phitippine Accoun
Philippine Interpretation from international Financial Reporting [nterpretations Comm
which the Company adopted during the year:

10



pERS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements, PFRS 12,
AS 27, Separaté Finanoial Staiemenls) '
ets and Financial

»  lpvestment Eniities (Amencments to
Disclostre of Inferests it Other Entities, and P
= PAS 32, Fi Inancial Jnstruneints: Presentafion - Offsetting F inancial ASS

Liabilitles (Amandmﬁnts) .

= PAS 36, Jmpairment of Assets - Recoverable Amoun! Disciosures for Non-Einancial Assels

N (Amendments) :

s PAS3%,F inncial Instrumeiis. Recognition arid iMenstrement - Novation of Derivativas and

Continuation of Hedge Acconling (Amandmenfs)

»  Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 21, Lavies , '
«  Annual improvements © PFREs 2010 - 2012 Cycle (PFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement)
«  Annual improvements to PFRSs 2011 - 2013 Cycle (FFRS 1, Firsi-tine Adaption of PFRS).

The adoption of the new, anended and improvements 1o atandards and interpretations did not have

significant impact on the financial staternents of the Company.

Future Changes in Agcounting Policies and Disciosures
The Company did not early edopt the fpllowing new standards, amendments and improvements {0
proved but are not yet effective as at March 31,

PFRS and Philippine Interpratations thet have been ap
20135, The Company does not expect these changes o have & significant impact o1 its financial

statements uniess otherwiss indicated.

Standards isstied but nof yel effective

sents - Classification and Measuremetif (20’1‘0, vession) - PFR3 2 (2010

e PFRBE Y, Fingneial Instran
ot of PAS 39 and epplies to-the classification and

version) reflects the first phase on the repipceme

measurement of financlal assats and liabiiities as defined in PAS 38,

PERS 9 requires all financial assets (o be measured at fair value et nitial recognition, A debt
financial agset may, if the fair value option (FVO) is not invoked, be subsequently measured at
amortized cost if it ‘s held withtn a business mode! that has the objective to hold the assets to
collect the contractuai cash flows and s contreetual ferms give rise, on specified dates, to cash

flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding, All ather
debt instruments are subszguently mensured at fair value through profit o loss (FVPL), All
eiuity financial assets arc measured at fair yvalye either thraugh other comprehensive income
(OCY) or profit or toss. Equity financial assets held for trading must be measured at FVPL. Fer
FyO labilities, the amount of change in the fair valus of & fiability that is atiributable 1O chanpes
iy credit riak must be presented in OCi The remainder of the change in fair value is presented in

profit or Joss, untess presentation of the falr value change in respect of the lability's credit risk in
QC1 would create oF enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or oss. All other PAS 39 _
classification and measurement raquirements for financiel Jizbilities have besn carried forward

into PFRE &, including the embedded derivative separation rules and the criteria for using the

‘ FVO.
PFRS 9 (2010 version) is affective for annual per'mds beginning on ar sfier January 1, 2015 The
miandatory adopfion daie was movad to January 1, 2018 when the final ~{crsicm of PFR§3 ¢ was

gdopied by the Philippine Financial Reporting Srandards Council {FRSCH Su_ol: adoptian,

however, is still for approval by the Board of Accourniancy (BOAL

11



Effactive Janary 1, 2015

[

International AC

ts for the Constructton of Real Estate, this

interprefation COVers accounting for ravenue and assoctated expenses by entities that undertake
the construstion of real estate directly ot throngh subcontractors. The SEC and the FRSC have
ion untl] the finai Revenie standard is issued by the

deferred the effectivity of this interpretatlo
counting Standards Board and an evaluation of the requirements of the final
lippine real estate industry is completed. The

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 15, Agreemen

Revenue standard against the practices of the Phl
interpretation is not relevant to the Comparny.

PAS 19, Employee Benefits - Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contribulions {Amendments},PAS

16 reguires an entity to consider contributions from employees or third parties whes accounting

for defined benedit plans, Where the contributions are Hnked to service, they should be attributed
larify that, if the amount of the

to periods of serviceasf negative benefit "Theae AMERCMEnts ¢
contributions 18 independent of the number of years of service, an entity is permitted to recognize

such eontributions a5 a reduction in the service £0st in the period in which the service is rendered,
instead of alioealing the contributions to the peripds © his amendment is effective far

fservice. T
annual periods beginning on of after January 1, 2015,

PFRSs (2010 - 2012 cwle)

ftion af Vesting, Conditian, this improvement iz apphied
he definitions of performance and

Annual Improvemenis 10

¢« PFRS2, Share-based Payaent » Defin
prospauﬁvely and clarifies vatious {ssyes relating tot
seryice conditions which are vesting conditions, ineluding:

condition must contain a service condition,
b A performance target must be met while the counterparty is rendering service.
¢. A performancs target may relate to the operations or activities of an entity, or to those of

another entity in the same group.
d. A performance condition may be & market of non-market condition.
=, 1¥the counterparty. regardless of the reason, ceases 0 pravide gervice during the vesting

period, the service condition is not satisfied.

ceouniting Jor Contingent Consideration in @ Business
fied prospectively for business combinations for which
5014, leclarifies that a contingent conaideration that
¢ FVPL whether or not it fatis within the

a A pé:rfarmance

»  PFRS 3, Business Combinations - 4
Combination, the amendment 13 app
the acquisition date is on or after July 1,
15 not classified a8 equity 18 subsequantly measured 2
scope of PAS 39, (or PFR8 9, if early adapted).

s PFRSS, Opemting&egmem . Aggregation of Cperaling Segments and Reconciliation c:f the
Total of the Reporiabie Segmants’ Assels {0 the Fniity's Assels, the mimendments are applied
petrospectively and clarify thatt
nts made by managemerit in applying the aggregation
brief deseription of aperating segments that have heen

a. An entity must disciose the judgme
(¢, 58)e8 gnd. gross Margins) used to asgess

criteria in the standard, inoluding &
pogregated and the gconoimic characteristics
whather the segmenis are ‘gimilar’

12



Effective January 12018
«  PAS 16, Properiy, Plant and Equiprt

b, The reconciliation of segment assets to total agsets is onty requtired to be digelosed if the
reconciliation is reporied to the chief operating decision maker, similar to the required ‘

- digelosure for segment ligbilities.
. PAS 16, Praperty, Plant and Equipmeitt, and PAS 38, Intangible Assels - Revaluaiion
Method - Proportionate Resiatement af Aecunndated Depraciation and Amorrization, the
amendment is applied retrospectively and clarifies in PAS 16 and PAS 38 that the Assel may
n either the gross of the net carrying amount.

be revalued by reference to the observable data 0
In addition, the accurmnulated depreciation or amortization is the difference between the Bross

and carrying amounts of the asset.

»  PAS 24, Related Party Disclosires - Key Managemean! Personnel, the amendment is appiied
retrospectively and clarifies that 8 management entity, whicl: 1s an entity that provides key

management persormei services, is o related pasty subject to the related party disclosures. In
addition, an entity that uses a management entity is required to disclose the expenses incurred

for management services,
Anpual fmprovemeits 16 PERSs (2001 - 2013 cvele)

wations - Scope Exceptions for Joirt Arrangements,
nd clarifies the following regarding tiie scope exceptions within

PFRS 3, Busingss Combh ihe amendment
is apniied prospectively B
PERS 3

e scope of PFRS 3.

ot just Joint veriures, are outsids th

& Joint arrangements,
gunting in the financial statements of the

b. This scope exception epplied only to the acc
joint arpangement iself

wremernt - Portfolio Exceplion, the amendment {8 applied

tonin PFRS 13 can e applied not only 10

her contracts Within the scope of PAS 37

» PFRS 13, Fair Ve Meas
prospect%valy and clarifies that the portfolio excep
financial assets and finencial lfabilities, but glac to of

(or PFRS B, 85 applicable).

{ Property, the amendment is applied pms_pective]y and elarifies that

PFRS 3, and nat ihe deseription of ancillary services in PAS 40, 15 used to determine if the

tination. The description of amcilirry

transaction i8 & purchase of an asset or buginess cort
services in PAS 40 anly differentiates between investment property and swner-occupied

property (i.8., property, plént and equipment).

s PAS 40, fyvestimen

et and PAS 38, fn!angibié Asseis - Clarification of

Acceptable Methods af Depreciation and Amortization (Amendments), the an}endments olarify
the principle in PAS 16 and PAS 38 that revenue reflects & pattern of cconomic bensfits that are
generated from operating & husiness (of which the asset ig part) rather than the gconomic banefits
ghat are cansumed through use of the asset. Asa result; 8 revenue-based method cannet be nged
to depreciate property, piant and gquipment and may only be used in very fimited c’lreums'tances
to amortize intangible assels. The amendments are gifective pro&pasuvziy for anpual peciods

beginning o0 af after January 1, 0016, with early adoption permisted.

13



recognition, bearer plants will be me _

Agriculture - Bearer Plants (Amendments),

pPAS 16, Properiy Plant and Eguipment and PAS 41,
for biological agsets that meet the definition

the amendmerts change thé accounting requirements

of bearer plants, Under the amendments, Biological assets that meat the definition of bearer

plants wili no longe? be within the seope of pAS 41, Instead, pAS 16 will apply, After initial
asured under PAS 16 at acoumulated cost (before maturity)

anc using aither the cost model or revaluation rode} (after maturity).

The amendments also require that produce that grows on pearsr plants wiil remain in the scope of
PAS 41 measwred at fair value less costs 10 sell. For governmenit grants related to bzarer plants,
PAS 20, Aceouting for Government Grants qied Diselosure of Governmeitt Assistance, will
apply. The amendimernis are ratrospeaﬁveiy-effeutive for annual periods beginning on orafter
january 1, 2016, with easly adoption pamni‘rts:d. This standard is not relavant to the Company.

PAS 27, Separate Fingncial Siatements - Equity Kethod in Separafe Finaneicl Statemenis
(Amen{iments), the amendments will allow entities 1o use the equity method to account for
invesiments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in thelr sgparate financial staterments.
Eatities already applying PFRS and electing to change to the squity method in its separate
financiat statements will have to a ply that change retrospectively. For first-tims adopters of
PERS electing to use the equity method in its separate financial staternents, they will be required
o apply this method from the gate of transition to PFRS. The amendments aré effective for

annusl periods beginning on of after january 1, 2016, with arly agoption permitted. The

Standard is not relevant to the Company.

PFRS 10, Censolidated Finaneial Statements and PAS 25, Trvestments in Associafes and Joit
Ventures - Sule or Contribution of Assels hehweer an Trivestor and it Assaciate or Joini Veniure,
thase amendments address an acknowledged iniconsistency between the reguirements in FFRS 10

and those in PAS 58 (2011} in dealing with the sale of contribution of nssets between an invesior
and its associaie oF joint venture. The amendments require that 2 full gain or loss is recognized .
when a transaction invoives a business (whether it i3 housed in & subsidiary or not), A partiel
gain ar loss 18 recognized when g transaction invo

jves assets that do not constitute & business,
even |f thege agseis are housed in 8 gubsiciary, These amendments are effective from annual
periods peginning on or after January 1, 2016, : .

PERS 11, Join? Arrongements - Aceounting for Acguisifions of Interesis i Jaint Oparations
(Amendments), the amendments 10 BFRS 11 require that a joint pperator sccoumting for the

acquisition of an interest in a joint operation, in which the activity of the jeint operation
constitutes a business must apply the relevant PFRS 3 principles for business combinations
raviously held imterast in & joint operatior isnot

secounting. The amendments &0 plarify that a p \
£ an additional interesi in the same jaint pperation while joint

cermeasured on the gequisition o

control is retained. In sddition, oope exclusion has been ndded to PFR8.11 10 specify that the
amendments do not apply when the parties sharing joint contral, lnsluding the reporting entity, -
are under comimen control of the same uliimate controtiing paITY. The amendmems epply to both
the acquisition of the nitial interest in B joint operation and the acquisition of.2ny edditional

interests in the samme joint operation and are prospectivety effective for annual periods heginning
on or after januacy 1, 2016, with early adopiion perm‘i{ted.

BERS 14, Regulaiory Deferral Aocowits, PFRE 14 is an gptional standard that aﬂc,zvsjs an entity,
g most of its existing

whoge activities are subjact to rate~-regulation, 10 continue applyin

el
i



_____

accounting policies for regulatory deferral aceount balances upen its first-time adoption of FFRS.
Entities that adopt PFRS 14 must present the regulatory deferral accounts as separate line items

on the statement of financial position and presert movements in these account balances as

separate ine items in the statement of profit or toss and other comptehensive ineome. The
standard requires dizclosures on the nature of, and risks pssociated with, theentity’s rate-
reguiation and the effects of that rate-regulation on its financiai statements,

PFRS 14 is effective for anpual par‘aods_bcginning on or giter January 1, 2016, The standard is

not relevait to the Company.

Annuel Improvemants 10 pEFRSs (2012 - 2014 cycle)

~current Assets Held for Sule and Discontinued Operalionts - Changes i1

lied pmspectively and clarifies thet changing
from a disposal through sale to & disposal thraugh distribution to owners and vice-versa .
should not be considered 10 te a new plan of disposal, rather it is a continuation of the
original plan. There is, therefore, 110 interruption of the application of the requirements in
PFRS 5. The amendment ajse clarifies that changing the disposal mathad does not change®

the data of classification, . .

= PFRS 5, Non
Methads of Disposal, the amendment 8 BpP

isclosares - Servicing Contracis, PFR8 7 recuires aft entity

to provide disclosures for any continuing involvemet in & transferred asset that is
t olarifies thal & servicing contract that includes &

derecognized in iis entirety, The amendmen
| psset. An entity must AsSess the

fee can constituts continuing involvement in 2 fmancia
nature of the fee and arrangement dgainst fhe guidanee in PERS 7 iy order to as3e88 whethe:
lied such that the assessment of

“the digclosures are required, The amendment is fo be app
which servicing contracts constitute confinuing involvement will need to be done
retrospectively. Howaver, comparative disclosures are not required to be pravided for any

period beginning before tye annual pertod in which the entity first applies the amendments.

»of the Amendments (0 PFRS 710 Condensed Jnferim Financial

Statements, this arnendment 18 epplied retrospeciively end clarifies that the disclosures of

offsetting of financial assets and finsncial liabilities are not required in the condensad interim

fnancial report uniess they provide & significant update to the information reported i the
most recent Bnnual report.

« PFRS§ 7, F inancial Tistruments: D

. PFRS 7, Applicabilif

= DAS 19, Employee Beneflis- Regional Market Issue Regarding Discawnt Rate, this
amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that market depth of nigh quality corporate
n which the obligation i8 denominated, rathet than

honds is asssssed tmsed on the currency i
bligation is igcated. When there is no deap market for high quality

tihe country where the ¢ _
corporate bonds in that cUITEReY, government pond rates must be used.

«  PAS 34, interim F inancicl Reporting - Disclosure of Information Elsewhere inn the Injerim
Kinancial Repor! ' the amendmert 18 applied retrospectively and clarifies that the required
interim disclosures must either be in the interim financial stasaments or incorporated by cross
seference between the interim financial statements and whergver they aré included within the

pregier interim financial repart (2.8 in the management commentary ar risk report).
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Effective Januaty 1, 2018

« PFRS5 9 A tnancial Jnstrumeiis - Hedge Accaunfing and Amendments [0 PFRS 9, PFR87 and
PAS 39 (2013 version), PERS 9 (2013 version) already includes the third phase of the project (o
repiace PAE 39 which pertains 1o hedgs accourting. This version of PFRE ¥ replaces the ruies-
based hedge accounting model of FAS 39 with a.rmnre principles«based approacit. Changes -
include repiacing the rules-based hedge effectivancss test with an obj sctives-based test that
focuses op the gConeImic relationship between the hedged itemn and the hedging instrument, and
the effect of credit risk on that economic relationshin; allowing risk components 1 e designated
t als for nan-financial items, provided that the

ag [he hedped item, not only for financial items bu
- risk component is geparsiely identifiable and reliably measurable; and allowing the time value of
wact and BnY foreign currency busts spreed to be

an option, the forward element of & forward con
exciuded from the designation of a derivative instrument as the hedging instrument and accounied

for us costs of hedging. PFRS 9 also requires more axtensive disclosures for hedge accounting.

The rmandatory effective date of January
9 was adopted by the PRSC. The
I by BOA.

PFRS § (2013 vergion) has no mandatory effective dats.
i, 2018 was eventually set when the fina) version of PFRE&
adoption of the sinnl version of PFRS %, however, is still for approva

4 or finel version), in July 2014, the final version of PFRS 9

Financial nsfrimerls, Wes sgsued. PFRS 9 reflects all phages.of the financial instruments projeet

and replaces PAS 39, Financidl sients; Recognition and Measurement, and all previous
yersions of PFRS 9. The standard infroduces BeW raquirements.fcr ciassification and
meagurement, mpairment, and hedge aceounting. PFRS 9 is effective for snnual perfods
beginning oh af afier January 1, 2018, with eatly epplication permitted. Ratrospective application
is required, but comparative information is not gompulsory. Early appiication of previous

FRS § is permitied if the date of iniiial application 18 wefora February 1, 2013,

« PERS 9, Financial Tnstruments (201

verstons of P

= FRE 15, Revenu# From Contracts with Cusioners 1ERS 15 was jsued in May 2014 and
astghlishes 4 new Five-step model that will apply to revenus arising from contracts with
customers. Under IFRS 15 revenue s recognized at 81 amount that reflects tiie considaeration Lo
which an entity expects to be entitied in exchange for transferring goods or services to d
customer. 'The principles in IFRE 15 provide & more structured epproech to measuring and
recognizing revenue. The new revenue standard is applicable 0 all entities and will supersede all
curreht revenue recognition requirements under IFRS, Eithera fall or modified retrospective
appllcation is raquired for gnnual pariods peginning o oF fier January 1, 2017 with earty
adoption permitied. The Company is aurrently assessing she impact of IFRS 15 and plans to

rdopt the new standard on the required effective daie ONGE adopted tocally.

summary of Gignificant Accounting Policies

Led

hort-ter. nighly liquid investments
{ maturifies ofthree monihs or less
hange in value.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cashy includes cash on band and in banks. Cash equivalents a7e 8

that are readily convertible to knows amounis of cash with origing
from dates of p}acemant and are subject 10 an insignificant risk of c



Determination af Fair Value ' :
Fair value is the price that would be recsived 10 cell an asset or paid 1o wranafer a {iability inan crderly

iransaction between market participants at tive measurement date. The fair value measurement is

pased on tite presumption that the transaction 10 sell the asset OF transfer the liability takes place
gither: '

»  inthe principal market for the asset or Yiability; of :
« inthe absence of 8 principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principai or the most advaniagenus marlet must be accessible to the Company. :

umnptions that market parﬁicipantk

s mensured using the 888
ket participants act in their best

The fair value of an esset ar & Hability
assuming that mar

would use when pricing the agset or Liability,
economic intersst, , :

A falr value measurement of & nonfinancial asset tuices into account a market participant’s abifity to
generate ccontomic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best Lse by selling it to another
market participat that would uss the gsset in its highest and best use. ,

i the circumistances and for which

uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
g the use of relevant cbservable inputs

The Company
o measure fair value, maximizin

sufficient data are gvailable t
and mintmizing the use of unobseryable inpus.

Assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured OF disclosed in the Company’s financial -
staiements ere categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest

evel input that is significant to the fair value measurement 88 2 whole:
Lavel | = Quoted (unadjustad) market prices in adtive markets far identical assets or liabilities;

Level Z - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level inpu that {5 significant to the fair value

messurement is directly or indirectly observable; and
Leyel 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest jevel input that is significant to the fairvalue
measurement i3 unobsarvable, '

nancial statements o & recurring basis, the
d between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
gnificant ¢ the falr value measurement ag 2

For assets and liabiiities that are recpgnizaci in the fi
Company determines whether yransfers have ocourte
categorization (based on the 1owast Jevel input that is sl

 whole) at the end af each reporting date.

cias and procedufes far both recwiTing and non-recurring fair vaive
the Company has determined classes of

The Company determines the pali
ios and rigks of'the assat or liability and the

measurements, For the purpase of fajr value disciosures,
assets and ljabilities on the basis of the najure, characteriat
jevel of the fair value higrareiiy. '

of fair value hierarchy levels by reassessing
nificant to the fair value measurement as &
ces thet caused the vansfer.

s into and transfeys out
leval input that i& sig
chiange in circumstan

The Company reco gnizes ransfer
catagorization (based on the jowest
whale) a5 at the date of the event o7



* gajes are purchases of seles of financial asasts t

- which is the fair value of the consideration given (incase 0

The Company ciasaifles its financial insiUmMens in the

Fingpeial Instruments

Dutte of Recagnition. The Company racognizes & financial asset or 8 financial Hability in the
statemnents of financial position when it becomes & party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. 1o the oase of a regulay way purchase of sale of financiai assets, recognition and
derecognition, a8 applicable, i5 done using setilement date accounting. Regular way purchases or
hat require delivery of assets within the peried ‘

penerally established by ;egulatienpr canvention in the mesket place.

Initial Recognition and Measurement. Finanoial instruments are racognized iminially at fair value,
f an agset) oF received (in crse of &

liability). The tnitial measurement of ﬁnancial instritments, except for those designuted at FVFL,

‘ inciudes‘trmmacﬁon cost,

following categorics! Fnencial assets and

financial liabilities ut FVPL, loans and recelvables, held-to-maturity {(HTM) investinents, AFS
investments and other financial liabilities. The ciassification depends on the purpose for which the

insiruments are noquired and whsther these aré quoted in an active market. Managament determines
the classification at initial recognition and, where aflowed and appropriate, re-cvalustes this

clasaification at every reporting date.

The Company lias no HTM investments and financial labilities al #VPL as at March 31, 2015 and
December 31, 2014, : .

Subseque:zt,Measursmenh The subsequent measurement of financial assels depends on thelr

clagsification s follows:

vables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable paymentsthat are ot quoted inan active market. After initial measurernent, such
4t amortized sost using the effective interest method

financisl asseis are subsequently meastired
(EIR), less impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by teking into acoount any discount or premium
on acquisttion and fee oF ezt that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amartization as weil a3

the losses arising from impairment is included in the “Interest income” sceount in e statement of
comprehensive income, Loans and receivabies are included in cusrent agsets |f maturity is within
twelve months from the reporting date. Otherwise, these 8¢ elassified 88 noneurrent assels.

jude cash and cash squivaien

Logns and Recetvables, Logns and recel

The Company’s joans and receivables inc ts and acoounts recgivable.

AFS Investmeris. AFS investments aIe non-derfvative financial assets which inciude equity
investments and debit securities. Equity investments classifisc 8 AFS are those that are nelther held
classified as held far trading nor designated at pypL. Debl securities in thig category are those that
are intended to be held for an indefinite perind of time and that may he sold in respanse o needs for

liguidity or in response to chenggs in market conditions.

After initial recognitiof, AFS investmenis are mugsured at fair value with unrealized gaing or iosses
hejng recognized a5 8 geperate component of equity until the investment i derecognized o until the
investment is determined to be pmpaired at which time the curnulative gein of loss previously rgported
in equity is included in the sraternent of comprahensiva income. Unlisted AFS financial sesets, on the
ather hand, are carried at cost, net of any impairment until the investment i5 derscognized. Interest

18
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o

interest income {0 the seatemant of

camed while holding AFS investments is reported as
comprehensive income.

Other Financial Iiabilities. This category periains to financial liabilities that are not held for wading
or not designated 85 8 FVPL upon the inception of the linbility. These inctude liabilities arising from
operations or harrowings. Other financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair vaiue and are
subseguently cairied at amoriized cost, taking into account the impact of applying the EIR method of
amortization {pr accretion) for any related premium, discount and any directly attributzble {ransastion
couts, Gains and losses RS recognized in the statement of comprehensive COME when the liabilities

are derecognized as well as through the BIR amartizaiion process.

The Company’s financial lisbilities include acepunts payable and other current liabilities (excluding
stafutory payabies) and due to sharehoidsrs. '

As at Mareh 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, the Company does aot have any financial iiabilities at
FVPL or derivatives designatad as hedging instruments. ’
Classiﬁcation of Fingngial Instruiments etween Liabilit agd E uity -

A financial instrument 7s classified as debt iF it provides for 4 coniractua

i ghligation ta

o anather entity; of

s deliver cash or another financial asset ¢ .
ith another entity under conditions that are

« exchange financia! assets o financiel liabilities w
potentially unfavorable to the Company, of
s satisfy the obligation other than by the exchang

o of & fixed amount of cash or another financiai
asset for a fixed number of oWn gquity shares. .

1f the Company dogs not have an unconditional right to avoid delivering cash of another financial
psset to settie ils contractug! obligation, the obligation mcets the definition of & financial ability.
The components of. ssued financial instruments that contain both Hability and equity elements are

geeoutted o7 separately, with the equity componeit peing assigned the residual amount after
deducting from the tnstrument as @ whole the amount geparately determined as the fair value of the

fiability component o the date of issue.

lities

E)era:t:omﬂtian' of Financial Assets and Ligbi

Financial Assel. & £nancial assel (or, when applicable, a part uf n financial asset of part.of & group of

similax financial assets) ia derzcognized when:

set have expired; of

flows from the asset and either: (2) has

et, ar (b) has neither transferred nor
but has transferred conirol of the asset.

v therightio ceoeive cash flows fram the B8
s+ {he Company has sransferred its right 1 receive cash
hstantially all the riaks and rewards of the ass

transferred su

retained qubstantiaily all the “gks and rewards of the asseh
When the Company was transferred i right to receive cash flows {rom an asset or has enferec into a
pass-through arrangemerit and has neither transierred not retained substentialty all the risks and
rewards of the asset ROt transferred control of the assel; the agset I8 recognized to the extent of the
Company's contining ipvolvement in the auset. In that case: the Company also recognizes an
gysociated liabiiity. The transferred assel and the associated jlability are measured on a basid that
reflects the rights and abiigations that the Compasty has retained.
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4.

there is obiective evidence of impairme

- fipnanciel agsets what a1e individually

Financial Liabilities. & Fnancial liability i derecognized when ihe obligation under the liability is

discharged or cancelled or hias expived.

When an existing finanaial liability 15 replaced by another from the same jender on substentially
different terms, or the ierms of an existing Hability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated a# 8 derecognition of the original liability and the resognition of a new
liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is rezognized in the statement of

comprehensive ingome. .

{mpairment of Financial Asseis ‘ . : C
The Company B3sesses at each reporting date whether a financial asset or group of financial assefs 8
ageets 18 deented ta be impaired, if and only i,

impaired. A Bnencial asset or & FOUP of financiel
1tog a result of one o WOre events that ocourred after the

initial recognition of the asset (81 inourred Joss event) and that Joss evernt has an impact on the
estimated future cash-flows of the finencial asset of & group of finansial aaseis that can be reliably
estimated. Objective evidence of impairment may include indications that the borrower ol 8 ETOUR of
porrowers i8 gxperiencing significant finaneisl diffieulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal peyments, the probability that they will enter bankruptey or other financial recrganization
ble data indicate that there is measurable decrease in the estimated future cash

and where observa
fiows, such as changes in arrsars of ceonomie conditions that correlate with defanlts,

FinancighAssets Carried df Amartized Cost: ‘fthere is objective avidence that &t jmpairment 1085 of
assets carried af am_m“aized cost has been incurred, the amount of the logs i8 measured as the
difference babween the asset’s carrying amoun esent value of agtimated future cash flows

t and the pr
(excluding future expected credit j0sses that have

not begn incurred) discountad at the financial
asyet’s original effantive interest rate (ie., the effective interest rate pompuied at initial recoguitiorn).
- reduced through the use of an aljowance ase

The carrying amount of the asset 15 16 ount, The amount of
the loss shall be re_oc:gnized in the statement Df;:umprehensive income. The financial assets, together
with the associated allowance accaunts, are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future.

TECOVETY.

objective evidence of impairment exists individuatly for
significant, and individually of collectively for financisl asseis
ividuaily significant. 1 it is determined thal no objective evidence of impairment
dunlly assessed firaneial asset whether significant or not, the asset is inctuded in &
proup of financial assets with simitar credit risk chargoteristios and that grovp of financial assets 18
calisotively agsassed Tor impairment. Asgets that are individuaily assessed for impairment and for

which an impairment 1ose is or continues 10 be recognized are no longer included in a collective

assessment of jmpairment.

The Comipany first assesses whether
that are not ind
axists for an indivi

If, in & subsequent period, the amount of the jropairment losg gecreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to 8 ovent ocearring after ihe impatrment was recognized, the previously
racognized impairment loss is reversed, to the axtent that the carrying value of the asset does not
exceed its amortized cost at the reversal date. Any gubseausnt reversal of an pmpairment loss is
recognized in the statement af comprehensive income. {nierest income continues to be accrued on Wiz

reducad carrying amount besed on the original affactive interest rate of the asset. [ oans, together
5 no realistic prospect of future recovery

with the associated allowance, are written off when there | _ ;
r has been tranaferred 10 the Company. s future write-

and all cotateral, if any, h=s been realized 0
20



off is later recovered, the recovery ia recognized in

" incurred on an ung

. Interest ncome. Reven

she statement of comprehensive income. Any
i7ed in the staternent of comprehensive income, 1o

ent loss is recOgn
exceed its amortized cost at the reversal dute.

subsequent revessal of an {mpairm
f the asset does not

the gxient that the carrying vaiue 0
Finaneial Assels Carvied at Cosi. 1 there is an objective evidence that an impairment 1058 fas been
uoted equity inatrument that is not carried at fuir value because its fair value cannot
e reliably measured, or an derivative asset thal s linked to and must te setiled by delivery of such an
unqueted equity instrument, the amount of the loss is rneasured as the difference between the carrying

araount and the presefit value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of

ceturn for & similar financial pasel.
“Dgy 1 Difference. " Whare the iransaction price is different from the fair value of other observable
orbased on 8 valuation techmque whose variables

current market transactions in the same instrument
include onty data from ohservable market, the Company recognizes the difference between the
ransaction price and fair value of the finanelal instruments {a*Day 1 difference”) in profit or loss

unless it qualifies for recognition s some other type of nsset. In-cases where data which is not
observabie is used, the differsnce batween fhe wansaction price and model value is only recognized in
profit or loss when the inputs bectme observable or when the instrument i derecognized. Foreach
transaction, the Company getermines the appropriate method of recognizing the “Day 1difference”

amount.

(ffaeiting of Financial IpSLrumments _‘ 4 | ,
fiset and the net amount is reported in the statements of

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
if, and only if, there is 8 currently enforcesbie legal 1i ght to offset the recognized

amounts and there is an {ntention to seitie on 2 niat basis, or to realize the assels and settle the
{ahilities gimultaneously. Thig iz not generaily the case with rnaster natting agreemernts, therefore,
the related assets and finbilities are presented al gross in the statements of financial pesition.

financial position

Equity

Capital stock is measured t PAr value for ail shares isgued. Incremental costs incurred directly
attributable to the ssuance of new shares &€ S

hown ineguity 88 4 deductica from proceeds, net of
tax. Proceeds and/or fair value of considerations recpived in oxeess of par vaiue are reeognized a8

additicnal paid-in capital.

Earnings pet share
Pasic earnings per share (EPS) amounis are catou

weighted average aurnber of ordinary shares outstanding
dilutive potential common shares outstanding, therefore,

Inted 'by dividing net income for the vear by the
guring the year. The Company has 1o
basic BPS is the same & diluted EPS.

Revenus

Revenue i8 recognized to the extent that it is probable that the scanorHic benefits will flow to the .

Company and the amount can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made.
sideration racaived OF receivable, taking into account

Reyenue is mensured at the fair value of the con

contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes of duty. The Company assesges lis
(evenue drTangements against specific criteria in order 0 determine if it 8 acting &s principal ar agent.
5 account the effective vield

ue is recognized a8 the interest accrues; taking int

an the asset.



" Eyercise Fees. Revenue i5 Te

‘Deferred tax assels 8¢ recogni

«  where the deferred 1ax puset relating to

coghized upon conversion of PDRs 16 gominon shares.

Expenses
Expenses presented BS “0
recognized as incurred.

perating expenses” account i the statements of comprehensive income are

Taxes
Cyrrent Income Tox. Current income tax assets and ljabillties for the current period &e measured at
jon autherities. The tax rates anc tax

the amount expected 1o be recovered from or paid o the taxatl
1e arount are those tiat are enacted OF substantially enactad at reparting dafe.

Jaws used to.compuie t

Cuprent neome 8x reluting to items recognized directly in equity 14 recognized in gquity and not is1
profit ot 108y, Management veriadically pyaluates positions talen in the tax returns with respect to

situations in which applicable tax regulations are gubject to interpretation and establishes provigions
where appropriaie. : ' '
1ded using the liability method on temporary

©

Deferred Ineoinie Tre. Deferred income tax 15 prov _
ligbilities and shelr carrying amouiits

Jifferences at reporting date between the tax bages of assets and
for financia! reporting purpeses at the reporting date.
d for all taxable lemporary differences. Deferred fax assels are

t that it is probable that gufficient
be uiilized.

Deferred tax lidbilities are rECOgNizZE
recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the exien
iaxable profit will be available against which the deductibie temporary differences can

zed for all deductible temporary differences, carryforward penefits of -
lar corporate income tax (RCIT) and net

expess minimum €0
gperating loss CarTyover (NOLCO), to the extent that it is probable thet taxable income will be
available sgainst which the deductible temporary differences; and the carryforward benefits of excess

MCIT over RCIT and NOLCO can be ntitizad exeepl:

rporate income X (MCIT) over regt

porary difference arises from the initiai

not a business combination and, at the
thme of the {transactio, affects nelther the nor taxable profit ot logs; and

« in respeet of deductibie temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and

sssociates and interest in joint arrangements, deferred tax assets &Te recagnized only t0 the extent

will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable

that it is probable that the temporary differences .
income will be available against which the temporary differenices can b8 utilized.

the deductible t8m

asset or liability in 8 wansaction that is

recognition of an
accounting income

deferred tax assels ia reviewed 8l gach reporting daie and reduced to the

probable that eufficient taxable profit wili be avaiiebis to allow all of part of
Unrecognized deferred fax assels are reassessed & each
<rent that it has become probable chat future taxable profit

The carrying amount of
extent that it is no longer
the deferred fax assets 1o be utilized.

reporting date and are recognized to the @
will allow the defarred tax assets to be retovered,



e

Deferred tax gssels and liabilitie

. Income tax rejating to other comprehensive i

increese in the provision dug to the pass

ax rates that are expecied 0 zpply to the ysar

5 gre measured at the't
4 on tax rales end tax laws to be enacted or

when the asset i8 realized or the liability is settied, base
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

d tiabilities are offsel, if a legally enforceable right exists 10 offeet current fax

Deferred tax assets N :
d the deferred taxss relate to the same taxable entity and the

assets against current fax ligbilities &n
same taxation authority.
ncoms is recognized in ather comprehenaive income

section of the statements of comprehensive income.

Vilue-added Tax (VAL Revenue, expenses and assets aIe recognized net of the amount of VAT, "

The net amount of VAT recaverable from, of payable 10, the taxation authority is included as part of
“prepald tax and other current assets” or «pccounts payable and other current liabilities™ accounts. in

the statements of fingncial position,

Provigions i

LA Y oo s

Provisions are Fect gnlzed when the Company hias & present obligation (legal or, constructive) whers, 8=

a result of @ past event, it is probable that an putilow of agsels embodying economic benafits will be
required to setfie the obligation and & reliable estimaie can be wade of the amount of the obligation. If
the effect of the time vaiue of money is material, provisions are datermined by discounting the
expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market asgessments of the time vaiue of
money and, where agpmpt‘iate, the risks specific t0 the fiability. Where discounting is used, the

age of time i recognized as interest expengse. Where the

viston 1o b2 reimbursed, the ceimbursement is recognized 85 & separate-asset but

Company Expecis & pro
only when the receipt of the reimburgsement s virtually certain. -

Contingent lighilities are not recognized in the financial statements. Thege are diselosed in the notes

{o financial statements urtless the possibility of an outflow of TesouTces embodying sconamic benefils
ingeni assets are not recognized in the Financial statements but are disclosed in the

is remote. Cont
notes to financial staternents when an inflow of esgnomic benefits is probable.

Events after the Reporting Datg

post year-end avents that provide additional information about tiye Company ' position at the
reporting date (adjusting gvents) are peflected in the financial statements. Past year-end svents that
are not adjusting events 47 disclosed in the notes & financial statements witen material.

Summary of Signiﬁcnnt Accounting Judzment, Estimntes and Agsumptions

The preparation of the financ tance with PFRS requires the Company to make
estimates and assumptlions that affact the reported aimoutts of assets, frabilities, incoms gnd expenses
and disclosure of contingeht assets and liabilities. Futwe events may oceur which can cause the

The effects of any chenges in estimates will be

estimatas used in arriving at the estimates to change. _
recognized in the financial statements 5 these become reasonably determinable.

&l statements in gompl



is deemed based on mand

iated and are based on historical experience and other

Judgments ane pstimates are continually eva
lieved to be determinable under the

factors, including expectations of fisture evenis that are be

plrgumstances.
Judgments . ,
1n the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made the following

judgrent, apart from those involving estimates and ggsurptions, which has the most significant
affect on the amounis recognized in the financtal statemerts, : »

Value of AFS Investment. The Company has no intention of selling its AFS
investment it the near tenm. It i being held indefintiely and may be gold in response to fiquidity
requirements ot changes in market condition. Accordingly, the Company has clussified its Union
Bask of the Philippines Tier 2 Note, or UBP Tier Note, 83 AFS investment, The Company has ne
plans to dispose d of the reporting date.

Determining Fair

its AFS investment within 12 plorghs from the e

AFS investment at faiv value. Fair value of AFS :nvestment recorded in the
m active markats, henee fair value deteymination

lized under current marjkat

The Compary camies _
staraments of finanoial position cannot be derived fro
gement's estimate of amounts that could be rea

conditions, assuming an orderly liquidation over & ceasanable period of fime.

The fair vaiue of AFS investment is dizcugsed nNote 14,

Estimates and asgumgtions , _ -
The key assumptions concerning the future and pther key sources of estimation uncertainty at
reporting date, fhat have a significant risk of causing & material adjustment1o the carrying amournts of
asseis and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below, The Company based 1ts
assumptions and estimates oo parameters available when the financial staternentis Were prepared.
Existing ciroumstances and assumptions about future developments. however, mey change due to
market changes of circumstances arising beyond the control of the Company. Such charigss are

reflected in the assumptions when these OTOUT,

Impairmert AFS Javestments. The Company 55€sses ndividually at each reporting date whether
there is an objective gvidence that e investment based ol the same criteria as Enanttal assets carried

a1 amaortized cost. Howeven the Company also recognizes BN impairment logé, if and enly if, it is
probabls that the Company will sell the investmenis and the sxpected cash flows to be realized from
the dispesal of the ATS investments &ré less than their carrying values.

Thers wers 1O provisions for impairment losses as of March 31, 2015 and 2014. The carrying velue
of AFS investment 88 af March 31, 201 5 and [Jecember 31,2014 emounted to B21 .35 million and

P21.76 million, rcsgecﬁvaty (see Nate .

rof Defer:‘éd Tax Assets. The Company’s gssessment on the recognition of
rary differences and carryforward penefits of NOLCO and

Estimating Fealizabillt)
e subgequenit periods. This forecast is

deferred 15X assels OH nendeductible tempo :
excess MCIT is based on e forecasted iaxabie income in i
based on the Company’s future pxpeactations o pevenue and cxpenses.



ets as at March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 as

The Campanj} did nat recognize deferred tax ass
¢ will not be availabie against which the deductible

mansgemert believes that sufficient taxable profi
temporary differences can be utilized.

5, DPhilippine Deposit Receipis

ned 822,1 15,000 FDRs rejating to 822,11 5,000 GMA shares. On

On July 30, 2007, the Company 158
d relating to 123,317,000 GMA sharas,

August 21, 2007, additional 123,317,000 PRs were issue
Each POR was issued fora total consideration of B8.50.

the exercise price and subject {0 certain other

sonditions, the delivery of one GMA ghare oF tt jvery of the proceeds of such sale of
one GiviA share, The Compagy remains 10 be the registered owner of the GMA shares covered by the

PDRs. The Company also retains the voting rights over the (VA shares,

Each PDR grants the holders, upon payment of
12 sale of and del

The GMA. shares are gtill subject to pwnership restrictions an shares of corporations angaged in mass
sersons other than Philippine nationals. The

media and GMA may raject the transfer of shares to
PDRs were listed in the PSE on July 30, 2007, and the same may be exercised at any time from said
t of GMA sharas received by the
he current and

date, Any cash dividends or other cash distributions in respet
Campany shall be appiied toward the operating expenses of the Company for ¢
g expenses in the preceding year shall be set
amount in excess of the

preceding years. A further amount gaual to the operatin

aside to meet operating of ather expenses for the succeeding years. Any

aggregate of the operating expenses paid and the gperating fund for such period shall be distributed {0
such cash dividends are received by the

PR holders pro-rata on ¢ha first business day afier
Compaity. .
of 20,05 (VAT nclusive) per share shall be paid by the

uEyercige fzes” account in the staternents of

Upon exeraise of the PDRs, an exercise nrice
ed to #0.07 million and nil as of March 31,2015 and

PDR holders, The exercise price is shown a3
comprehensive income. Exercise fees amount

014, respectively.

Lnmediately prior to fhe closing of the PDR offering and additional isstiances described nbove, GMA,
to which the Company is affiliated, transferred 945,432,000 OMA shares to the Campany in relation
{0 which the PLRs wers igsued. Foras longas the PDRs are not axercised, the shares undertying the
PDRe will continue i be registered 1n the name of, and owned by.the Compaany, and ali rights
pertaining 10 these shares, including voting rights, 8
obligations of the Company ta deliver the GMA shares on exercise 0
are secured by the Pledge of Shares in favor of the Pledge Trustee actin

PDR over the OMA shares.

hall be exercised by thie Company, The
£ the right contained in the PDRs

g on behalf of each holderof 2

At any tims afier the PDR offering, & shareholder may. at his option and from time 10 time, deliver
shares to the Company In exchange for an egual number of PDRs. The exchange is based on
prevailing traded value of GMA shares at the +ime of transastion with the corresponding PDR option
price. ‘ : :

ve the cash flows from its invesmment in
flows to the PDR holders, net of
-fhrough” test ls met because the .

bove, the Company retaing the rights to-reced

a contractual obligation to pay those cash
{a “pass«througﬁ”- arangement). The “pass

Ag mentioned 4
GMA and assumes
pperating expenses



Company (8) has no obligation 1o the PDR holders unless it collects equivalent amounts from its
investment in GMA, (b) is contractually prohibited from selling or pledging its investment in GMA
pther than as security tothe PDR holders for the obligation to pay the cash flows, and (¢} has an
ghligation to rerit any cash flows feorn the investment in GMA to the PDR holders without material

delay.

Under the #ppss-through” test, the Company is deeméd to have transferred _substantial}y the risks and
~rewards of ita investment in GMA. Accordingly, the nvestment in GMA and the iiabilities related to

the issuance of the PDRs are not recognized by the Company. ,

The following are the details and movements of the PDRSs and the underlying GMA shares for the
three manths endat March 31 ' _

_ number af Bhares ‘ .

PDRs ‘

: ) 1015 2014 ’ 2015 2014

Balance at beginning - ‘

of yest P7,210,832,500 F7,233,333,309 BR48,345,000 - - pg57,509,800

Exercise of PDRS (F12,452,500) ; (81,465,000) .
%7,198,430,000 772 gg,833,300 £846,880,000 8g57,508,800

Balance ot end of year

On March 30, 2015, the Company approved & cash distribution to PDR holders of B0.25 per share, In .
Iders of record as &

relation to dividends declared by GMA, otaling £211.75 million to all shareho

April 24, 2015 and will be paid on May 19, 2015.

On April 2, 2014, the Company approved 2 cach distribution 1o PDR hoiders of R.27 per share, {0
relation to dividends declared by GMA, totaling to B231.53 million to ali shareholders of record as at
Aprit 24, 2014 These were remitied t0 PDR holders on May 70, 2014

7 distribution to PDR holders of 20.25 per gharg, in

On April 24, 2013, the Company approved 8 cas
{ shareholders of record as at

celntion in dividends declared by GMA, totaling tp #214.38 mitiion to &l
| April 17, 201 3. These wele remitted to PDR holders on ‘May 15,2013

fhe right to receive cpsh flows from its investments in CIMIA but it also assumes

a cantractual obli gation 10 pay those cash {lows 1o the PDR holders which is considered a “pass-
shrough” arrangement. Thus, the Company did not recognize the dividend income received from
 GMA arising from the acquisition and holding of the underlying shares of GMA in its financial -

giaiements.

The Company retains.

6. Cashand Cash Equivaients

This conzists Of:

. . March 3% 2015 December 31, 2014
~Fash on hand end in banks ' 738,226 71,240,820
15,548 980 75,424,401

Shori-term lacemients
FZ&,ZS’},ZG& $726,663,221
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Cash in banks eam interest at the respective bank deposit rates. glori=term deposiis are made for
varying periods of up 0 three months depending on the immediate cash requirements of the
deposit rates. -

Company, end eart interest at the respective short-term

h in banks and short-enm geposits amounted 10 74438 thousand and

1nterest incotne earned from cas
£756 thousand for the period ended March 31, 2015 and 2014,'respectivaly.

kit

7. Availabie-l‘or—saie Inveshnent
nk Tier I Note with & face value af

In 2014, the Company purchased at par 8 fer-year Unionba
turity date of this note is on February

£21,00 miilion bearing a fixed interest rate of 5.38%. The ma
20, 2023, .

interest income earned on the UBP Tier II Note am
ended Mareh 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

gumed to R224 thousand and nit for the‘par%od

The movement in AFS investment is 8§ foilnws:
Mareh 31, 2018 December 31, 2014

it Y - + .
Ralance at beginning of year ¥21,759,216 -
21,000,000

Additions :
Chenge in fair value {410,623) 736,216
Palance ai end of yeat ' 21,348,593 F21,759,216

The movement of et unrealized gain on AP investment i as follows:

“wiareh 31, 2015 ‘December 31, 2014 |

Balance al beginning of year #551,451

Guain (loss) cue t0 changes in fuir mariet value

of AFS investment _ ‘ . (287,436) 758,216

Tax effect of the changes in fair market values (227,163)
| T244,015 PEILAST_

Balance at end uf year

T sccounts Payable and Other Current Linbiltties

March 31, 2015 December 31, 2014

Accounts paya’nlé 75,240 $0,240

ACCrugt EXpoenses _ -
Brofessional and trust fecs, 171,932 ‘ 225,910
Others 1,760 3 1,760
12,132 4,284

Deferred owtput VAT _ ‘ |
VAT payabie ‘ 44,814 .
' £339,878 P241,194
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nonjnierest-bearing and are normai}j gettled within the

Accounts payeble and acerued expenses are ‘
ent accried audit fees, retainer fees and miscelianeous

next financial year. Accrued expenses repres
expenses. _
ureau of Internal Revenue (BIR) for the
ts made to PDR holders. Theseare -

n 15 days after reporting period.

Withholding tax payable represents'liabillties tothe B
remittarice of final taxes witiheld on dividend paymen
noninterest-bearing and are expected to be remitted withi

g, HEquity

Capital Stock
The Compeny bas 10,000 authorized, subscribed and igstied commeo shares with 210,00 par
velue per share. ‘ '
1 on the Company’s registration of securities with the

The following gummmarizes the informatio
Rule 68, As Amended (2011):

SEC as required by Securities Regulation Cods

Autho rized Mumber
Nurtber of lssued Issug/
Shares Offer Price

of Shares
045,432,000

545,432,000 23,50

b. Reiained Earnings

aration and distribution of cash
ord as at December 31,2014,

On Marsh 30, 2015, the BOD approved the Company’s decl
dividends amounting 1o 80,50 million to all stackholders 0f Ted

The Company has no dividend declaration in 2014,

10, Operating Expenses

ages for the- peﬁbd gnded March 31, 2015 and 2014

 The cOMpPOnEIs of the comparny’s opeseting eXpe
are a5 follows:

: 2015 . 2014
Tisting fees pL4d,011 £172,574
profassional fees -~ 106,023 78,750
Texes and licenses 5,095 10,697
Trangportation 303 -
PDR conversian EXPEnses . 651 -

2.354 0,618

P271,639

tijacelluneous
) »258,527
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11. Ineome Taxes
This account consists of fingl tax on intevest income from bank deposits of B45 :thousand and B57

thousand for the period ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

thousand as at March 3};2015 and

d to B105 thousand and B228
AFS investnent presented undet

Deferred tex liability amounte
y. This periains to unrealized gain on

December 31, 2014, reapestivel
equity in the staterments of financial position.

_ .

h{ﬁ.k Relnted Party Disclosures

Partias are constdered to be related if ong party has the ability, directly and indirectty, to control the
other party or exercise significant influence ovar the gther party in making financial and operating
decisions. Patties are also considered 0 b8 related if they ars subject to comInon controt, -

ith Re]aﬁed Parties

Terms. ad canditions of Transectigns w _
been e_ntered into at ferms no s favorable than could have

Transactions with related parties have
tered into with unrelated parties, 1o 1* quarter of 2015, no

been obiained if the transactions were el
ransactions have been entered inte by the Company with its related pacties.

19 Amaount/Velume Dug to Shaveholders ferms Conditions

- Caiegory {uarier of Pronsactions
Shargholdets
847,271,000 Upen demand, non-

poriion of proceds jetnined 2018 ' P
from iSsUsICE of PDRs 204 - 41,271,600 interes! bearing

Unsecuret,
gettied in cash

FeDue to Sharsholders” peitain 10 the option price amounting o #0.02

ry AT inclusive) per PDR which was retained by the Company, 83 {he PDR issuer, in consideration
for the rights granted under the PDRs. This amount will be used for the liguidation of experses
retated to the {gsuance of the PDIRs, Ay eXcess is 1o be remitted 10 the saliing shareholders.

merit personnel are empia}?ed by QMA. and no part of their salarigs was

The ouistanding balances

The Company’s key manage
allocatad to the Compay.

13, Finapcial Risk Management Objectives and Policles

The Company’s principal financial ipstruments include cash and cash equivalents. The main
pUrpOSes of these financial instrumenis include raising financing for the Company’s gperations and
managing identified financial risks. The Company has other financial assets and liabiiities such a3
accounts receivable, accounts payable and other currant Jiabilities (exciuding statutory pa}f?{blg,s‘} apd
rigk, falr

due to sharehoiders, which erise dirsctly from its oparaticns,Liquidity risk, interest rate

+ N 1 v P . ] v b . - I .
valug interest rate pislkc and credit risk ave the main visks arising from the Company § financial
instruments.

The BOD raviews and epptoves the Compary s phjectives and policies.



Liqzu‘a'fgi Risk. The Company ia.exposed to the possibility that adverss changes in the busi'ness‘
environment and/or its operations wouwld resultin substantially higher working capital requirements

and subsequently pose difficulty tn financing the additional working capital.

The Company ManAges its liquidity risk by using '!ts.paSh and cagh equivalents from operations ¢
meat its short-lerm liquidity neads. The Company likkewise regularly evaluates other financing
instruments and arrangemenis 10 broaden the Company's range of financing sources.

Company's financtal assets uged for liquidity

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the
d on contractual undiscounted payments a3 at

sk management pUrposes and financial liabilities base
March 31,2015 and December 31, 2014

' March 31, 2015 '
) NMgre than '

On Pemand 3 to 12 Months 1 year Total

Fingncial Assels ‘ ,
Cash and cash equivalents 726,287,200 - - 726,287,206
: . P71,348,593 21,348 593

AFS investment -
P26.287,206 . 121,348,893 47,635,799
Financial Liabilities
Accounts payable and other
current liabilities® _ $327,746 - - 327,146
Dividends payable _ 500,000 - - 500,000
47,271,600 - . P47,271,600

Dueto gharehoiders

T P45,099,346

. 748,099,346
> hxcluding deferred attput VAT amouniing to P12,13

3 a5 at Mareh 31, 2013,

‘ December 31, 201 4 ' '
More than 1

On Demand 7 10 12 Months vear Tatal
Financial Assets ‘ ‘ )
?26,665,221 " - ?25,665,221
271,759,216 21,?59,216 ‘

Cash and cash equivalents

AFS investment
P21,759,216 B4, 424,437

£26,665,221

Financial Liabilities

Accounts payable and other ' . .
current liabilities™® : $2136,910 BT - =336,010
Due to sharcholders ‘ 47,271,600 - . 47,271,680
#47,508,510 - T P47,508,510
¢ December 31, 2014,

=i Excluding deferred putput V4 T gmaonting 10 P4,284 a5 a
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Labilities to ensure that EXpOsUIS

Interest Rote Risk. interest rate risk is the risk thiat the falr yalue of future cash flows of a financiat
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest Ta{es, Tiie Company’s eXposure to
changes in interest rates is minimal and is attributed to cash and cash equivalents.

The following sable demonstrates the gensitivity to a reasonably -passibla change in interest retes, with
all other variables held constant, of the Company’s income before income tax from reporting perioc
up to next reporting period, There is no impest on the Compeny's equity other than those atready

affecting profit or loss:.

Effeat on lncome Before Income

Incrase
{Decrease) in Basis H__-————‘———-'—Di’_’"*ﬂ
, , Points 1Q -2015 Q2014
Cash and cesh aguivalents 50 #133,411 $233,063
: : (50) (F131,411) (p233,063)

Fair Value Interest Rate Risk. The Company fpllows & prudent policy on managing its assets and
to fluctuations in interest raies are kept within acceptabie limits.

There are no floating rate financial assets and financial iabilities. Term deposits With banks and debt
seourities carry fixed rates throughout the period of deposit or placsment. ‘

The Company’s AFS investment earns fixed nterest rate gt 5.38% in 2015 and 2014, Fixed interest
rate instrument exposss te Company to fair valye inerast rate risk, such as the fair value will
flucsuate beoause of changes in market prices. In order to manags it snierest rate isk, the Company
places its exaeEss funds in high yield invastments and other short-term depasits.

o sensitivity of fals value chapges due io possible change in

The following table below demonstrates th
period with all ather variabies heid constant.

interest rates from reporting perlod up 10 next reporing

Inerease
(Decrense) in M
‘ Basis Poinis 214
AFS investment 50 ®804,227)
(50 843,111

Credit Risk, Credit risk, ot the risk of counterparties defaulting, is controtled by the application of

credit approvals, {imits and monitoring proceduras. Tt s the Compeny's policy to enter Inio

sransactions with 2 diversity of ereditworthy parties 0 mitigate any significant conceniration of gredit
-5 with appropriaie credit history. The

rigk, The Company ensures that services a8 made to eustome
f eredit and management of oredit
ary, for patantia[ losses on crediis

Company has an internal mechanismi 10 monitor the granting 0
gRPOSUIESs. The Company hes made provisions, where necess
axtended. The Company’ s SXpasuTe t credit risk arises friwn default of the counterparty with a

t5. The Company does ot reguire

maximum SrposUre equal to the carrying smount of the instrumer

any collateral for its financial assets.

sets is managed by the Cumpany'using.high grade and gtandard grade

The credit quality of financial s
as internal credit ratings. ‘



Pertgins to 2 counterparty who is not expected by £

High Grade.
& expogure is minimal. This normally

_obligations, thus, cradit ris
institutions and related parties.

Siandard Grade. Other financial assets not classified as high grade are

acsified its cash and cash equivalents {excluding cash on hand) and

The Company ¢l
t March 31, 2015 and Decermber 31, 20

receivable as high grade financial assets as 4

As at Mareh 3%, 9015 and December 31, 2014, th

€ ag‘mg.aun}ysis of accounts receive

he Company to.default in settling its
includes targe prime financial

included in this category.

accounts
4.

iie is ms foliows:

March 31, 2015 Decomber 31, 2014

Neither past due nor impairzd 105,604 7143,407
past due butnot tmpaired: ‘ .

31-50 days 13,250 30,600
61-150 days ‘ 09,980 9,380

151-365 days : - -

e 308,834 P183,387

Capital Management

The primary objecive ¢f the Company’s capital manageme
credit rating and heaithy capital ratios in order to supportits

value,

business and maximize

The Company manages its E:apitai giructure and makes adjustments 10 it, in the light
sgonemtic conditions. To maintain of adjust the capital structure,

dividend payment to sharehoiders, payoil existing debis, retdri capital
shares, - :

No changes were snade in the objectives, policies or progesse

2015,
¢ is undertaken by GMA. The Company's capit

The Company’s capital managemer
ounted to £0.59 miliion and B1.17 miliion as at

woinl stociholders’ equity, which am
nd December 3 1,2014, respectively.

seis and Tinhilities

nt s to ensure that it maintains & strong

ghareholder

of changes in

the Company miy adjust the
1o sharghoiders or igsue NEW

s for the three months ended Mareh 31,

al tnciudes the
March 31, 2015

ey

14. Financial AS

The following methods and gssumption

Fair Valug Determination '
< are ysed 1o estimate the sair value of ench asset and lability

for which itis practi'cable 1o estimate such value:



exciuding Statutory Pa ables), Dividends paye leand Due to §
The carrying Bmounts approximate the fair values due i0 the short-term mat

_ instruments.

urities of thase financial

AFS investment _ . ,' - ;
Unquoted AFS investment is carried at fair value based on observable market date, which is estimated
using the discounted cash flow methodolagy. Discount rates uged range from 2.38% to 4.19% end

7 38% to 3.90% as &t warch 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, respectively. The fair value is under

jevel 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

e T
15. Basic/Miluted Earnings (Loss) Per Share Computation

Basic/diluted EPS 15 compuied as follows:

Murch 31, 2015 March 31, 2014

: T S L~
Net income (loss) Trirbutagle to equity hokders {8) : 710,008 ‘ (P42,749)
Comnion Sharss {ssues at beginaing and end of year (b) 16,000 . 10,000
Basic/Diluied Earnings (Loss) Per Share (a/b) £21.00 (Pd.27)
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OTHER FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The Company hes #¢ other information that 1
Form 17-C, if any. '

seds to be disclosed other th

an disclosures made ynder SEC
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SIGNATURES

nts of the Securities Regulation Code, the igsuer has duly ©

Purguant to the requireme
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunio duly authorized.

Issuer: GIMA HOLDINGS; INC.

By:

PPt _
hief Operating O srmancial Officer

RONALRO P. MASTRILI
Comptmllerf{lhiaf Accounting Officer

aused this report 10



CERTIFICATION

. THIS I8 TO CERTIFY that in compliance with Article 9(B) of
the 1987 Philippine Constitution, none of the Directors,
Independent Directors and Officers of GMA Holdings, Inc. are
elected as public servants and or appointed in any government

agency, local or foreign, without authority of law.

o Issued this JU% day of ]uljr 2015.

ROBERTO O. PAREL
Compliance Officer
GMA Holdings, Inc.
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INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS| &
F I

CERTIFICATION 913
C i with office ad

1, JATME ¢ LAYA, Filipino, of legal age, and W
' ' i City, after having been

Midland Mansioi Condomissium A.
duly swotn 10 in accordance with 1aw, do hereby dec

Direstor of GMA HoId1ES s

1 am affitiated with the following companies of organizations: - '

L. { am an Independént

2,
. ' Cumpmnlerganizatiun Posttion _
: : ‘ ) . Service
~Bhiiippine Trust Company (Phiftrust Bank) Fhatrman and Z00d-present
. _ president "
Pislippine AXA Life 'm_ To05-present
GViA Network, 1nc. A T007-present
| Direstor
2007 -present
| Direwer '
2ndependsnt 2071 0-present
Dirgctor -

2014-present

D p—
2002-preseit

)
o, 1004-present | -
o ea 1060-present
LT possess all the qualiﬁcatians ané none of the disquaiiﬁcations o gerve s at
A Holdings: inc., a8 pmvided for 10 Section 38 of
: es and Regulations.

Tpdependent Tyirector ¢ !
ihe Securities Regulation Code and its Implementing Rul

dress 8t ST



I shall faithfully and diligently com;ﬁly with oty duties and yesponsibilities as
{ndependent Director under the Securities Regulation Code. _

5, -1 ghall infortn the Corporate secretary of GMA Hold’mgs, ine, of any changes
in the above-mcntione:d {nformation within five (5) days from lts oocurrense.
freen at Quezol City,

‘Done this 15™ day of April two thousand and fi

L.
gy,

iflant

QUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this 15 day of April two thousand and
Fifteen, at Quezon City, sffiant personally appeared before me and exhibited to me his

Pagsport NC. gC3123777 jssued at Manila on January 7, 2015.

Wo. 124 ' 7 Notat Public .
g;;gg-ﬁﬁ R nmmfm?ftymmmmmﬁ%-
: ppointment Mo, M-528 - ’
BQOk NG, k . NO?M}" 'J"libii{) fos' ]?vi::-:}i;z&;y £
Gerios of 2015, Untlf Decamber 31, 2015
| o o Rl e, 47224 L
. PR No, 4754924, 9, 2015/Maknti City :
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SUBSGRIBED AN

CERT?‘F!GATIQN OF INDEPEND ENT DiRECTORFy

{ ARTEMIO V. ?ANGAMBAN; Eifipino, of legal 89%, and al rdiaer o 120
Dasmariﬁas Village: Makatt Clty, aftar having hee

ance with {aw, do hereby deciare that.

aceord
1. | am &n ind_ependent D‘irector'of GNMA HOLDINGS: NG
a4 any affiated with the following fistad companies of srganizations:
: Oompanyr’Organlzations position] A Period of Service
: : ‘ Re‘at&onshig o .
j_lggtPhi!iggkna Holdings Corporation Endeendeﬂt.i‘.')lrector 2007 - cresant
Metro Pacifialnvgﬁtmems Coiperation independent Director present |
Wania Electric Company . c fndependent Directol . - prasent
RRobinsons Land Cor aration inde,endent Directol . * ¢
‘ Gida, Network inG. . : independent Diracior -
Petron Carporation i m@_eoandent Diragto! 2010 - :
Bank of Philipping istands naependsnt Dirsctor 5040 - present
Asian Tarminaie 10C. independent Girector___ 2019 - present
Philipping [ ong Distancs Tel, GO 1ndeendam’0irector 5013 - present
Jollibee Foods Gorporation - ~on-Executive Siractor | 2012 - resent
‘ I\jetragoiit_an Bank and Trust GO Sanior Advisel r2007 - presant
Pouble Dragen Properties COrb: mﬂM =044 - present
(For my full big:gata, log to MY persanai websiie: c]panw |
3, t-possées alf the qualifications and none of the disquaﬁf‘maﬁo‘ns‘to serve as an
Independent Director © HOLDINGS, INC., 88 prov&dad for in Sectioh a8 of
the Secumies Reguiaﬂon,@ode and it8 \mp]emenﬁng Rules and regulations.
4. 1 ghall saithfully and ditigantly corply with my- duties and raspohsibiiities as
- indepand’ent Director under ihe Securities Reguiation Code. :
5 | shalinform fhe Corporaté secratary of GMA HOLDINGS, INC- of any changes
tiprmgﬁormaﬂon within five (5) days from i qccurrenoe‘
g ) . :

in the abo?%?gaf
Done this day of April 2015 at makatl Gity‘.
. ARTEWMIOV. pANGANIBAN
. Affiant " |
PRI oot et
n SWORN 1o pefore Me this _ s of Aprl! 2015 at Makatl CitY,
nd 15 Passport Numbe!

et -
ared hafore e a exh,ibiied to me _ :
Fi, Maniia ang will expire ol

afflant personawy apps
ECZ'IGD”;’BS isgusd OO ‘september 7o, 2014 by the £
Septemberzﬂ, 2018 : «Z{W
e o AR S TEEEA S DE YT
Doc. NO. il c A.ppammmni‘fdo, M58
page No. i , otery Public for Makath Clty 3
Book No j" - ' 'i?utii"fbe;;rm‘.b{thl,ZDlS . 45\
g : Yl Mg, 47224
series of 2017 | prg, Ho, 4754524108 & so15/Makati CHY
‘ Lifetine 15T MNo. ao3agiOct. 1,201 Qfivianita §
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AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FS FOR FILING WITH SEC

AFTER THE BIR HAZ DU
. & DUL
STAMPED "RECENED." !

SEC Reagistration Number

hTeleEDIEL

Company Nemg

alalal TejolL nl1|N|Gis), TG ' |
_,LMHHIH!D
ENEEEE ]
7 . Pringipal Ofﬁce (Ne‘.!Street!Barang_aleity{Town!Provinc:e) :
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Fkn[r]fL{Bon jiFlale|l]|o|, Ta‘g"u_l g {Ciity j
T EEERERERERENE
Form Fyps Uebgmﬂem.requrﬁng e rapc-ft ’_ Sacondary Licenss Type, I Applicatie
E A l 8 - i Not Applicable
COMPANY INFORMATION '
Gompany's Emell Atdress Company's Telephone Numberls Mabfe Murreer
[ _J 9827777 1 -
: . Annual itaaling Figeal Year
‘No. of iackholdars KonthiDwy wontnfOay
| 7 5/30 B 1273t 1
. CONTACT PERSON INFORMATION
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORY REPORT :

M y T

BUREA OF N NUE

LAKGET i

: LARGE TAXD 3 ¢ Division |

. N r—u—“_--—dFH—'-" w---ﬂ—;
The Stociholders and the Board of Directors : C § ‘
VA Holdings, Inc. , . [ ate |

5D Tower Qne, One Mckinley Place 1 i 5
New Global Bonifacio Ciy : : wm B R F=yY

Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City REC Bl Vo B ’%

M&ﬂ\f{(ﬁ ¢, DONZAGA :

1 .

Re purti on the Financial Statements

We have aadited.th_e ncoompanying financial statemonts of GMA Holdings, Ine,, which comprise the

statements of financial position as af Deceraber 31, 2014 and 2013, and the statements of

cotnprehensive Income, gtaternents of chenges in squity and statements of cash dows for each of the.
£ significant sccounting policies

- thres years i the period ended Decernber 31, 2014, and & sumimary o

and other explanstory tnformation.
Responsibility for the Finoncial Statements '

Menagetent is responsivle for the preparation and £air presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Philippive Financial Reporting Seandzrds, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparition of financial statements that ave free

from material misstaterment, whether dug to fraud or srror.

Memagement s

Audiiors ' Responsibilliy
68 Al opinion on these financial statements based om our gudits, We
conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine. Standards on Auditing. Those standards require

that we comply with ethical requirements and pian and perforitt the audit to obtain reasonable
agsurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstaterent.

Our responsibiiity is to 8&pres

mounts and disclosures

Jves performing procedures to obtain sudit evidence about the &
dutres selected depend on the auditog’sjudgmant, inchuding the
ments; whether due to fraud or

control relevant to the entity’s
design andit procedures thet are
opinion on the affectivensss
iateness of accounting
ment, 28 well a8

Al sodit Hevo)
. in the financial statements. The procs
. assessmuont of the risks of materisl misstatement of the financial state
ervor, In meking those risk assessmens, the puditor considers internal
reparation and fait presestation ofthe financial statements in order to
appropriate in 1o circumstances, but #0t for the purpose of expressing al
of the entfity’s internal control. Al audit aiso includes evaluating the approfl
palicies used apd the reagonabiensess of sccounting estimates made by MANEEE
evalnating the vetall pregentation of the financial statemestts.
We beliove that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate providea izagis for

our audit opinion.

g
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QOpinion
y, it all material respects, the financial position -

finanotal statements present fairl
performance and its cash

of GMA Holdings, Inc. as at December 31, 2014 and 2013, and lts financiel
flows for cach of the ihree years int the period ended Decem
Financial Reporting Standards. :

In our opinion, the

" Report on the Supplemeutary-Infermatiau Required Under Revenie Regulations No. 152010
Our. gudits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinien on the basic financiel statements

. taken as 8 whote, The supplementary information required under Revenue Regulations No. 15-2010
in Nots 16 10 she financial siatements i presented for purposes of filing with the Bureau of Internal
Revenue and is not a required part of the basic finaueial statements, Such information is the
responsibility of the mmanagement of GMA Holdings, Inc. The information has been subj eoted to the

auditing procedures applied in our sudit of the basic financial statements. 1o our opinion, the
information is feirly stated, in ail ion fo the bagic financial statements taken

ber 31, 20614 in accordance with Phifippine

raterinl respeets, in relat
as whole, .

$7CIP GORRES VELAYO & Co.

Marydifh/C. Miguel

Pariner

CPA Certificate Bo. 63556

SRC Acorgditation No. 0087-AR-1 (Group A),
Tanuery 18, 2013, valid until fanuary 17, 2016

Teax Identification Ne. 102-052-270

BIR Accreditation Na. 08-001 908-55-2013,
February 27, 2015, valid until February 26, 2018

PTR No. 4751303, January 5, 2015, Makati City

March 30, 2015
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Sz apeompanying Nates

GMA JOLDINGS, INC, L ! o

A - - - i ﬁ;,,.) ‘. Ea

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION j oL AP

5,
Decembey 3% r !
2014 2007
/
ASSETS /
Current Asscts . -

. Cash and tash equivaletts (Motes 6 apd 13) B26.665,221 £47,929,986.
Accounis roceivable (MNote 13) ) : 183,387 153,310
Prepeid tax and ofher carrent assats 304,000 - 207,488

Total Cutrent Assets 27,152,608 48,290,786
Moncurrent Asset . : o
Avajiabie-for-gale investment (Notes 7and 14} 21,759,216 —-
248,911,824 248,290,786
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabililes .
Accounts payable and other current Liabilities (lotes § and 13) 241,194 R7729,558
Due to sharsholders (Notes 12 and 13) __f_&j,.Z’!LGOG 47271600
Ttz Clorent Lisbilities 47,512,794 48,001,158
Noneurrent Liability ‘ '
Deferred tax lability (Note 11) ' 227,765 -
" Total Liabilities : ‘ 47,740,559 4£8.001,158
Equity (Note )] : :
Capital stock : . © 160,000 100,060
Retained earnings 539,814 189,628
Unrealized gain on available-for-gale investment - net of tax o
(Note 7) ' L 531,451 -
Total Bauity ' 1,171,265 - 289,623
F48.911.824 ®4.8 790,780

1o Financial Stelements,

R

il
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CMA HOLDINGS, INC.

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME -

Years Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
REVENUE ‘ . :
Interest income (Notes & and 7 p1242,815  P1,205,433 21,686,795
Exercise fees (Note 53 409,143 - 222,560
: . _ 1,651,958 1,205,493 1,909,355
OPERATING EXPENSES (MNote 18) 1,045,026 1,344,184 1,097,954
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TNCOME TAX 606,932 (138,681) 81 1,401
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX (Note 11) ‘
Cuzrent . ' 256,746 241,099 341,963
Deferred = .- 456,299
‘ 255,746 241,099 798,262
NET INCOME (LOSS) 350,186 (379,79{))' 13,139
OTHER COMPREBENSIVE INCOME
Bem to be reciassified prafit or lass subseguent
periods
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale :
investment - ngt of 1ax (Nate 7 531,451 - =
TGTAL COWREHENSH’E TNCOME (LOSS) P88LG637 (R379,790) £13 L1349
Basie/Diluted Earnings {Loss) Fér Share (Mote 15) ¥35,02 (B37.98) 21l

See accompanying Notex to Financial Siatemanis,
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GMA HGLBENGS, INC. N :
-STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EOUITY
- ‘ Vnrentized Gain en
Caphial Retatned Available-far-zale
- Btoek Farnings nvesiment - Netof Total
(Noteg) Qo) Tax (o 7) Eaquity,
Eiances ag atjenuayy 72014 2100000 2189 628 : e - B184.62%
Net ineoms - 35(,186 - 334,186
Other cormorehensive incoue - - 531,451 531451
Total comprehensive mepme ’ - " 350,186 £31:451 841,637
Baiances ag at December 31, 2034 BLGD,000 335,814 2533,451 21,171,265
Halances as at Jamuary 1, 20 13 #100,000 $569,418 B PE6Y,418
Total eomprehensive logs {379,790 - {379,790)
Balanees as at December 3}, 4013 R100,000 289,628 i @289 628
Balances as at January 1, 2012 £100,000 P3,150,276 B ®3,230,276
Total compprehensive jncome - 13,139 - 13.13¢
(~ash dividends - 8259 2 share - 52,55’3,997) - (2,553.997)
Balances ag st December 31,2032 200,000 B565,418 B 2662,418

See ace

ampanying IDies 0 Finangial Statements.

AL

il

il



CGMA HOLDINGS, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31

2034 2013 2012

CASH FLOWE FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES - B
Income (lossy before ncome tax P606,932 {R135,691) BY11,401
Adjustment for inferast incomie (Notes.6 and 7) (1,242,815} (1,205493) ( 1,686,7953
Operating Jose hefors working oapital changes (635,883) (1,344,154) (875,394)
Decraase (increass) in: : ' ‘ B

Accounts recervable 40,650 142,730 {96,560}

Prepaid tax and other current assels (96,512} (98,382) (65,843}
Inorease (decrease) i1 aCCOUNS payable and other '

current fabilities (488,364) 246,483 242,041
Cash flows used in operations ©(1,180,109) (1,053,351) (745,756)
Interest received . 1,172,087 - 1,162,885 1,734,262
Tngorme taxes paid : (256,745) 7241,089) (341,963)
Net cash provided by (used fn) operating activities '(264,767) (131,565) 596,543
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITY
Payment of avaiiable-for-sale investinent (Note 7) (21,000,000} - -
Payment of cash dividends CNote 9 - L - - (2,593,967)
et cash used in finanecing activities (21,000,080) - (2,593,987}
NET DECREASE IN CASE AND CASH - 3

EQUIVALE NTS ‘ (21,264,’757) {131,365) {1,997,454)
CASH AND CASH KQUIVALENTS '
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 47929988 _43,061,553 50,059,007
CASH AND CASE EQUIVALENTS o : _ _

AT END.OF VEAR (Note 6) B26,665,221 ?47,929,988 P48,061,553

{ Stafements,

er accompanying Noies i Financia
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GMA BOLDINGS, #{C. |
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEM W

]. Corporate Information

GMA Holdings, Inc. (the Company) is feorporated i the Philippines to invest in, purchase ot
otherwise acquire and own, hold, -use, sell, assign, transfer, morigage, pledge, exchange or
otherwise dispose real and personal property of every kind and deseription. The registered office
address of the Company is 513 Tower One, One McKinley Flace, New (3lobal Bonifacio City, Fort
Bonifacio, Taguig City, The Company was registered with the Seourities end Exchange ‘
Commission (SEC) on February 15, 2006, '

"The accounting and administrative functions of the Compary axe andertaken by GMA Network,

Tne. (GMA), an effiliate.

In 2007, the Company issued Philippine Deposit Receipts (PDRs), wrizich-wers listed and fzaded in
¢he Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE} (see Note 5).

* The Company will not engage in any business or purpose other than in connection with the

“issuance of the PDRs, the perfarmance of the obligations under the PDRs and the acquisition znd
holding of the inderlying shares of GMA in respest of the PDRs issued. . This includes
meintaiming the Company's listing with the PSE and maintaining its status a5 2 Philippine person
for as tong as the Phiippine law prohibits ownership of GMA s shares. by non-Philippine person.

No reportable segment information is presented as the Company’s limited operations are
adequately presented in the staternents of comprehensive incoms.

£ the Company were approved and authorized for

The accompanying financial statemerits o
£ the Board of Direstors {BOD) on March 30, 2015.

{sguance in agcordance with & resoluticn ©

5 Basie of Preparation, Statement of Compliance and Changes in Accounting Policies and

Disclosares

Rasis. of Preparation

The fmapcial statements of the Compatty have been prepared
availahle-for-sale (AFS) investment which is measured at fair value, The financial stalemeils are
prasented in Philippine peso, which is the Company’s functionat and presentatioln cwTency.

A mounts are rounded off fo the nearest peso, exoept wheh otherwise indicated.

ot o historical cost basie, except for

Stgtement of Compliance L .
ance with Philippine Financial

The Compeny’s finanocial statemen
Reporting stendards (FFRS).

s have bosu proparsd in compli

e

il

il



Segember 31, 2014, The Compeny doss ot expect these.ck

& DPRS 9, Fingneidl Insiruments - Classification and Meas

-

Chanaes 1o Accoupting Poligies and Disolosures
The accowtting policies adopted are consistent W
the fotlowing new, amended and improvements to PFR
and Philippine Interpretation from Tnternational Financia
({FRIC) which the Company adopted during the year:

ro PERS 10, Com‘oiiﬁfama’ Financicd Statements, FFRS 12,

tifies, and PAS 27, Separale Financial Statements) .
Financial Assets and Financial

ith those of the previous financial year, exgept for
S, Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS)
i Reporting Interpretations Committee’

s Investment Entities (Amendmenis
Disclusure of Interests i Other En
:  PAS 32, Finunciol Insiruments: Ph seniction - OffSeding

Tiabilities (Amendments) , , ‘

n  PAS 36, Impairment af Assels - Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Now-Financial Assets
{Amendmesnts) '

+  PAS 39, Finangial Instrumenis: Recognition and
Contimuation of Hedge Accounting (Amendments)

= Phillppine Interpretation JERIC 21, Levies :
s . Anpual improvements to PFRSs 2010 - 2012 Cyele (PFRS 13, Foir Volue Measurement)
4 Annual improvements o PFRSs 2011 - 2013 Cycle (PFRS 1, Firse-fime Adoption of PFRS)

Measuremsnt - Novation of Derivatives and

The adoption f the new, amended and improvements 0 standards and interpretations did not have-

significant Impact on ihe financial statements of the Cormpany.

Fugure Changes in Acgountin Policies and Disclosures
The Company did not early adopt the following new stan
DFRS and Philippine Interpretations that have been epprove

dards, amendmants and improvetnents fo
d but are not yet effective as at
1anges 10 have 2 significant impact on

1e Fnarcial statements unless otherwise indicated.

Standards issued bui not yet gffective.
wrement (2010 version) - PFRS 9

phase on the replacement of PAS 39 and appliss to the

(2016 version) refiepts the first
d liabilities as defined in PAS 39,

classification and measurement of financial agsels &an
PFRS 9 requires all financial assets 1 be measured ut fair vaiue at mitial recognition. A debt

financia! asset may, f tie fair valne option (FYO} is not invoked, be subsequently measured at
at has the abjective to hold the assets {0

amortized cost if it is hold within a business modsl th .
collect the contractual cash flows and its contractual erms gIve rise, on specified dates, o

cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principsl oputstanding. All
; fair value through profit or loss (FVFL).

other debt instruments aie gubsequently measured &

All eguity financial assets.are measured at fair value either through other comprehensive
incame ((GCT) or profit o joss. Bquity financial assets held for trading must be measured at
FVPL. For F¥O liabilitles, the amourt O fairvalue of a liability that is
atrvibutable to changss in credit risk must be presented OCL. The remainder of the change
in fair value is preserted io profit or loss, UILess presentati ' : ‘
respect of the Hability's credit risk in OCT would oreate of enlarge an.ae:countmg 'ﬁl:sma.ph i
profit or loss, All other PAS 39 classification and méeasyrement requn‘ememts for financial
liabilities have been carried forward into PERS 7, including the embedded dertvative

separation rujes and the criferia for using the FVU.
 PFRS 9 (2010 veraion) is effective for anrmal periods beginning on oF affer January L2015
The mandatory adoption date was moved to January 1, 2018 when ‘cifa final version of PFRE 8
was adopted by the Phitippine Financial Reporting Standards Cqumil (FRSC). Such
adoption, RoWever, s still for ppproval by the Board of Accountancy (BOA).

ey



e

Philippiha I11tcrprsta§tion TRRIC 13, Agreements for the Comstruction of Raal Bsture, this
d expenses by entities that

interpretation Covers acooumting for revenue and associate

undertake the construction of real estate diractly or through subcontractors. The SEC and the
FREC have deferred the effectivity of this interpretation until the final Revenue stundard is
issued by the Tnternational Accounting Standards Board and en evaluation of the requiremsnts

of the fina! Revenue standard against the practices of the Philippine real estate indvatry s

7 completed. The interpretation is not relevant io the Company.

Eﬁ’ective-Jammw 12015

«  Anmual Improvements to PFRSs 72010 - 2012 cycle)

PAS 10 requires an entity to consider contributions from

period in which the service is rendered, instead ofa

Fmployes Contributions {(Amendments),
employees or third parties when
butions are linked to gervics, they

PAS 19, Employee Benefiis - Defined Benefit Plans.

accounting for defined bencfit pians. Where the conri
ghould be atiributed fo periods of service as & negative benefit. These amendments clarify
thet, if the amonnt of the eontributions is independent of the number of ysars of service, an
entity is permitted to recognize such contributions as & reduction in the service cost in the

liocating the contributions to the periods of
service, This amendment is offective for annual periods beginning on or after

January 1, 2015

x PFRS 2, Share-based Payment - Definition of Vestmg Condition, this improvement is
applied prospectively and ciarifies various issues retating to the definitions of performance

and service sonditions which are vesting conditions, including:
a. A performance condirion must Sontain & pervics condition.
. A performance tasget must be met while the counterparty is tondering service.
¢. A performance terget may relate to the operations or activities of an entity, o1 10 those
of another entity in the same group, ‘ : )
d. A performance condition may be & market.or non~matket condition.
"s. Ifthe counterparty, regardless of the reason, co8ses to provide serviee duting the

yesting period, the service condition is not satisfied.

cr‘ -

PERS 3, Business Combinations - Accounting far Contingent Consideration i q Business.
Combination, the amendment is applisd prospectively for business combinatiots for

which the acguisition date i¢ on or after July 1, 2014, X c_lariﬁas that & contingent
consideration that is pot classified ag eqeity i subsequently meesured at TYPL whether or

not it falls within the scope of PAS 39, (or PERS 9, if early adopted).

w. PFRS 8, Uperating ,Sag?ﬁenrs - Aggregation of Operaiing Segrients and Reconciliation of
the Tolal of the Reporiable Segmenis® Assels 10 the Entity's Assels, !he arendments are
apphied retrospectively and clarify that: ‘

o the judgments mede by mapagement in applying the .
pggregation criteria in the standard, including o brief deseription of operating segments
' that have been aggregated and the sconoiic characteristios (8.8 siles and gross
margins) used to 885688 whether the segments #f¢ gimifar’. . ‘
¢ assets to total assets 1§ only reguired to be disolosed if

b. The reconciliation of spgmen : al > be
the recencilistion is reported to the chief operating decision maker, similar to the

required disclosure For segment liabilities.

g, An entity most disclos

FEIREIAD
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s PAS 16, Property, Plont and Equipment, and PAS 38, Mntangible Assets - Revaluation
wlated Depreciation and Amortization, the

ifethod - Proportionate Restatement of docwm
amendment is applied retrogpectively: and clarifies in PAS 16 and PAS 38 thaf the agsel
may be revalued by reference tothe observable data on either the gross or the net cartying

amount. In addition, thi acoumulated depreciation oF amsartization is the difference
between the gross and partying amounts of the asset.

s PAS. 24, Related Party Disclosures - Key Munagemertt Persontie {, the amendment is
applied vetrospectively and clarifies that a management entity, which is 0 emtity that
provides ey management personnel servioss, is a related party subject to the relaied party

disclosures. In addition, an entify that usesa panagement sitity is required fo disclose the
expenses incurred for managemont services, ‘ '

e dpmual Improvements 1o PFRSs (2011 - 2013 cycle)

nt Arrangements, the

»  PFRS 3, Bustnass Combinations - Scope Exceptions for Jo
ing regarding the scepe

ameddment is applied prospectively and clarifies the follow
exceptions within PFRS kR

outside the scope of PFRS 3.

g Jointarrengements, not just joint ventures, are
nting in the financial statements of the

t5. This scope exception applies only to the accot
joint arrangement itself . :
« PERS 13, Fair Value Measurement - Portfolio Evceptiont, the ameridment is applied
prospectively and clarifies that the portfolio exception in PFRS 13 can be applied not only
to financial agsets and financial liabilities, but also to other contracts within the scope of

PAS 39 (or PERS 9, 88 applicabie).

ospectively and clarifies that
S 40, is used.to determine if the

e PAS 40, Fnvestment Properiy, the amendment. is applied pr
PFRS 3, and not the description of ancilary services in PA
transaction is & purchase of an 898eL O busiess combination. The deseription of ancillary

services in PAS 40 only differpntiates between investment property and owner-occupied

property {i.¢., property, piant and equipment).

Effective .farmar}.) 1, 2616

»  PAS 16, Property, Platt and Equipment and PAS 38, Intangible Assets - Clarification af
Avceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortization (Amendments), the amendments

clarify the principle in PAS 16 and PAS 38 #hat revenus reflects a pattern of soonomic
(of which the agssl i5 part) rather then the

benefits that are generated from operating  business
econpmic benefits that are cgnsumed'through use of the asset. As 2 result, a pevenue-based
method carmot be Bsed 1© depreciate propetty, plant and equipment and may only be used in

very lirited circumstances to amortize intangible assets. The amendments are sffective
prospectively for amnual periods beginning on of after Jaunary 1, 2010, with early adoption
permitied. ‘ '

and PAS 41, Agriowliure - Bearer Plomts
nting requirements for hivlogical agsets that

. PAG 16, Property, Plant and Equipment
biological assets that mest the

(Amendments), the amendments cliange the accot
mest the definition of bearel' P
definition of bearer plants will o
apply, After initial recognition, bearér plants
cost (before marity) and using sither the cos

lants.- Under the arnendments,
‘ of PAS 41 Tnstead, PAS 16 will

4 under PAS 1€ at accumulated
del (aifter maturity).

o longer be within the scope
will be measure
¢ model or Tevaluation me

R




seops of

* fnancial statements wilt have 1o apply that change re

required 10 apply this me

“petyreen an investor and its associate or joint venti

PERS 11, Joint Arrangements - Accountting for Acquisitions

© that the amendments do 0ot apply when ihe

sl

The amendments aiso require that produce that grows on bearer plants will remain in the
PAS 41 measured et fair valus loss costs 10 sell. For government graots related 1o
bearer planty, PAS 20, Accounling for Government Cramts and Disclosure of Government
Azgistance, will apply. The emendments are rerrospectively effective for annual periods
beginning o or after Jenuary 1, 2016, with early adoption permitted, This standard is not

relevant to the Compaly.

Separare Financial Staiements '

PAS 27, Separate Financial Statements - Eauity Method i
¢ equity method to acoount for

(Amtsndments], the amendments will allow antities to use th )
investments in subgidiaries, joint ventures and associates in their separate financisl statsments.

Entities already applying PERS and electing to-change 1O the equity method int ifs separate
trospectively. For first-ttme adopters of

fuencial stetements, they will be
o 0 PERS. The amendments are
12016, with early adoption

DFRS electing to use the equity method in its separate
thod from the date of transitio
effective for anpual periods heginning on or afer January
permitted. The Qeandard is not relevant to the Company.

d PAS 28, Jrvestments in Associates and Joint

PFRS 10, Consolidated F inancial Statgments. an
Ventures - Sale or Clontribution of Assets betweer an Investor and its Associare oF Jaint
dged inconsisienoy between the requirsments

Venture, these pmengments acdress an acknowle
e or contribution of asseis

in PFRS 10 and those in PAS 28 {2011) in dealing with the sal
re. The amendments require that a full gain

or loss is recognized when & fransection involves 2 business (whether it is housed in &

gubsidiary or not). A partial gain or loss is recognizad when 2 ransaction involves assets thel
do not constituts & business, ever. if these assets are houged in & subsidiary. These

smendments are effective from anpual petiods beginning on of after January 1, 2016,

of Interests in Joint Operations -
{Atnendments), the amendments to PFRS 11 require that & joint operater acoounting for the
aequisition. of an interest it 6 joint operation, in which the activity of the joint operation
constifutes & business must apply the relevant PERS 3 principles for bysiness combinations
scoounting. The amendments also clarify that e previously held interest in a joint operation s
not remeasured on the aequisition of ant additional interest i the same joint operation while
joint contro! is retatned. In addition, scope exclusion has been added 10 PFRS 11 to speeify

perties sharing joint control, including the
reporting entity, are under somtnon contro] of the same ultimate coniroiling party.

The amendments apply 10 woth the acquisition of e initial interest in & joint cperation ang the -
acquisition of any additional interests in the same joint operation anc are prospectively
offective for annual periods beginning on. or afier January 1, 2016, with early sdoption
permitted. : ‘
PERS 14 is en optiovel standard that allows an
regulation, to continue applying most of its existing

PRERS 14, Regulotory Deferral ACCOUNIS,
o its firgi-time adoption af

entity, whose activities are subject o rate-
accounting policies for reguiatory deferral accoutt baiances Up

PFRS. Entities that adopt PFRS 14 must present the regulatory deferral accounts &s separate
line items on the statement of financial position and present movements in these account
balanwes a8 separ fit or loss and other goreprehensive

afe line items in tke statbment of pro
income:. Lhe standard requires discloslires on the neturs uf, and risks assqqiated with, the
entity’s rate-regulation and the effects of fhat rate-regulation ot stg fpanciel stafements.

PFRS 14 is effective for annua] periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016, The standard 16
pot relevan to the Company.

i
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»  Angual Improvements ta PFRSs (2012 - 2014 cycle)

Held for Sale and Discortinied Operations - Changes in

Methods of Disposal, the amendment is apptied prospectively and clarifies that chenging

from 2 disposal through sale to 4 disposal through distribution to owners and vice-versa

ehould not be considersd to be & 08w plan of disposal, rather itis 2 continuation of the
ion of the appiication of the yefjuirements in

original plen, There is, therefore, no interrupti
© PFRS 5. The amendment also clarifies that changing the disposal method does not change

the date of clnssification.

« PFRS 5, Non-current Asseis

«  PFRE 7, Fingncial MSUHmenis: Disclosures » Servicing Comracts, PERS 7 requires an
volvement in & transferred asget that is

entity to provide Hisolosures for any continuing in

derecognized in ity entirety. The amendment clasifies that s, servicing contract that
‘ncludes a fee can congiitute contimiing invoivement in a financial asset. An srtity must
assess the nature of the fee and arrangement against fhe gnidance in PFRS 7 in order to
gesess whether the disclosures are required. The amendment is fo be applied such that the.
assegsment of which servicing sontracts sonstifuts continuing invelvement will need to be
dane retrospestively, However, comparative disclosnres &e not required to be provided

for ay period beginning befare tie annual period in which the entity first applies the
amendments. '

« ' PFRS 7, Applicability of the Amerdments. to PE RS 7 to Condensed Interim Finametal
Sratemants, this amendment s applied tetrospectivety and clarifiss that the disclogures on
offsetting of financial assets and foancial Tahilities are not.required in the condensed

ipterim financial report unless they provide s significant update 10 the informarion
reported in'the most recent annual report.

»  PAS 18, Employee Benefis - Regional Market Issue Regarding Discourd Rate, this
amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that market depth of high quality

corpotats bonds is pssessed baged on the cyrrency i wittch the cbligation is denominated,
«there is no desp market for

rather than the country whete the obligation is loeated. Whet
high quality eorporate bonds i that cuirency, governtnent bond rates must be used.

e PAS 34, Juerim K inanciol Reporting - Disclosure of Informatiot ‘Eisewhere in the
nterim Finavcial Report’, +he amendment s applied retrospectively aridl claxifics that the
im financial statements oF ‘

raquim'd.in’carimﬂisclosm'es [must either be in the intert
incorporated by cross-reference between the interim financial statements and wherever

they are inciuded within the greater interim (e.g., inihe managemont

' sommentary or risk report).

financial report

© Effective Jansary 1, 2018
« PEFRS b, Financidl Instruments » Hedge Accounting and dmendments o PFRS 9, PFRS 7 and

DAS 36 {2013 version), DFRS 9 (2013 version) already Includes the third phase of the project

¢ replace PAS 39 which pertaizs © hedge accouting, This version of PFRS 8 replaces the

rujes-based hedge accounting model of PAS 19 with & more principles-based approach.
Changes include replacing the rules-based hedge offectiveness test with an objectives-based
test that focnses on the epondinic retattonship betwean the hedged item and the hedging
instrument, and.the @ oot of credit visk on that geonomic relationship; allowing risk
components © be designeted a5 the hedged item, 110t onty for financigl ftems. but a.}se-fcr non-
finangeial items, provided thet the risk component is separately identifiable and reliably

“he forward eloment of & forward

measurable; and allowing the time value of an optiot,
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contract and any foreign cutsency basis spread fo be excluded from the designation cf 4
derivative instrignent a3 the hedging instrument and accounted for 85 COSTS of hedging. FFRS

9 also vequites more extensive disclusures for hedgs accounting.
datory effective date. ‘T'he mendatory effective date of -

hen the final version of PFRS 0 was adopted by the
stiil for approval by BOA.

DFRS 9 (2015 version) has no mel
© January 1, 2018 was gventudlly set W

RESC. The adoption ofthe fina} version of PERS &, however, is

¢+ DERSY, F inancial Istrements (2014 or finel version), in July 2014, the final version of
PFRS , Alnancial Instruments, wag issued. PFRSY cuflects all phages of the financial
insiruments project and replaces PAS 39, Financial Insrriments’ Recognition and
Ieasurement, and all previous versions of PFRS 9. The standard introdlices new
requirements for classification snd [measursmentt, mpairment, and hedge accounting PFRS §
is effective for annual periods beginning on OF after January 1, 2018, with earfy epplication

permitted. Hetrospective application it required, but comparative information is not
compulsory. Early application of previous versions of PFRS @ is permitted if the date of
initial appiieation is before February 1, 2015, '

IERS 15, Revenue from Comracts with Customers, IFRE 15 was ssued in May 2014 and
establishes a new five-siep model that will apply to revenue arising from coniracts with
custorers. Undsr IFRS |5 ravenue is recognized ab &0 amount thet reflects the consideration
to which an entity expects 10 be entitied in exchange far transferring goods or gervices to &
customes. The prineiplss i IFRS 15 provide a more structured approach to meaguring and
Krecwagnizing pevenye. Thenew revenus siandard is applicable 1 all entities and wilk supersede,=
all current revenue recognition requirements undor IFRS. Either a full o modified
retrospective application is tequired for annyal periods beginning.on ar atfer Jenuary 1, 2017
with early adaption permitted. The Compeany i§ currensly assessitg the impact of TFRS 15 and
plans to adopt the new standard en the required effestive date onee adopted locally.

3 ummary of Significant Accounting Policies

Cash and Cash Byuivalents
Cash inciudes ash on hand and: in banks. Cash equival
investments that 470 readily convertible to known amounts
£ placement and are sulsiect to an

ents are shoti-tarm, highly liquid
of cash with original maturitiss of three
months or less from dates © insignificant risk of changs in value.

sqet or paid 1o transter 8 liability in an
rement date. The fair value
ell the asset OF trangfer the

Determination of Fair Value

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell and

orderly transection between merket participants ak the measu
Znsaction 1o 8

measurement is based on the presumption that the
liability tekes place either; .

v inths pr'mcipal market tor the asset OF Hability, or o
s in the absence of & principat market, in the most sdvaptageous market far the asset or lability.
The ptincipa! or the paost advantzgecus market must be accessible to te Company.

The fair vatue of an 8s3st or & liability s measured ustg the assumptions that market 'par?':cipmﬂs
market participants act ip their best

would use whel pricing the. assel o7 {jability, essuming that

econotaic interast.

il

it

ATHERAAE



Assets and liabilities for which fair vahue is mieasur

,‘ generally extablished by regulat

-8 -

4 fair vaing measurement of & wonfinancial asset takes o accountt & market participant’s ability
to generate cconomic benefits by using the asset in ity highest and, best use or by seliing itto
another market participant that would uge the asset in its highest and bast use, ‘

are sppropriate in the oircurnstances and for which

The Company uses valuation technigues that _
jue, maximizing the use of relevant observable

sufficient data are available to measuye fair va
mputs and minimizing the use of ynobservable iputs.

od or disclosed in the Company’s financial
described a5 follows, based on the

siatements axe catogorized within the fair value hierarchy,
rement &s & whole:

Jowest leve! input that is sigaificant to the fair velus measy

Level 1 - Quoted funadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets of tabilities:
Level 2 - Valuation techuigues for-which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair

vaiue meastrement is directly or. indirectly observable; and :
Level 3 - Valuation tochniques forwhich the lowest Jovel input that i significant to the fair
value measurement is uncbservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statemments on arecutring basis, the
Company determitiss whether transfars have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
gssessing cetegorization (based on the lowest tevel input that is significant to the fair valoe

meagurament as & whole) at the end of each reporting date.

The Company determines the poiicies and prlocedures for both recurring and non-recurting fair
value measurements, For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined
classes of assets and lisbilities on the bagis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the assetor

igbifity and the level of the fair value hierarchy.

The Company recognizes transfers ioto and wamsfers out of fair velue Tierarchy levels by
reagsessing categorization {pased on the lowest leve! input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whoie) as at the date of the event or change i cireumstances that caused the

sransfer,

Finzneial Instruments
Daie of Kecognition. The Company recognizes a financial asset or & financial i{ability in the
statements of financial position when it becomes a party to the contraciual provisions of the

instrument. In the case of 8 regular way purchase of sale of financial asseis, recognition and

derecognition, as applicable, 18 Jone using settlement date acoountng. Regular wey purchases or
saies are purchasss or sales of financial assets that require deltvery of assets within the period
:on or convention in the market place.

. Financial instruments &€ recognized initially at fajr value,

deration given (i case of an asset) or regefved (in case of &

Inttial Recogniticn and Measiurem
except for those designated at FYPL,

which is the fair value of the consi
ljabitity). The injtial measyrement of financial mstruments,

inslucies.i’mnsaction gost,

RN




' the statement of compreb

E
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The Company clessifies it Ainancial instruments the following catsgories: financial assets and
financia! liabilities at FVPL, icans and reeeivablas, held-to-maturity (HTM) investments, AFS
investments and other financial Habilities. The ciassification depends on the purpose for which the
instryments are acquired and whether thage are guoted in an active market, Management
determines the classification at initial recognition and, where allowed and appropriafe, £e-
evaiuates this classification st dvery reporting date. -

Th; Company has a0 HTM. investments and financial tiabiiifies at FVPL as at December 31, 2014
and 2013, o '

Subsequent Measuremant. The subseguent measurement oF financizl assets depends on their

- olagsification &8 follows:

bles are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
datermingble payments that are not qoted in an active market. After initial measurement, such
financial assets are subgequently measured at amortized cost using the & active interest method -
(EIR), less impairment. Amortized costis calculated by taking into gooount any discount or
prexpium ol acquisition and fes Or CO8E that are an integral part af the BIR, The EIR amortization
a5 weil as the losses arising from impalimment is included in the “Tmerest income” account in the

statemettt of gomprehetsive income. Loans and receivables are included in current assets if
maturity is within twelve raonths from the reporting date. Otherwise, these are olassified as

noncurrent assels.

Loems and Receivables. Loans and receiva

The Company’§ joans and receivables include cash and cash equivalents and gecounts raceivable.

non-deriveiiva financial assets which include equity
investments classified as AFS 819 those that are neither
quated at FVPL. Dbt secnrities in this category 81
definite period of time and that may be soid in response
market conditions.

AFS Irvestpenis. AFS investiuenis are
ipvestments and debt securities. Bquity
neld classified as hetd for tading nor dest
those that are intended fo be leld for an in
1o needs for liguidity ot in response to changes in

Afier initial recognition, AFS myestmeats are measured at fair yalue with unrealized gaitis or
{asses being recognized &5 a separdte component of equity until the investment is derecognized of
until the investment is determined to be impaired ot which time the cumulative gain or loss
previousiy reported in equity is included in fhe staiement of comprehensive income. Unlisted AFE
financial assets, on the other hand, are carried at cost, net of any impairment uattl the investment
% derecognized. Intersst earned while holding AFS investments is repotted as intersst income in
ensive MoOmE. .

Other Firianeial Liabilities. This vategery pertains to fmancial lighitities that are not held for
trading or not degignated a3 at FVPL upon the inception of the ({xbility. These include abilities
arising from operations o borrowings. Other financial lishilities are rc:cognizle& initially at fair .
value and are subsequently catried at amortized co8h taking into account the impact of epplying
the DI method of amortization (0 accretion) for any.related premium, discOunt and any gjirecﬂy‘
gtributdble frais action costs. Gains and losases are recognized in the statement of compreiensive
incoms when the iabilities are derecognized a5 well a8 through the EIR. amortization process.
The Com-pany’s.ﬁnancial fiabilities inchide acoounts payable and other current [iabititiss
{excluding StatuICry payables) and due to sharsholders. )

4(j14 and 2013, toe Comp
d as hedging nstruments.

As at December 31, any doses 0ot have sy fiancial tiabilities at FVPL

or derivatives designate




.....

© When an sxisting fi

10 -

sinl [netruments Betsyyesn Liability and Eouity .
£ 1t provides for & contractual obligation to:

Classification of “ipan
A fipancial instrumnent is ciassified as debt ]

s gdeliver sash or another financial agset to another entityy or
= exchange financiel assets O financis! Habilities with anoth

potentially unfavorable to the Company’; 0 . .
¢ gatisfy the ohligation other than by the exchang® of ¢ fixed amount of cagh o another financial

mssetfora Fixed mumber of own equity shares.

o entity under conditions that are

1¥the Company does not have i unconditional right to avoid delivering cash o another financizl )

assel 10 setile its contractual obligation, the abligation meets the definition of & financial liability.
The componens of issued finansial instruments that contain both liability and equity elements are’

accounted for separately, with the equity compone:
deducting from the instrument as-a whole the arhount separately determine

liability component on the-date of lssue.

Derecognition of Finapcjal Asscts gnd Lisbilities

Financial Aésef. A financial asset (o1, when applicab‘ie, ap
 assets) is derecognized when!

it being assigaed the residual amount afier
d as the fair value of the

art of & financial asset or part ofa

group of sirilar financia

flows from the assef have expived; or .

n  the Compaiy has tranaferrad itg right to receive cash flows from the asset and either: (a) has
transfesred substantially sl the risks and rewasds of the ageet, ot (b) has peither tranaferred nor
retained substantially ell the risks and rewards of tize asset, but hag transferred control of the

agsel

e the right to receive cash

When the Company hes sransferred its right to receive cush flows from an asset or has entered infc
s pass-ibrough arrangetnent and has neither transferred ot cstained substantially all the risks and
rewards. of the assel nor-iransferred contro] of the nsset, the asset 18 recognized to the extent of the
Company’'s continuing involvement in fhe asset. In that case, fne Company also recognizes an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are rmeasured op & basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained. '

Financial Liabiliries. A financial Hability s derecognized When the obiigation under the liability

is discharged or cancelied or has expired.

nancial Hability 18 replaced by another from the same jender on substantially
differert terms, of the terms of an existing tiability are substantially modified, such an exchange of
modification is treated as & derecognition of the original Hability and 1he recqgniticm of 8 new
liabifity, and the differpnce in the respective carrying amounts is recopnized in the gtatement of

comprehensive foeme.

| agset or group of financial assets

Impaizment of Financial Assets
emed o be irapaired, if end only

The Company assesses & each reporting date whether a finansia
is impeired. A financial asset of & grouy of fipancial assets is de
if, there is objective evidence of tmpaient as 5, result of ope OF ATE events that qqlcurred after
the initial recognition of the asset (an inourred 1ass event) and that |oss event has an impact ot the
estimated suture cash flows of the financial asget of & group of financial 2ssets (st can be reliably
estimated. Objective pv dications that the borrowsr or & group

idence of impainment may include in ‘ we
of borrowers i experiencing significay’ financial difficulty, defauit of delinquency in mtersst of




- on agsets carried at amortize

g1 -

, the probability that they will enter bankruptey ot other financial
servable data indicate that there is measurable-decrease in the

principal payments
economic conditions that correiste with

reprganization and where ob
egtimated future cash flows, such s ¢hanges in arreats Of

defaults.

Fmaneial Assels Carried at Amortized Cost. Tf there is objective svidence that an impairment loss
4 cost has been incurred, the amout of the loss is meagured as the

Jifferonce betweon the asset’s carrying amount and the present vafue of estimated futurs cash
flows {excluding future expected credit losses that have not beed incurred) discounted 2t the
tersstrate (L.e., the effective intorest raie computed at inftial

finanicial asset’s original effeotive in
recognition). The carrying amount of the assat [5 reduced through the use of an allowanee
din the statement of somprehensive income.

aceount, The amournt ofthe loss shall be recognize
The finsncial assets, together with the asgociated ailowanes accounts, are- wWriten off when there i

oo realistic prospect of future TECOVELY.

The Company first agaesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for
finaneial assets that ars individually significant, and individuahiy of collectively for financial
agsets that are not individuzlly significant. If it ie determined that no objective evidence of
impairment exists for an individnally assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, the agsst
ig included in & group of financial assets with similar credit risk, characteristics sud that group of
Financial assets is collectively assessed for fmipairmemt. Assets that are individually assessed for
impajrment and for which ar impairment loss i8-o7 continues to be recognized are no longer

iclugded in a collective assessment ofimpairment.

e amount of the impai_rment loss decreasss and the decrease can be
the impeirment was reco gnized, the previousty

regognized fpairment 10ss 18 reyersed, 1o the-extent that the carrying value of tho asset does not

exceed iis amartized cost 48 the reversal date, Any subsequett reversal of an impatrment foss is
recognized in the statement of comprehengive ncome. Interest noomie continues © be acerued on
the reduced carrying amount paged on fhe original effective interest rafe of the asset. Loans,
together with the associated allowance, are writgen off whon there is no realistic prospect of future
sferred to the Company. Ifa

recovery and all collateral, if any, has been realized or has been tral
4 in the statement of eomprehensive

Siure write-off is later recovered, the recavery is ragoghize )
income. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment Joss {5 recognized in the statement of

comprehensive insoms, 10 the oxtent that the carying vatue of the asset does not exceed s
amortized cost at the revarsal date. ,

1f, in 2 subsequent period, th
—elated objectively to an svent opcourring after

idence that an impairment loss hes

oted equity instrument enat is not carried at fair value becanse its falk
d, or on derivative asset that ig linked to and must be settied by
ount of the loss i meagured as the '
value of egtimated future cash flows

financial assel

Financial Assers Carvied at Cost. Tf there is an objective &V

beer ingurred ol &n U
value cannot be reliably messure
delivery of such an unguoted equity ipstrument; the g
difference between the carrying amoutt and the present
discoutted at the current market rate of return for a stmilar
“Day 1 Difference. " TWhere the transaction prics is different from the fair velue of othet

qrument or based ofi & valuation fechnique

ohservable curnent market transactions i the same ins : h
whose variables inolude only data from observable market, the Compalty TeCORRIZES the differsiice

perween the transaction price and fair valus of the fAnancial instruments (a Dy 1 difference”) in
arofit or loss anless it qualifies for recognition s S0IME other type qf asset. Jn cases whers dafa
which ig act observable is used, the difference petwesn the transaction price and modsl velue 5

T



Pasa
i ,

- ‘only :*ecognized' in pr

" Equity
- Capital

derecognized. For ees
recognizing the “Day

Offsetting of Fipancial Ipstrumenis

Financial assets and financial Habilities are o
Iy if, there is & eu
an intention to ¢
soitle the linbilities simultaneously. This, is not gene
therafore, the related assets and iabilities are present

of financial position if; and on
recognized amounts and there is

position.

stiributable to t
tax, Proceeds and/or fair va

additional paid-in capital.

Farulngs per shere .
B_asic eurnings per shars (EPS) arnount
weightad average pumber of ordinary s

dilutive potential commen shares outstanding,

Revenue

Revenus is récogil
Company and the amount can b reliab
made. Revenue s meagured at the fait

1to accoun contractually defined terms 01
pSsegacs 168 rEvenus ArTangements againgt 8

principal or agent.

Jnterest Income. Revenne is recogNnize

yield on tho asset.

Exeroise Fees. Revenus is recognized

Expensss .

Expenses presoated a8 “Operating eXpenses

gre recognized 88 incurred.

Taxes

Cuprent ncome Tox. Current ingoms t
at the amount expecte
sax laws used to compuie fhe dgmount @
reporting date.

Cprrent neoms 18X relating to items 1@
i, profit or loss. Managemert pe
to situations in W
provisiong where appropriate,

ofit or loss when the inputs become obs
h transaction, the Compaty
1 differencs” amoulll.

gtook 1s moasured at par vaiue for all shares
e issuance of new sheres are'shows in equity

zed 10 the extent (hatit is [Sr.c;babla that ¢

a% ssets and Habilit
d to be recovered from oF paid to the

riodically evaiuates: positions
hich applicable fax regulations

J2-

isqued. Incre

5 IS caic{;iated by dividin
hares outstapding during t

Iy messured, regardl
yalus of the g:ousidsratian
payment an
pecific criteria

~

d ag the interest acerues, b

npon ccmvarsioﬁ of PDRS

re those that are enected O

eognized directly in equity is
taken in the tax TEUIIS with respect

interpretation and establishes

are subject W0 1

feset and the net amou
rrently snforceable b

ettle on & net basis,
rally the case with master nefting agreswnents,

ed ¢ gross in the statements of financial

therefore, basic EPRS

» gogount n the statem

servable of when the instrument is
determings the appropriate method of

nt is reported in the statements
sgul right to offset the
ot to realize the-assets and

mental costs incurred directly

a5 & deduction from proceeds, net of .

jue of congiderations received i exCess of par vaiue are recognized as

g net income for the year hy the
he year. The Company s 1o
is the same as diluted BFS.

he ecOROmic wenefits will flow to the
e55 of when the payment is being

raceived or recsivable, taking

d exciuding taxes or duty. The Company
in order to determine if it s acting as

aking tro account the effective

0 common shares.

ents of comprehengive incoms

ies for the curremt period are measured
taxation authorities, The tax rates and

¥ substantially enacted at

recognized i equity and not

l

v



- Deferred Incomne

sufficient taxable profit will be available agalnst
' pe utilized. ‘

past of the deferred tax assels o be utilize
each reporting date and aue recognized to th

<13~

T, Deferfed income-tax is provided using the Iiability method otl temporary

sting date between the tax bases of assets and Habilities and their carrying

differences at.repo
amounts for financial repotting puposes. at the reporting date,

Deferrod 1ax linbilities are recognized for all'taxable temparary differences. Deferred tax assets
¢ that i is probable that

are recognized for all dedunciible temporary differences to the exied
which the deductible temnporsry differences can

gnized for ali deductible temporary differences, carryforward benefits
tax (MCIT) over regular corporate moome tax (RCIT) and
to the extent that it 18 probable that taxable income wili be -
and the carryforward benefits of

Deferred tax assels are 1eco
of excess minimum corporats income

net opsrating loss carryaver (NOLCO),
pvailable againgt which the deductible temporary differences,

excess MCIT over RCIT and NOLCO can be utilized sxcept:

s where the deferred tax ssset relating 10 the deductible temporary difference arises from the
sion that Is not & business combinatiou

initial recogpition of an asset OF liability 1 & transéc
and, ot the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting income nor faxable profit of.

loss, and
£ deductible temperary differences pssocinted with investments in subsidiaries and '

= nrespect O
agspeintes and interest in joint @TENGEMEnIS, deferred tax assels are recognized only to the.
exctent thet it is probable that the temporary differsnces will teverse in the foreseeable future

and taxeble income will be-gvailable against which thie temporary differences can be utilized.

it of deferred tax assefs ¢ revigwed at each reporting date and reduced to the
longer probable that sufficient taxabie profit will be available to allow all of
4 Unrecognized deferred tax sseis ar reassessed &l
o extent that it has become probable thet future taxabie

The carrying amo
enctent that it is 00

profit will allow the deferred tax assets 10 be recoversd.

Deferred tax assets and Ligbilities are measured at the tax rates that are expeoted to apply o the
year when the assef i« realized or the Hability is setled, based on tax reies and tax laws to be

gnacted or substantively enacted atthe reporting date.

enforceable right exists 0 offsel current

erl tax assets and Habilities are offsel, if 2 legally
es relate to the same taxable entity and

Defeu
urrent tax labilities pnd the deferred tax

tax assels against ¢

" the same taxation authority.

o other comprehenaive iNoome is recognized in other comprehenstve ncome

Tneome tax relating t
section of the statements of comprehensive income.

ecognized net of the amount of VAT,

Value-culded Tt ax (VAT Revenus, expensss and assets 21C T

The nef amount af VAT recoverahle from, oF payab
of “Prepaid tax and other eurrent agsets” or *Accounds payable an

accoulnts in the statements of financial position.

e to, the taxation puthority is tncluded s part
d other current Habilities”

ent cb}igaﬁon_(legal or cotigtructive) where,

Provigions are recogaizad when t on (le; 1St r
a5 & result.of & past svent it js-probable thai an outflow of assets embodying eCconapLc ?Elleﬁts will
be required 10 gettic the obligation and a reliable estimate ¢l be made of the amount of the

g}, provisions 2¢ determined by

obtligation; If the effect of the Hme yalue of money-is MEter]
R

Proyisions
he Company has & pres
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* Coitingent labilities are not récognizéd in the financial st
. notes to financial statements unless the possibility of an putfl

4 -

discounting the expected future cash flows at & pre
of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Where
discounting 18 used, the increase in the provision due 10 the passage of time is recognized as interest
expense. Where the Company expecis & provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is
recognized as & separate asset but only when the receipt of the refmbursement is virtually cerain.

_tax rate that reflects current market ass gagmmients

stemants, These are disclosed in the
ow of resources embodying

remote. Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements bat
inflow of ecoroimic tienefits is probable,

Contingencies

gconomic benefits 18
are disclosed in the notes 10 financial statements when a8

Events after the Reporting Date _
Post yzat-end overts that provide additional information abaut the Compsny’s position at the

reporting date {adjusiing events) are refiected in the financial statements, Post year-end events
that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes 10 financiel statements whea material,

wxpenses and disclosure 0

' The Company canies ATS fnvestment at

“Estimates and Assurnptions

Summary of Siguificant Accounting Judgments, Esthmates and Assumptions

financial statements i compliance with PERS requires the Company to
make eglimates and assumptions tha affect the reported &mMOULTS of mssets, liabilities, income and
foontingent agsels und jabilities, Fufure avents may oeour which can,
canse the estimates used in arriving at the estimates to change. The effects of any changes in
egtimates wili be recoghized in the fipancisl gratements as these becomte reasonably determinable.

The preparation of the

ased on historieal experience and

Judgments ang estimates are continualty evaluasd and are b ;
pelisvert to bs determinable under

other factors, including expectations-of future events thet are
the circumstances. _

Judginents
accounting policies, management has made the

in the process of applying the Company’s
follawing judgment, apat from those invoiving estimates and assuraptions, which has the most

significant effect on the amourits recognized in the financial statements.

of AFS Investment, The Company has 1o intention of selling its AFS

Determining Fair Value
d may be sold in Tesponse © liquidity

investment in fhe near e It is being heid indefinitely an
hanges in markst condision. Accordingly, the {lompany has classified its Union
or UBP Tier Note, 88 AFS investment, The Company has 1o

requirements or ¢
s from the end of the reporting date.

Bank of the Philippines Tier 2 Note,
plans to dispose its AFS investment within 12 mount

fair value. Fair value of AFS invesiment recorded in the
statemnents of financial position carmot e derived frot active marksts, hence fair value ‘
determination is desmed based on management’ s esHma® of amounts that could be veelized undsr
current market conditions, assuming an orderly liguidation over & reasonable period of tims.

The fair vajue of AFS investment i discussed i Note 14.

er key sources of estimation uncertainty at
| adjustment to the carrying .
d below: The Company

IR

ntions concerning the futurs and oth :
shat have & significant rigk of causing a material g
ets and Labilities within the next financial year are discusss

il

The key assim
reporting date,
amounts of ass

Il

I

g
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" hased its assumptions and estimates on parameter

 and excess MCIT is baged on the forecasted taxeble in
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< gvailable when the financial statements were

prepared, Existing ciroumstances and assumpticns ahout futire developmeris, howevet, may
change due to matket changes o CireUmSACes arising beyond the control of the Company. Such

changes are reflected in the assumptions wher these OCCur.
Impairment of AFS Investments, The Company 8Ssesses sdividually at each reporting date
whether there is an objective avidencs that.an investment based on the same criferia a8 financial
pgsers. cartied at amortized cost. However, the Compatiy also recognizes an impairment toss, if
and only if, it is probable that the Company wiil sell the investments and the expected cash flows
to be realized from.the disposal of the AT S jnvestments are less than their carrying values. ‘

42013, The carrying vaiue of AFS

pairment losses in 2014 a1
ber 33, 2014 and 2013, respectively

There were no provisicns for im
investment amotnted to £71.76 miilion and nii s at Decen

(see Note 7).

Estimating Realizabilily of Deferred Tex Assels. The Company's assesament on the recognition of
deferred tax, assels ot nondeductible temporary difforeioes and carryforward benefits of NOLCO
oomme in the subseguent periods. This

forecast is based on the Company’s future sypecintions on revenus and expenies,

d tax assgts amounting to B0.87 million and 21,05 miltion

gspectively as manageraent believes that
s temporary differences

The Company did not recognize deferre
ag gt December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, v
sufficient taxable profit will not be availeble against swhich the deductib

can be utilized (see Note 113,

2013 and 2012, respectively.

Philippine Deposit Receipis

822,113,000 FDRs relating 10 §22,114,000 GMA shares,

On July 30, 2007, the Compary issued
5 123,317,000 GhiA

On August 21, 7047, additional 123.3 17,000 PDRs were issued relating t
shares. Bach PDR was jecued fora total oonsideration of 28.50.

Fagh PDR grants the holders, upon payment of the exercise price and subject to certain other
conditions, the delivery of onte GMA share or the-sale of and delivery of the procesds of such sale
j isterec gwner of the GNA shares covered

of one GMA share. The Compaiy remains to be the regl

by the FDRs. The Company also retains the voting rights over the GMA, shares.

The (VLA shares are etili subject 0 ownership restrictions ofi chares of corporaticns engngod.in

mass media and GIVLA mey rejest the transfer of shares to PeYSons other than Phifippine natienals,

The PDRs wers listed in the PSE on July 30, 2007, and the same may e exercised at any time
spect of GMA shares recsived

from sald dete, Any cash dividends or sther cash distributions in re.
by the Co penses of the Company for the current

smpany shall be applied toward the operating eX . :
and preceding years. A furfher amount equal 1o the operating expenses b the preceding year ghall
be set agide fo mesk operaling of other expenses for the succeeding years. Ay amgunt in excess
of the aggregate of the operating expenses paid and the cperating fund for sqch Permd sheli be
distributed to PDR yolders pro-rata on the first business day a dividends are received
by the Copany.
Upon exerciss of the PDRs, a1l exercise prive of £0.05 (VAT inclusive) per share shall be paid by -

1 5, : - Nal
the PDR holders. The exercige price is shown 25 “Fyercige foes ' gocount In tk}‘e statements o3
g. Exercise 1665 amounied 0 29,41 mitiion, pil apd B0 22 milliot in 2014,

frer sueh cash

comprehensive incom

WIRa

e

i

|l




16 -

Imimediately prior to the closing of the PDR offering and additional issusnces described above,
OMA, to which the Compeny s affiliated, wansferred g45,432,000 (;MA ‘shares to the Company
i rplation to which the PDRs wers jgsued. For 4s long as the PDRs are not exercised, the.shares
aderlying the PDRs wil] continue to be registered in the name of and owned by the Company,
and all rights pertaining to these shares, including vyoting rights, shall be exareised by the |
Company. The obligations of the Company 0. deliverthe GIMA shares on exercise of the right

contained in the PDRs are sscured by the Pledge of Shares in favor of iife Pledge Trustee geting on

behalf of each holder of & POR over the GMA shares.

At any time after the PDR offering, & shareholder may, &t his option and from rime o time, deltver
ghares to the Compaay in exchange for an equal qumber of PDRs, The exchangs is based on
prevailing traded value of GMA shares af the time of transaction with tae corresponding PDR

option prics,
y retains the rights © receive the cash flows from ifs investment
those cash flows to the PDR helders, net of

“pass-through’ test is met because the

As mentioned sbove,the Compan
in AMA snd assumes 2 coniractual ebligation to pay

operating expenses {a “pass-tarough” arrangement). The
Company {a) has 1o obligation © the PDR holders unless it collects equivalent amounts from its

" investment in GM4, (b) i contractually prohibited from selling or pledging its investment in
VLA other than as security to the PDR holders for the obligation to pay the cash flows, and
{v) has au obligation to remit any cash flows from the (qvestment in GMA to the PDR holders

without material delay.

Under the ‘Lpaﬁs-thrﬁugli"’ test, the Coinpan;r 1 deame& to have trangferred substantially the risks
snd rewards of ite investment in GMA. Accordingly, the investment in GMA and the Jabilities
related to the issuance of the PDRs are not recognized oY the Company.

The foliowing are the details and movements of the PDRs and the underiying GMA shares for the
years ended December 31 L _ ‘

PDRs Nimiber of Shazes
2014 2013 2014 2013
Balance at peginning of year £7,188,833,300 =7 88,833,300 457,509,900 §57,509.800
 Bxercise of PDRg (77,900,800}, - {9,164,800) -
RBatance of ead of year £7,210,932,300 T7488,833,300 R4%.345,000 857,509,800

On April 2, 2014, the Company approved a cagh distribution to. PDR holders of 0.27 per shere, in

velation to dividends declared by GMA, totaling to B231.33 million to ail shareholders of record as

at Aprli 24, 2014. These were remitied t0. PDR holders on May 20,2014,

cash distribution 1© PR holdets of B0.23. per share,
: % million to &ll shareholders of revord

Om April 24, 2013, the Company_approveﬁ 21
15,2013,

in relation to dividends declared by GMA, fotaling to B2143
as at April 17, 2015, These were remitied 10 PDR. hioiders on May

The Company retains the right to receive cash flows from its invesiments in GMIA blut it algo
assumag & contractual obligation to pay those cash flows t0 the PDR holders which is GonSldez"E:d H
-+ Spags-through” arrangement. Thus, the Company dié not recognize the dividend income .I‘.eceiVed
from GMA atising from the acquisition and holding of the underlying shareg of GMA In Hs

" fmancial gistements.

T
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Tyent afier the Reporting Date . . . ‘ L
pprovad a cash distribution to FIIR holders of 80.25 per share,

On Miarch 30, 2015, the Company &
in relation to dividends declared by GMA, totaling 2211.75 million to all shareholders of record as

at April 24, 2015 and will be paid on May 19, 2015,

" Company,

Cash and Cash Equivalents -
: _ 2014 2013
Cash on hand atid in banks ©B],2440,820 B 643,306
Shapt-term deposils . : 2‘5‘424 401 46,286,527
: . B26,665.221 847 029,988

Cash in banks earn inferest at the respestive bank deposit rates. Shart-term deposits are made for
yarying pericds of up o ihree months depending on the immediate casi requirements of the

and enrn interest at the Tespeotive short-iermn deposit rates.

m cash in banks and short-tetm deposits amo-unted to 81,12 million,

tnterest income earned fro
81,21 million and #1.69 million in 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Availablp-for-sale Investment

o 5 ten-yoar UBP Tier Note with & e vahe of

In 2014, the Compaiy purchased at p
g%4, The maturity date of this acte is on

271,00 million beating & fixed interestrats of 3.3
Fepruary 20, 2025.
Interest ‘mcoine earned on the UBP Tier Noté amounted to. £0.12 million 2014,

“The movement in AFS snvestment is as follows:

Dalance ot beginning of yesr A
Additions " ) 21,000,000
Chenge in fair value : ' 759,216
Bainnce at end of vear ¥ 1.758,216

As at December 31, 2014, movemeit of net unrealized gaii 0B AFS investment is as foilowe:

Balance & beginuirig of year B

Gain due to changes i fair market va ‘
invesiment 759,216

Tax effect of the changes in fair market values ’ (227,765)

T $531,451

iue of ATE

WA

!
dliial

G



18-

3, Accounts Payabie and ‘Other Current Liabiitics

. 2014 3013
#ocounts payable 20,240 247,454
Acgrued expensss: .
Professional and trust fegs 225,910 657,524
Cthers 1,760 4,280
Deferred output VAT 4,284 -
‘ - . T 241,194 B719,558

Accounts payable and accraed expenses are nom.

the next financial year. Accrlied expenses represent acor

misceliznsous SXpPeEnses.

interest-be
ned-audit fees, retainer fees and

aring and are normally settied within

9. Eg uity
4. Capital Stock

The Company has 10,000 authosized, subscribed and

vaiue per share.

igsued cOMMOn ShAres with £#10.00 par

registration of securities with

The following summarizes the infermation o the Company's
the BEC as required by Securities Regulation Code Rule 68, As Amended (2011%
Authorized Number
‘ Number of Tssued Tssue/
Date of SEC Approvel _ of Shares Shares {ffer Price
' ' 045,432,000 045,432,000 B8.50

Taly 30, 2007
{, Retained Barnings

On March 30, 2015, the BOD approved ‘tr.se Co
dividends amounting to

The Company has 5o divi

1n 2012, the Compauy declared £259 per shate
all stockholders of record as at May

10, Operatiaag,Expansas

Taxes and Hoenmses
{Qthers

53,50 million to all .stoc

dend declaration in 2013,

ash dividends arpounting ro B2,

ot
25, 2012, This was paid on June &, 2012,

214
Listing fess PG90,285
Professional fees ‘ 250,085
' 42,788

31,838
?1.845.026

mpany’s deciaration and digtribution of cash
iholders of recerd as af December 31, 2014

5% million 1o

2613 2012

5700,198 - 560,275
479,835 479,835

- 43,168 33,239
31,982 24,605

P1,344,184 21,057,034

-
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11. Income Taxes.

Cugrent Income T2%
The compoensnis of the Company’s provision for cuprent income tax &re 23 follows:
\ _ 2014 2013 2012
Finel tax interast P248,563 741,099 337,512
M_QIT 8,183 - 4,451
' , T P256,746 w241,099 B341,061

The reconcitiation of the pro
nrovision for ‘ncome tax 49 §

vision for income tax computed at
hovt in the statements of compre

statutory meome tax rate and the
hensive incoms is suniimatized as

follows:
2014 2013 2612
Incoms 2% computed at statutory . ‘ : '
income tax raie 252,080 (B41,607) - B45,420
Deduetion in incoms 18X resuiting
from:
Ingerest.income alrsady -
. subjected to finaktex (124,282) (120,549) (168,528)
Change in unrecognized defarred tax ‘
‘ agsets : (181,061} 326,985 721,368
gipked NOLCE and MCIT 386,009 76,290 -
) 156,746 B141,009 B798,202
Ljnreccggiged Defesred Tax Asseis : ' .
i7ad deferred 1aX BBSELS OU NOLCO and MCIT ameunting i

Tx 2017, the Company’s 201} recognt
$434,638 and g21,1661, respectively, were der

taxable profis will not be available ageinst whic
utilized. -

grized deferred tax asssts &5 at December 31

acognized as
1 the deductlble temporary differences can be

management believes that sufficient

'are 25 follows‘:

The unreco
2014 S 23
NOLCO : ' $856,838 $i,045,882
WCIT - 12,634 . 445t
' 2859272 £1,050,333

Ag at Decertibet 31, 2014,
paable income and RCIT due, respec

Date Paid/ Tneurred
Drecember 31, 202
December 31, 2013
Q_e_g:embef 31,2014

Deoomber 31, 2015
Idecember 31, 2018
‘December 31, 2017

NOLCO and MCLT that ot pe clat
iely, are as follows:

Ogtryiorward Benefit Ur To

med as deduction from future

 NOLCO MCIT
B375,304 B4.451

- 1,344,184 -
£33,883 8,183

F2,855 A61 217,634

MR

e
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The moVeIments it NOLCO and MCIT foilow;

. 2014 2013
CNOLCO: ' '
Balance at beginning of vear 3,486,273 £2,324,187
Additions = 635,583 1,344,184
. Expired NOLCC : (1,266,028} {182,098)
" Balance at ond of year 21,853 461 B3 486,273
MCIT: » . .
Balance at begioning of year o o P4,451 226,112
Addigions ' 8,183 -
Bxpired MCIT . : - (21,661)
“Batance at end of year - B1Z,634 24 451

As at Deceraber 31, 2014, defesred tax Hability pertains 1o unrealized gain on AFS investment
amounting to 20,23 million -presented under gty in the statements of financial position.

JUNEL

17. Reinted Party Pisclosures ‘
Parties are considerad to be related if one patty has the abllity. directty and indirsctly, t0 control

the other party Or 6XeICise significant influence over the otherparty in making financial and

operating decisions. Parties are alse considered o be related if they are subject to comimen

control.

Terms and Conditions of Transactions with Related Parties -
heen entered info 4t termns 0o jese favorabis thex could bave

Trapsastions with related parties have
d into with unrelated parties. The Company's

Ween obtained if the trans actions were enifere
financial statements inchude the following amounts resuiting from the transactions with related

parties as at December 31 -

Amouat/Yolume Cutstanding
ear  of Trensachions . Payable Terms . Cenditions.

...... Caegory
‘ Shareholders :
- portion of provests ratained 2014 B @47,27L,600) Upon demend, Unsecured
from issuance of PDRs 2013 . - (M,E'?l,ﬂﬂ()} - peninterest-bearing ’
Belo, Gozon, Blma Lew Firm . 2014 - (90,508) Upon demand, Tinsecurcd
2013 144,835 (432,&24} nonisoresi-pearing

ance of “Dus 0 gharelioiders™ accoutt iy the staiements of financial posttion

The outstanding bal _
perigins 0 RGOS por PDR portion of the original proceeds retatned by the Company, &5 the FDR
for the rights granted under the PDRs. This amount wiil be used for the
to be remitted to the

issuer, o consideration
liquidation of expenses ¢
selling shareholders,

ated 1o (he issuance of the PORs. Any exoess ie

The Company's key foapagement psfsonnel are employsd by GMA and no part of their salaries
was allocated to the COMPAnY.

i

T
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19 Financial Risk Management ijecﬁves and Policies

The Company’s principal financial instruments inelude cash and cash equivalents. The main
purpose of these Finenoial instrumeats includes raising financing for the Company’s operalions
and managing \demtified finencial rigks. The Company bag other financial assets and liabilities
such as accowis receivable, accounts payable and other current Habilities {excluding statutory
payables} and aue to shareholders, which arise divectly from its operations. Liquidity risk, interest

rate risk, fair valua interest rate risk and credir risk are the mair risks arising {from the Compaty’s
firencial ingtruments. .

The BOT) reviews and approves the Company's objectives and policies.

Liguidity Risk. The Company is exposed to the possibility that adverse changes It the husiness
environment and/or its operations would result i substantially higher working capital
requirernents and gubsequently pose difficuliy tn financing the additlonal working capital,

The Conpasy manages its liquidity risk by using its cash and cash equivalents from pperations ic
meet its short-term liquidity needs. The Compatsy likewiss regularly evaluates other financing
instruments and arrangements to broaden the Company’s range of finanpeing SOUIces.

"i"he.ta’b}e below summasizes the maturity profils of the Company's financial asgets used for
Tquidity risk. management PUrPOsLs and financial labilities based on contractual undiscounted

payments 8s at December 31:
" s nt December 31, 2014
' More than

1 year Total_

On Demand 3 o 12 WMonths
s e eIl

Finaneial Assets

Cash and cash equivalonts : 26,665,221 -

AFS invesiment : - - 21,759,216 21,759,216
‘ B26,065.221 B P21,759,210 248,424,437

Tinancial Liabilities

Accounts payable and other ‘ ' o
B736,918 B 2236,910
47,271,600

current Liabilities” .
- 47,271,600 7 - -
T p-  P47.508.510

Due to shareholders
247,508,510 - .

4,284 as af December 31, 2014.

' A at December 31, apls -
Op Demend 310 12 Months Total

T

* Eacinding daforrad outpid VAT amownting toP

Tinancial Asset ,
Cagh and cash equivajents B47,920,988 B P47,525,588
Financial Liabillties ‘
Acgounts payable an¢t other ' ' .
current Habiiities ’ 728,558 B ‘ B720,55%
: 47,271,600 - 47,271,500

B 243,001,158

Due to shareholders
: ?’43,001,1'5'8' '

ikl

i
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~the counterparly with &

" The credit quality of financi
- grade a8 isternal credit ratings. -

its obijgations, thus, o

L

Interest Rare Risk, Interest rate ris
instrument will fluctuste becauss o
chenges in intercst faLes

The following table demonstrates the

the years ended D
sith al} other variables beid constamt.

those already affecting profit or loss,

I is the risk that the fair val
£ changes in market interest
is minimal and is attributed to.cash and cash equivalens.
sensitivity of the Compan

ecomber 31, 2014 and 2013 to & reasonably pe
There is no impaet on the Com

ue of future cash flows of a finaucial
rates. The Company’s exposure to ‘

¥'s inoome before income tax for
ssible change in interest Fates,
pany’s sguity other than

Tncrsase '
(Decrease). in "Bffect on Jncome Before Income Tax
Basis Points 2014 2013
Cash and cash equivalents 50 133,301 P239.625
T (50) (133,301) (229,625

Fgiv Value Interest Rate Risk The Company follows a D

w to fluctuations in interes
d financial liebilities, Term deposits with banks and

d of deposit or placement,

{iabllitios to ensure that exXpOSUY
There are no floating rate financial assets an

debt securities catry fixed rates throughout the perio

¢ rate at 5.38% in 2014, Pixed interest rate
st rato risk, such as the fair vatue will fluctuate
anage its interest rafe risk, the Company places

'The Corapany’s AFS invesunent earns fixed interes
ompany to fair palue int
Jeot prices. In order to m

s exeess fands in high yield investments and other shot

instrument exposes the C
because of changes in mar

The. soliowing table below demonstrates the sens

change in intersst Tates with all other

AFE investment

Credit Risk. Credit risk, or the isk of counterg
oradit approvals, timits and monitoring proce

famnsactions witha
credit risk, The Company engures that

higtory. The Company has an internal
management of crodit expoSUre
potential Josses on S

Company does not Te(Uirs LY collateral

High Gr‘aa’é. Per.taiﬁs-to a counterparty

institutions and jolpted parties.

Standard Grade. Other financial assets not ot

ariies defaulting, is conto
dures. [t is the Company’s poliey to enter into
diversity of creditwerthy parties t0 mitigate any si

gervices are mal
mechanist 1o MO
<. The Compaty has ma
ediits extended, The Competiy’s exposure 1o &S

maximur exposure-equal fo the carry

for 15 fipancial assets.

al assets is meiaged DY the Com

who ig not expected by the

it risk exposure 18 minimal. This normally

aseified 83 high grade are i

radent policy on managing fts nssets and
¢ rates are kept within aceepiable limits,

qiterin deposits.

itivity of fair value changes due to pessible
vagiables held constant. '

[nerease.
(Dreerease) in Effect on Byuity
Basis Points 2014
50 (P804,227)
(56 843,131

fled by the application of '

gnificant concentration of
de to customers with appropriate credit

itor the granting of oredit and

de provisions, wheye necegsary, for

dit risk arises from defanitof

ing amount of the instruments. The

pany USing highgréde and standard

Company 1© default in settling
includes large prime financial

peluded in this category.

i
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pod cash equivalents (oxcluding cagh on hand) and accounts

The Company classified its cash
ber 31, 2014 and 2013,

receivable as high grade financial assets as af Decerl

follows:

As gt December 31, the aging analysis of aceounts receivable is 25

i 2014 - 2013

Neither past due zor impaired 243,407 T B72,680
Past due but not impatred:

1160 days - 30,000 -

61-150 days 9,380 -

151365 days_ ' _ : - §0,630

| - B183,397 B153,310

Capital Management .
The primary objective of the Company's capital man
credit rating and healtly capital ratios in order to support ite business and

value:

agement is to ensure that it maintains a strong
maximize shareholder

The Compayy manages its capital structure and makes adjustments t0 i, in the light of changes in

economie conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the
dividend payment to ‘shareholders, payoff existing debts, return capitai to shareholders or issue

new shares.

‘No changes were made in the objectives, policies or procegses for the three years ended

December31,2(_}14,'2013 gnd 2012, /

ertaken by GMA. The capital includes the total equity,

The Company’'s capital management {5 und
ber 31, 2014 and 2013,

which amounted to 20,64 million and 20,29 million as at Decen
respectively. :

14. Financial Assets and Liabilities

Fair Value Determinaﬁqn - ‘ :
The following methods and assumptions are used 10 sgtimate the fair value of sach asset and

lisbility for wihich it js practicable to estimate such vaiue:
le. Aceounts Pavable eng Othsr Curzent Lisbilities .

Cash_and Cash Equivalents. ‘Aceounts Regeivab
les) and Dae 10 Shareholdets

(exclading Statgiory Pavab
The caiTying arponnis approximate the fair values dug 1o

financial ingtrumeds,

the short-term maturities of thess

servable masket data, which i8

AFS inyestment
gsed range From 2.38% t©

Unquoied AFS invesiment is carried at felr value based on 0D
estimated using the diseounted cash fiow methodelogy. Discount rates
2.00% 1n 2014, The fair value is under lsvel 2 of the fair value hierarclty.

TR



15, Basie/Dituted Earnings (Loss) Per Sha

24 -

re Computation -

Resie/diiuted EPS i computed as follows:
$2811 12012

] . 2014
Net ingome atiributable to equity
' holders-(&) 2350,186 (R379,790) P13,13%
‘Common shares issues ol pegimming
and end of yeat IO 10,000 10.000 10,000
Fastc/dliuied sarnings (loss) per '
share {a/b) | 3502 (B237.98) £]31

avenue Regulations (RR) Mo, 15-2010

16, Suppiemeﬂtary Information Reguired by K

The Compuriy reposted and/or paid the foilowihg types of taxes jin2014:

Yalie added ta A

The Compary’s saies are subject 10 output VAT while.its purchases from other VAT-registered
individuals or corporations ars subjest to tput VAT The VAT rate is 12.0%. '

AT declared in the Company’s VAT retums

s Net Sales/Receipts and Output v
6 with qorresponding ourput

The Company’s taxable sales frém services amounted 10 2373 44

VAT of B44,814.

The Company’s sales that &ro subject to output VAT are reported under “Eyercige Fee”
acoount in the statement of comprehensive meome. ‘ :

b, Input VAT
Ralance at January 1 , : : ‘ 215§,178
Current ysar's domestic purchasas for gervices ' 149,508
Total claims at December 31; 2014 ' . : RP347.686 -
(ther Taxes and Licenses
Al other local and natlonel faxes paid for the ysar ended Decsmber 11,2004 sonsist oft -
Loogl taxes and }icensa‘ Tees _ 842,288
- L . 500 -

Registration fzes

!

%%l_!ﬂi%ﬁiiil&lliﬁl%lli?i[é!!Ei[I?l?iélilill!!?ﬁfi!ﬂ!!!ﬂ?%



" . Witkholding Taxos

" Withhelding taxes paid andfor withheld for the year-ended December 31, 2014 consist of:

Final withholding tax _ _ 230,741,802
Expanded withholding tax : ' ‘ ' 13,966
T : P30,755,768

Tax Assessmefts ang Cases

Ag at December 31, 2014, the Compzny'has no ongoing tax as
Bureau of Internal Revente (BIR). Likewise, the Comapsny ha
the administration of the BIR zs at December 31, 2014,

sessmients and cases with the
¢ no other pending {8x cases cutside

R



GMA HOLDINGS, INC. ,

TNDEX TO T

YE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPL

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2014

i,

il

i,

™.

Supp
A

B,

&3

H

jemental schedules requirsd by Annex 68-E

Financial assets

Amougts receivable from directors, officers, empioyées,
reiated parties and ptincipal siockhoiders (other than

related parties}

eivables and payable from/to related parties which are

Amounts of rec
ocass of financial statements

oliminated during consolidation pr
Intangible assets - othet assel

‘Loﬁgutém debt
Indebtedness to related parties {Long-term loans from ra[éted parties)

Cyuarantees of secorities of other issusrs

Capitel stock

Gohedule of all the effective standards and-interpretations

Reconciliation of retained earnings v

rilable. for dividend declaration

Sehedule of financisl ratios

EMENTARY SCHEDULES

 Attached

Not applicable

Notappiicable

Not appiicabl.e
Mot appiicable

Neot appiicable
ot applivable

Attached
Attached

‘Attachied

-Attached



EI .
W

140 MBRAL LY . ey.uomiph

Phlippines

Building a batter
warking world

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT
ON SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES .

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors

GMA Holdings, Inc.

5T Tower One, Que MeKinley Place
New CGlobal Bonifacio City

Foit Bonifacio, Taguig City

We have audited in accordance with Philippine Standard
31,2014 and 2013
orr 17-4, and have isswed ourreport thereon dated

he purpose of formit
ated in the Index to F inancial Statements and

GMA Holdings, inc. as at December
ended December 31, 2014 inctuded in this ¥
March 30, 2015, Our-audits were made for {
 statements taken us 8 whole. These scheduies i
Supplementary Schegules ar
presented for purposes of compl

-and are not part of the basic financial statements. These soht
d in the sudit of the basic. financial statemen
d t0.be set forth therein in relation 1o the bas

procedures applie
aterial respacts, the information tequire

ctatementis taken as & whole.

§YCIP GORRES VELAYO &£CC.
M. & Mgl

Marydfid C. Miguel

‘Partner

CPA Certificate o, 65556
SEC Accreditation No, 0087-AR-3 (Group AJ,
January 18, 2013, valid unti] January 17, 2016,
Tax Identification Ho. 102-092-270
RIR Accreditation Ne. 18-001998-55-2015,
. Tebruery 27, 2015, vaiid until February 26, 2018
TR No. 4751303, January 5, 2015, Makati City

‘March 30, 2013

4 mvembar fim af Ernstd Young Gighal Limiad

= the responsibility of the Comipany's
ying with Securities Reguiation Co

SEC Acoreditation Mo, 0012-FR-G (Group A), ‘
November 18, 2012, valid unil Nevember 18, 2015

¢ on Auditing, the financiel siafements of
and for each of the three years in the pericd

g an opinion on the basic financial

management, These schedules are
de Rule 68, As Amended (2011),
edules have been subjected two the auditing
t3 and, in our opinion, faitly state, in all
ic financial

T




AT

T SUPPLEMENTAL 8C
48 AT DECEMBER 31,2014

GMA HOLDINGS, INC,

Achedule A, Financial Assets

TEDULES REQUIRED TV ANNEL 65-F

Numbet of shates

Yatue baged on

. or principal Amont shown i1l market‘quotaﬂen
Narme of issuing entity and amount of bonds  the siatements of at end of reporting Income recelved
association of each issue wid rates financial position period and accrued
Cagh ang cash equivalents ”
Cigsh on hand ] 24,000 B B
Cesh in banks - - 1,235,820 - 11,746
. 1,240,820 - 11,740
Peso Placernents
Union Bank of the o
Philippines - - - 210,275
Uniczpital, Inc. - 25,424,401 - 895,043
‘ ~ 75 424,401 - 1,105,318
Total T E26,665,221 e P1,117,058
Available-for-sale investment - 221,799,216 - R{25757
Sehedule H. Capital Stock
Number of
“ghares issued
and Number
outstanding of sharea
asshown  reserved for
under related options,
staferments of warranis, Number
Mugnber Apancial  comversion of shares held Directors,
of shares position . and ather  byrelated  officers, A
Title of ieaue authorized caption rights parties smployess QOthers
CGImmen 10,DGD 10,060 — - gaol g
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CMA HOLDINGS, INC.

M .
1 SCHEDULE OF ALL THE EFFECTIVE 5
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2014

Ststements

characteristics

Framework for the Preparation and

Congeptus] Framework Phase

o

Presentation of Financial

A: Ohjectives and qualitative

TANDARDS AND H\TTEI?.PRETATEONS

e gt T

PFRSs Practice

Seatement Management Commentary

PEFRE 1
{Rev'ised)

Philippine Financial Reporting Htandards
e et

]
First-tims Adgption of Philippine Finaneia! Reporting

Standards

mendments 1 PFRS | and PAS 27; Castof an
investment in. & Subsidiary, Tointly Controlied Extity

or Assoviate
Amendments to PFRS 10 Additional Exemptions for
First-time Adopters

Amendment to PFRS 1: Limited Exemption from
jve PFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time

Comparah
Adgpters |

Rempva! of Fixed Date for First-time Adopiers

Amendments to DFRS 1: Government Loans

e
| Amendments 10 PFRS 1 Severe Hyperinflation and

L i

Amendment to PFRS I First-time Adoption of
Dhilippine Financial Reporting Grandards - Meaning
of ‘Bffective PERSs’

PFRS 2

PFRS 3
(Revised)

sttt

et

Share-based Payment

Amendments to PFRS 20 Vesting Conditions and

Cancellations o
Amendm‘ants o PFRS 2 Group Cash-sestled Share-
based Payment Transactions :

Amendmients to PRR3 2: Shere-based Payment -
Defnition of Vesting Condition*

Business Combrations i oo
Accounting for Contingsnt

Bosiness Combinations -
mbination*

onsideration in & Business CO
Business Combinations - Geope Hxcepions ‘for Joint

I
‘ . W

_M,,J,,__.L»-——F—.«

‘ No’c Farly Adepted.

I ey o

Not Barly Adopted
ey
Not Eaxly Adopied '

f

e ———



PFRS ¢

Insurenee Coniracls

]
Mon-carrent Assats Hela for Srle and Discontinued
Operations :

P, oy

e :
Amendments to FFRS 30 Changes iti Methodsof
Disposal® :

Explotation for-and Byaiuation of Mineral Resousces

L I
Amendments (o PAS 39 and BFRS 4: Financial
Guarantee Coniracts

Not Barly Adopted

PFRET

PFRS 8

PYRE §

PERS 10

| Anendments to PAS 35 and PFRS T Reclasyification

Fmaneial Mstrnents: Disclosures

of Finanuial Assets

) N ————
Amendmsnis {0 PAS 19 and PFRS 7 Eeclassificaiion
of Financial Assets - Bffective Date and .Transition

Amendments to PFRS 7, Trnproving Disclobures

about Financial Instraments

Amendments o PFRS 7. Disclosures - Transfers of
| Finaneial Agsets ‘ .
Amendmens to PFRS 7 Disclosires - Offsetiing
Finangial Assets und Financial Liabilities
Amendmens to PERS 7: Mandatory Bifective Date of
PERS 0.and Transtéion Disclosures
Amendments io PERS 7: Diselosures .. Bervicing
Contaots®

I—

Amendments to PFRS 7. Applicability of the
Arpendments 1o pFRY 7 to Cendensed Iiterim

!

Opera,t{ng Segmeris
Amendments io PPRS §: Operaiing Segments -
Apgregation of Operating Segments and
Reconciliation of the Totl of the Regortable
Segments’ Assets 1 the Entity's Assets”

IRy

Fineneial Ingtrumants® .
of

Amendments to PFRS ¥: Mandatory Effective Date

| i b b

| e e e

Financia] Statements™ ‘
o ¥

PFRY Gand Teansition Disclosures® .

e
consolidated Financfxal Saemenis

T
Arpendments o PFRS 10 [nvestment Tities

P S

Not Barly Adopted

Not Barly Adopied

Naot Barly Adopted

. Not Barly Adoptec

ot Barly Adepted




P

Amendments to PFRS 10 Sule or Contribution 9

Assets betwesn g0 Invesiol and its Associate or foint Mot Barly Adopted
Venture* : ‘
PERS 11 Joint Arrangements i -
IR P —
Amarfd‘n'.ients to PFRE il; A_czfountmg fc?r Mot Barly Acopted
Acquisitions of Tnterests m Joint Operations® ‘
PHRE 12 Discloge of laterests i Ctier Entlties s
- Amondments 10 PFRS 121 Investnent Entities v
PFRS 13 Fair Vaiue Measurerent o
i Lem - ’ ~ " -—a———"‘_""‘___u—-'—"'——
Amendment jo PFRS 13 Short-term Receivebles and 7 '
Payables ' - .
Amendment to PFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement - :
Partfolio Exception® : Not Barly Adeptad
PIRS 14 " | Reguiatory Deferral Acooumnts® ‘ Not Barly Adopted
PFRS 13 Revenue from Contracts with Customers* Hot Batly Adopted '
e o1
Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS)
PAS 1 Presentation of Financial Stements Y
. T e
(Revised) Amendment to PAS 1. Cepital Disclosures . s
; ; A
Amendments to PAS 32 and PAS 1: Puttable o .
Financial Instruments and Obligations Arising on v
Liguidation’ . :
A .
Amendments © PAS 1 Preseniation of fems of Qther
Comyrehensive Jncome .
PASZ | Imventories : _
PAST Sratement of Cash Flows i ‘
PASS 4 coounting Policies, Changes {n. Apcounting
Estimaes-and Errors
T ——
Palk 10 Events affer the Reporting Period
PAS 1L Construction Contrasts
R e e ‘___'_._-..—-—-ﬂ-'"'_...__—-a—._ﬂ__,___.u__.w e et _____'__ﬂ____,‘——-—
PAS1Z  Income Taxes )
RACS,
Amendment o PAS1Z- Deferred Tax: Recovary of .
, Underlying Assets . ‘ :
_v__‘.__.‘..,——-—'-“"—“-—‘ -
PAS 16 Dropetly, Plugt and Bouipraent B
: : B

A et
Amendment to PAS 161 Property, Plant a;xd

‘ethod - Proportionate

Equipment - Revaluation

Coa

Sty



........

]

Restatement of sccurgularsd Depreciation™
' Amendment 1o PAS 16! Agriculfure - Bearer Plante® Not Early Adapted
PAE 17 | Leages - v
PAS 18 Revenue s
PAS 19 Buyfleyes Beneflis.
PAS 10 Employée Benefits
{Amen dcd)
Amendments to PAS 18 Actuarial Gaing'and Losses,
¥
Group Plans and Disclosures
Amendments to PAS 19; Defined Benefic Plans: ‘ o
N ) T 1
Eanployes Contributions® : Not Barly Adoped
Kmendments to PAS 19 Regionel Markei Isaue ‘ ,: . T
Regarding Discount: Rate* ‘ Not Betly Adopted
PAR D Acoounting for Govermment CGrants and Dzsclosuze of s
Governmeant Assigtanee
PAS 21 The Fiffects of Changas in Forgign Rxchange Rates £
Amendment; Not Investment in & Forelgn Operation s
PAS 23 Borovwing Costs '
P £
(Revised)
PAS 24 Related ?aziy.Disclosuras s
(Ravised) _ ,
PAS 26 Acgounting and Repérting by Retirement Bensfit Y
Plans ' “
PAS 27 Corsplidated and Separate Finmnoial Statsments ¢
- P S BN
PAR2T Separate Fingntis! Statements - . : Ny
(amended)  [pmondments to PAS 27 avestment Entities , | s
Amendmems to PAS 27: Equity Method in Separate: Not Early Adopted
Financie! Statemente®
PAS 28 Tvestments i Associgies | vy
PAS 28 [vestments in Agsociates and Joint Ventures <
(Amended) Amendments to PAS 28: azie or Confribution of
| Assats between an Investor and its Assosiate OF Joint Not Early Adopred .
Venture” o
PAR 29 ‘Finanelel Reporiing n Hypcrinﬂatio'nmr Ecanomics "’__’_i____l
PAB 31 Irterests in Joing Ventures



eatation

PAS 32 Pmanmal Insm!manss Dlsclosure and Pres

Amendments {0 FAS 32 and PAS 11 Puttable | _
- Financial fnstruments and Obligations AT Arising ot ‘ ¢

Liquidation _
e

mendmet to AS 32: Classification of Righls /

1 Issues

Amendmems o PAS 32 Offaatiing Fmarmml ASsets
and Financlal Ligbilities

- et e it i
J

PAS 33 Farnings per Share
TR
PAE 34 ‘Tnterim Financial Reporting
. e
Amendments 10 FAS 34; Disclosure of Information -
N t
“Elsewhere in the Interi Financial Report® _ ot Early Adoptes

<
w—""—"
Arjendmens 10 PAS 36! Recwemble Amoutt L ) p
iDisclosures for Nog- Financial Assets ’

PAS ST Provisions, Contingent 1igbilitles and. Commgen’c ‘ o y

Asssts
S St

SR S
DAS 38 Tinancial Insruments: Recognition end Mezsurement

Amendments {o PAS 19: Transition and Inisial
| Recognition of Financial Assets and Pinancial

PAS 36 Impeirment of Assets

Liabilities

e S DUNI—
‘Amendxnems 1o PAS 3%: Cash Flow Hedge J

| Accounting of Foreaast Intragroup Transactions : C

A
Amendments to PAS 3% The Fair Value Option _
: | i e

Amendments to PAS 39 aad PFRS 4; Financial ) : v,
- !

:

Ouarantes Confracts
i !
‘ i <

I
PAS 39 Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7. Reclegsificatiol

of Financial Assefs
s Reclassification /

| Amendments to PAS 39 and PE
of Finanstal Assets - Elfective Dats and Transition

AmenQmens w© Philippiae Interpretation TFRIC-D and . /

PAS 3% Bmbedded Denvatwes ‘

Amendment to PAS 30: Bligibie Hedged items

. Recognitionand _ ) ;-

| Amendment te PAS 3
F Drerivatives and

Weasurement - Novation ©
Accounting
e

Continuation of Hedge

| s e



.

J/I

it

PAS 40 Invastment Property !
_ Amendment to PAS 40% Not Early Adopted
BAS 41 { Agriculture s
A mendment to PAS 41; Agriculture - Bearer Plants* Not Early Adopted
L H—
Tuterpretations -
IFRIC1 - | Changes in Existing Devommissioning, Restoration v
and Simitar Lisbilities
IFRICZ Nembers' Share in Co-operative Entitles and Simiiar . .
Instroments :
IFRIC4 Determining Whether an-Arrangement Contains 4 ' v
Leage
IFRIC S Rights to Interests arising from Decommissioning, y
: Restaration and Enyironmental Rehabilitation Funds
e e et et R,
IFRIC 6 Liabilities arising from Participating in a Specific v
' Market - Weste Bleetrical and Flecitonic Bquipment , ;
M 4
JIFRICT Applying the Restrtement Approach under PAS 29 v
Financisl Reporting in Hyperinilationary Economies
,__..._---—--'"“n-u....m-,,,_..---'———'"'* e et R AL
IFRICS Scope of PFRB 2 v
IFRIC? Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives. o ‘—.]
 Amendments to Philippine Interpretation [FRIC-S andi y
PAS 39: Embedded Derivatives _
I —
|IFRICTD fnterim Financial Reporting and Tmpairment N
FRIC 12 | PFRS 2 - Group and Treasusy 8hare Transactions L <
TFRIC 12 Gervice Concesgion ATrangements v
] —
IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programanes ' : Vg
IFRIC 14 The Limit o & Defined Benefit Agael, Minirir /
- | punding Requiremants and their Jnteraction ’
Amendments 0 Philippine Interpratétions IFRIC-14, /
Prepaymenis of & Minimum Funding Reguirsment
s i oot . oy «
IPRIC 156 Agreaments for e Constuetion of Real Bstare® Wot Batly Adopted
R .
IFRIC 16 Fedges of 2 Net Investuent in & Fareign Operation | -
IFRIC 17 | Dispibutions of Nor-cash Agsets-to Orwners . . <
IFRIC 18 Transfers of Assets from Custormers - , _ﬁ_..,_::._»——«
IFRIC 1% Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity J
_ Instruments .
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FRIC 20

Broduction Phase of a-Swrface

% Standords and nterprelations which will B

Note; Standards and i
wihich were adopted but the entity has no &1

nterpretations tagged as “Not Applicable
ignificant covers

ended Devember 31, 2014,

31 2014

| Giripping Costs in the
Mine
e b
IFRIC 21 Levies -/'
s1C-7 Introduction of the Buro s
SIe-16  Government Assistance - No Specific Relation to s
Opesating Activities ‘
8I1C-12 Consolidation ~ Speciel Purpuse Entities +
s mendmant to SIC - 12: Beope of SIC 12 g
SICals Toluly Conmlled Entities - Non-Monetary 7
Contributions by Venturers '
.
SIC.15 | Operating Leases - Incentives. ¥
SIC-25 T ipeome Taxes - Changes in the Tex Status of pn Bnsity
L ‘ o
or Its Shareholders. :
SIC-27 Bvaluating the Substancs of Transections nvolving -
the Legal Form of & Lease : ‘
8129 Service Conoession AITangEments: Disclosures s o
S1C-31 Revenus - Barter Transuctions Invelving Advertisig J
' Services ' :
g1C-32 Inmngible Assets - Web Siie Costs ¥y i
N
ecomé gffective subsequent {0 Degember

» are those standards and Interpretations
J transaction as at and for the year
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GMA BOLDINGS, INC.

Nat income during th

L RECONCILIATION OF RETAINED EARNINGS
AVAILABLE FOR DIVIDEND-DECLARATIGN '
¥OR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 54, 2014

ned sarnings, beginning

Unsppropriated reiai
e 'yoar closed 10 retained sarnings

B189,628
350,187

Retained sarnings - available for
ember 31, 2014

$3539,815

dividend deciaration as at Dec




A HOLDINGS, INC.__ .
. SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL RATIOS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014

2013

Descrintion
Current assets over current ‘iiabilitiles
otal assets over woial equity
Total Habilities over total equity’
Earnings before interest, tax and
amortization over total revenus

Pinancial Ratios
Current/liquidity ratio
Agsst 1o equity ratio
Debt to equity TaHO
BRITDA margit

St el

| RETEIVE

2014
0.57 1.01
4176 16673
< 40.76  165.73
depresiation and . -
0.37 (0.11)




VAP OF CONGLOMERATE - - Not Applicable



